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ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF «JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

JOHN M. FORMELLA

ATTORNEY GENERAL

O* JAMES T. BOFFETTI

DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

Si5o
June 12, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to enter into subgrants with the subrecipients
listed below, in an amount totaling $501,195 from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), for
the purpose of providing direct services to victims of crime, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval or July 1, 2023, whichever is later, through June 30, 2024. This is
an allowable use of ARP FRF funds under Section 602 (c)(1) (C) to respond to the public health
emergency or its negative economic impacts. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the account 02-20-20-201510-2479, ARPA -
VOCA. for Fiscal Year 2024, upon the acceptance and approval of funding in future fiscal years
as follows:

Class SFV2024

Account Subrecipient Vendor # Amount

072-500575 Granite United Way 160015-BOOl $118,695

072-500574 Claremont Police Department 177373-B002 $80,000

072-500575 603 Legal Aid 216800-B001 $270,000

072-500574 Carroll County Attorney's Office 177369-B007 $32,500

Total: $501,195

EXPLANATION

The DOJ subgrants funds, for direct victim services, from the Victims of Crime Act
Grant (VOCA). VOCA was enacted by Congress in 1984 and it established the Crime Victims
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Fund. Fines paid by offenders of federal crimes are deposited into this Fund. Money from the
Fund is then distributed to states for the benefit of victims of crime. Due to reduced criminal

fines and penalty deposits into the Fund and non-prosecution agreements that divert funds for
other purposes, VOCA awards have been reduced dramatically resulting in decreased subgrants
to victim service providers.

At the beginning of 2023, the DOJ was granted permission by the Fiscal Committee of
the General Court and the Governor and Executive Council to supplement VOCA subgrants with
funds from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). This will allow subrecipients to continue to
provide direct services to victims of crime. Subrecipients providing services in the fields of
sexual assault, domestic violence, underserved populations, and crimes against children are
required to be given priority.

Subrecipients will utilize grant funds as follows:

•  The Granite United Way and the Claremont Police Department will utilize funds to
enhance the adverse childhood experiences program. This project coordinates systems of
support focused specifically on providing services to children traumatized as a result of a
crime.

•  603 Legal Aid will use the funds to provide civil legal services to victims of crime.

•  The Carroll County Attorney's Office will continue to fund victim advocate services.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted.

John M. Formella

Attorney General

#4056474
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FORM NUMBER G-1 (vcrsioii liy2021)

GRiAOT AGREEMENT

The State of New Han^shire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

jl.i. State Agency Namr " ^
' New Hampshire Department of Justice

'L2. Stat^e^^e'ncy'Address^ -

33 Capitol Street, Concord, "NH 03301

'i.3.-Grantee Name

, Granite United Way

1.4. Grantee Address ~ ij i
125 Airport Road i

.Concord, NH 03301:' i

'1.5 Grantee Phone #

'(603) 625-6939

T.6. Account Number

02-20-20-20 1510-2479

.>072-500575 . '

1.7. Completion Datel^j
'  06/30/2024

^1'8. Grant'LiraitatlonT' j
i'$118.695_ . 7

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen Cair . . . , . ...

T.TO. State Agency TeJepbone Number i_,
(603) 271-3658

If Grantee is a"municipality or yHla^districi: "By"ilgntng this forra we citify that we have complied with any public '
..meeting r.aenilr«inent for.aowDt<ta^':of.thls firant'lndudine 1/applicable BiSA31:95Tb.". __ .1 i

|i A ly^ranteeJSijjn:^^ lil^i^Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1 \ V

rGrai^^Signatyr? 2 ' feme &'Titie of Grantee~Signor2 - V
'

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3 ' ' ?
..J;/

^1.13 State AgenCT Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s) ) '

I  Kathleen Carr,;Directonof.'Administration.-_ t
1.15, Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C apprWal requircd)

,By: Assistant Attorney General, On: ^6/7/^3 j
[l.16. Approvalby Governor and Coundl (if appUcabie) ' ft;*'' - ^ 1

V

-  i I'

through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Graritee"), shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter refcned to as "the Projecf*).
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

3.1.

5.2.

3.3.

3.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

12.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVHRED. Except u' otherwise specifically provided far bereio, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in, aad with respect to, the State of New
Hanpshirc. 9.2.
EFPBCTTVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreemeat, and aU oblisadoos of the parties bereunder, shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreemeat by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the Effective Date**).
Except as otherwise ̂ ecifically provided bereiii. the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shall be convicted in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (berdnaftcr rcfared to as "the Completion Date*^.
GRANT AMOUNT: UMTTATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHTBIT C,
attached hereto. 9.5.
The manner of, and schedule ofpayment shall be as set forth in EXHTBIT C.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHTBIT C, and in consideration 10.
of tbe satisiactory perfonnance of foe Project, as detanuned by the State, and as
limited by sobparagrapb 3.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Gram Amount The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise
payable to foe Grantee under this subparagrapb 53 foose snms required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to NJi. RSA 80:7 through 7<.
The payment by the State of tbe Grant amount shall be foe only, and foe complete
payment to the Grantee for all expmses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the perfomumce bercof end shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Project The State shall have no liabilities to 11.
the Grantee other than tbe Grant Amount 11.1-

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and ootwitbstandiog
unexpected drcumstaocea, in no event shaU the total of all paymmts authorized, 11.1.1
or actually made, ho'eonder exceed tbe Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of 11.13
these general provisions. 11.1.3
CQMPUANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.1.4

coonectioD with tbe pcrfarmance of tbe Project, the Grantee shall comply with all 113.
laws regulations, and caders of foderal, state, county, or municipal

authorities which «h«ii impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including 113.1
the acquisition of soy and all necessary permits and RSA31>95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or tbe Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of ̂ 1 expenses iocuned in connection with tbe 1133
Project, including, but not limited to, costs of adminirtiatioo, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills az>d other similBr documenta.
Between tbe Effecdve Date and foe date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to 11.23
subparagrapb 7.1, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the State shall demand, the Oraotee shall make available to the State all 113.4
records pertaining to matters covo-ed by this AgisemeiiL Tbe Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, aod to make audits 12.
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that 12.1.
term is hereinafter defined), and oths information rdating to all mattera covered
by this Agreement As used in this pangnqib, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, tbe entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL.

Tbe Grantee shall, at its own e;q]eose, provide all personnel necessary to perform 123.
foe Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Grantee not hire, and it shall not permit any snbcontiactor, subgrantee, 12.3,
or other person, firm or cotpoiatioB with whom it is engaged in a combioed effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
tbe State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appomted.
The Gnat Officer shall be tbe representative of foe State bcreunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, tbe intapretation of fols Agreement by the Grant 12.4.
Officer, and Ua/ber decision on any dispoce, shall be final
DATA: RETENTION OP DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things 13.
developed or ob^oed during the performance of or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement, inclndiog, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, cbaits, sound recordings, video recanUogs, pictorial
leproductioos, dnwings, analyses, gnphic representadons,

computer programs,-computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, aod
documents, aU vfoether finished or unfinisbed.
Between the Effective Date and foe Completioo Date the Grantee shall grant to
tbe State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
examioatioii, dupUcatioa, publicatioii. translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after tbe ESective Date all data, and any property whleh has been received
from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be tbe property of the State, and shall be returned to the State
upon demand or upon terminatioa of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur,

Tbe State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, fostribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDmONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstandmg anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, ore cootingecit upon
foe availability or continued appmpriarion of ftmda, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hereuoda hi excess of such available or appropriated
fimds. In the event of a reduction or tenninatioo of those fiinds, the State shall

have the right to withhold payment until such fiinds becocoe available, if evs, and
shall have foe right to tcnmnate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissiocs oftbeGraatee shall constitute
an event of default bcreander (hereinafter rcfencd to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Paihne to sobmit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maiTTtain^ or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement
Upon tbe occurrence ofany Event ofDe&uh, the State may take soy one, or more,
or all, of the foUowmg actions:
Give tbe Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser spedficatioo of time,
thirty (30) days fi-om the date of the notice; end if the Event of De&uU is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and

Give the Gnntee a written notice specifying the Event of Defiiult and suspending
all payments to be nude under this Agreement end odering that the portion of the
Grut Amount which would othowise acoue to foe Grantee during tbe period
from the date of such ootice ""*'1 such HTnK as the State determines that foe
Gnntee has cured the Event ofDc&uit shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set offagainst any other obligation the State may owe to the Grantee toy damages
the State suffers by reason ofany Event ofDe&ult; and
Treat the agreemeat as breached aod pursue any ofits remedies at law or in equity,
orbofo.

TERMINATION.

In foe event of any early tenninatioo of this Agreemoit for any reason ofoo' than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to foe Grant Officer, not
later fifteen (15) days after tbe date of tennination, a report (hereinafler
referred to as foe "TemnnatioD Report") describing in detail all Project Work
perfisnned, and the Grant AmouiU earned, to and including the date oftemnnatioo.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, tbe approval of such a Tennination Report by foe State shall entitle
foe Grantee to receive that portion of tbe Grant amount earned to and including
foe date of terminatioa.

Id the event of Tennmatioo under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, foe approval of such a Teimioation Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
iocuired by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligatioiu
bereunda.

Notwithstanding anything ia this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except where notice de&ult bas been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement mfoout cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST No officer, member of employee of foe Grantee,
and no representative, officer or enqrloyee of the State ofNew Hampshire or of
the governing body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
pcrfbrmcd, who exercises any flinctions or responsibilities in the review or
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15.

16.

spproval of the undotakiog or cairyisg out of (ucb Project, shall participate is 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreemait which effects his or her posonal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which be or she
is directly or indirectly intaested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof

14. GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of 18.
the Grantee are in all respects indepcadent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
enq>loyees, agents, memhera, subcontractors or subgraotees, shall have authority
to bind the State nor are they eotitJed to any of the benefits, waricmeo's
compensatioD or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
writtcQ consent ofthe State. 20.
INDEMNIFTCATIQN. The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and bold harmless
the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all losses suffered
by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by or on Ixhalf 21.
of any peraoo, on account of based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) tbe acts or omissioos of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent ofthe Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing berdn cootaioed shall be deemed to constitute a waiver ofthe
sovereign iommnicy of tbe State, wbicb immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant shall survive tbe termination of this agreement. 22.

17. INSURANCE.

17.1 Tbe Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and mainttifi in force, or shall 23.
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for tbe benefit of tbe State, the following
insurance:

17.1.1 Statutory workers' coaq>ensatioa and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in tbe perfonnaoce of the Project, and

17.1.2 General liability insurance against all claims ofbodily iiyuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less th'Ti SI,000,000 per occuneoce and S2,000,00C
aggregate for bodDy injury or death any one inddent, and SS00,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

Tbe poUcies described in subparagreph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State ofNewHaoqishire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to tbe State, and authorized to do business in tbe State ofNew Hampshire. Grantee
shall fiimish to Ibe State, certificates of insurance for all reoewal^s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OP BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Defrult shall be deemed a waiver of its rig^ with regard to
that Event, or aoy subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of De&uh
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such fritoie of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereofupon any fintber or other defiuilt on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of moiitng certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addreasca
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instnunent in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approvsl of
such «inwiHini>nt^ wsivcT or discharge by the Governor and Council of tbe State
ofNew Hampshire, ifrequired or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement ihaU be

construed in accordance with the law of tbe State ofNew Hanqiahira, and Is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and (heir respective successors
end assignees. The captions and contents of tbe "subject" btacJc are used only as
a matter of coovenioice, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used to decamimng the intend of tbe parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be coostmed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, wbicb may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions set fisth in
Exhibit A hereto are iocoiparated ss part ofthis agreement.
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Granite United Way as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Subrecipient") shall be compliant at all times
with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below, which are subject to annual review.

1. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningfiil
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail
providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary.
The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them conqily with these
requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.gov.

2 The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a
copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hartqishire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information
regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded
fimding from this office, civil rights con^liance will be monitored by this office, and the Office
for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient will conqily (and wiU require any subrecipients or contractors to con^ly)
with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of2002 (34 U.S.C. §
11182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(l3)); the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-86);
and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also con:^)ly with Ex.
Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations;
Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships
With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ implementing
regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4. Condensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly
rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required . Prior approval
requests require additional justification.

Page 4 of 26 Subrecipient Imtial(s):
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EXHIBIT A

5. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they empby a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be
billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or
supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the
NHDOJ.

6. The Subrecipient understands that grants are fimded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in fiiture years.

7. 2 CKR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards)

are considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract. The DOJ reserves the
right to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs or
withholding of funds.

8. To the extent required to comply with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, Subrecipient
shall complete an audit at the end of the Subrecipient's fiscal year ending after June 30, 2022

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a response to the
current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters written as a result
of the audit along with the audit report shall'be forwarded to DOJ within one month of the time of
receipt by the Subrecipient accompanied by an action plan, if applicable, for each finding or
questioned cost.

9. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the direct cost
principles

detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 7.1 and 12 of the standard provisions,

progmro and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Subrecipient for 5
(five) years from the date of submission of the final ejq)enditure report as per requirements from the
Treasury Office of Inspector General.

11. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING

It is understood and agreed between the parties that no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for
the purpose of obtaining additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if
authorized under that law."

12. X"SSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS

The following are attached and signed: Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements;
Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other
Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance;
Certification Regarding
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EXHIBIT A

Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted
Programs; and Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
Compliance."

13. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT

AH contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for construction or repair using funds under this grant shall
include a provision for compliance with Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 USC 874) as
supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each
Subrecipient, subcontractor or Subrecipient shall be prohibited fiom inducing, by any means, any
person en5)loyed in the construction, con::5>letion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
corr5)ensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The Subrecipient should report all suspected
violations to DOJ.

14. PROCUREMENT

Subrecipient shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D — Post Federal Award
Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on financial procurement ( 2 CFR 200
Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post Federal
Award Requirements - Property Standards)

15. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT

Subrecipient shall submit a final report electronically to the DOJ grant officer by e-mail or other
electronic means subsequently designated by DOJ of the uses of the grant fimds through June 30,
2023, and shall break down the reporting by fecility location at the town level In the event that
Subrecipient has not demonstrated that the grant fimds have not been ejqjended for allowable costs of
at least the amount of this grant, the excess grant funds shall not be paid and will lapse.

16. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

Any "subrecipient" at any tier must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-I7-12) if it (or a subrecipient)-(l) aeates, collects, uses,
processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable
information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OP grant-funded program or activity, or (2)
uses or operates a "Federal information system" (0MB Circular A-130).
The subrecipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach
of Pn to the New Hanqjshire Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit by the end of the
business day in which the breach becomes known.

17. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

I. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must—
A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be
funded (in whole or in part) whh award funds, the subrecipient properly verifies the employment
eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l)
and (2).
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EXHTBTT A

B. Notify all persons associated with any subrecipient who are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both—

1. this award requirement for verification of enqjloyment eligibility, and
2. the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful,
in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified
of the award requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8
U.S.C. I324a(a)(l)and(2).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance
with this award condition in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention requirements, as well as
records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring
The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this
condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be
obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure
compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in hiring process
For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award"
specifically includes (without limitation) any and all subrecipient officials or other staff who are or
will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in
part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-verify
For purpose of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment
eligibility, any subrecipient may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov),
provided an appropriate person authorized to act on behalf of the subrecipient uses E-Verify (and
follows the proper E-Verify procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a
"Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the
United Stales that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin
Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or
nondiscrimination law.
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E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to reheve any
subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law,
including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-
Verify website (https://www.e-yerify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify
employer agents can email E-Verify at E-VeriiyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award
acceptance.

18. The subrecipient agrees to submit quarterly performance reports

On the performance metrics identified by NHDOJ, and in the manner required by NHDOJ. This
information on the activities supported by the award funding will assist in assessing the effects that
VOCA Victim Assistance funds have had on services to crime victims within the jurisdiction.

19. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated — in the application for the award (as
approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement
(solicitation), or an associated federal statute — that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be
carried out under the award (whether by a subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals
under 18 years of age.
Any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with partic^ating minors. This requirement apphes regardless of an individual's employment
status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gOv/funding/Explore/l
nteract-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain
individuals who may interact with participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

20. Certification Regarding EEOP Required

Within 30 days firom the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for approval, an acceptable
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28 CFR 42.301 et seq. or a Certification
Form to the Office of Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th Street, NW,
Washington, DC 20531. Failure to submit an approved EEOP or Certification of exemption is a
violation of the Program Guidelines and Conditions and may result in suspension or termination of
funding, until such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. The EEOP reporting tool and
instructions can be found at; https://ojp.gov/about/ocr/faq_eeop.htm

21. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is ehgible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use
the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R 200.414(1), and that elects to use the "de
minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must
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comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis"
rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements.
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-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive a grant from the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ)
for expenses incurred and services provided for direct victim services by the subrecipient
through a collaboration to include Concord Police Department, Rivetbend Commumty Mental
Health, and Merrimack County Human Services using an adverse chddhood experiences
response, which is a coordinated system of support focused specifically on responding and
providing services to children affected by trauma as the result of crime.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on expenditures
described in Exhibit C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports
submitted later than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be
considered late and out of compliance. For example, with an award that begins
on January 1, thefirst quarterly report is due on April 15'^ or 15 days after the
close ofthefirst quarter ending on March 31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant
expenses both state funds and match if provided and to produce those
documents upon request of this office or any other state or federal audit
authority. Grant project supporting documentation shall be maintained for at
least seven (7) years after the close of the Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by
DOJ. Such desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with
Subrecipient and every attempt shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate
the schedule.

V

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Dq)artmeDt of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or Rhonda.J.Beauchemin@doj.nh.gov
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- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved
expenditure reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrec^ient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the
DOJ's approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the
Subrecipient's account receivables address per the Financial System of the State
of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement

shall not exceed the price limitation set forth in fomi G-1 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $118,695.00 of

the total Grant Limitation from Govemor and Council approval or 07/01/2023

whichever is later, to 06/30/2024, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient

may apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal

grant end date, not after. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing.

No extension is granted until approval is received by DOT in writing.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs
incurred under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, or after
06/30/2024 or, unless a grant extension is approved in writing by DOJ.
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- DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to con^ly with
the provisions of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L.
100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the
Subrecipient's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement
execute the following Certification:

Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et
seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations were amended and published as Part II of the
May 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require certification by
Subrecipients (and by inference, sub-Subrecipients and sub-Subrecipients), prior to award,
that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation
provides that a Subrecipient (and by inference, sub-Subrecipients and sub-Subrecipients)
that is a state may elect to ma^e one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal
year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of
grants, or government wide suspension or debannent. Subrecipients using this form
should send it to:

Lisa Lamphere
Department of Justice

33 Capitol St
Concord, NH 03301

Lisa.J.Lamphere@doj.nh.gov

(A) The Subrecipient certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Subrecipient's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The Subrecipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance
programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days
after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) ftom an enq3loyee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Enqjloyers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices.
Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice imder
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—
(1) Taldng appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good feith effort to continue to maintain a drug-fi-ee workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The Subrecipient may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of
work done in connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

Check n if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Un/-h^ July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024
Suhffecipient Name ' Period Covered by this Certification

Name and^Jitle of Authorized Subrecipient Representative

^^^ecipient^epreseyative Signature Date
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-LOBBYING-

(1)

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to corrqily with
the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New
Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the
Subrecipient's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Grant
Agreement execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): American Rescue Plan Act
Contract Period' July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or atteni^iting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or enqjloyee of Congress, or an
en^loyee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant,

loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-Subr'ecipient or sub-
Subrecipient).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or atten^ting to influence an officer or empbyee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement

(and by specific mention sub-Subrecipient or sub-Subrecipient), the undersigned shall
cooqjlete and submit Standard Form LLL, 'TDisclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-L

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite

for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Sectipn (1352, Titlp 31, U.S. Code. •
Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil pena&tybf ^

10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.
)■

Pfesi'-debt

Subrecipient Representative Signature

Patrick Tufts

■ Subrecipient's Representative Title

5/10/2023

Subrecipient Name Date
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-DEBARMENT-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to con^ly with
the provisions of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR
Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further
agrees to have the Subrecipient's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the Grant Agreement execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILrrY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submittmg this Grant Agreement, the Subrecipient is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily
result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the Subrecipient
shall submit an explanation of why it carmot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in coimection with the DOJ determination whether to enter
into this transaction. However, failure of the Subrecipient to furnish a certification or an
explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DOJ determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
Subrecipient knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DOJ may terminate this transaction for cause or
default.

(4) The Subrecipient shall provide immediate written notice to DOJ, to whom this Grant is
submitted if at any time the Subrecipient learns that its certification was erroneous when
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier
covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal,"
"proposal," and 'Voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in
the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:
45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The Subrecipient agrees by submitting this Grant that, should the proposed covered
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DOJ.

(7) The Subrecipient further agrees by submitting this Grant that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DOJ, without modification, in
all lower tier covered tran^ct'ions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions. ' '

(8) A Subrecipient in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of Subrecipient in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneoiis.
A Subrecipient may decide-the method and frequency by which it determiiies the ̂ li^bility
of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Non-procurenient
List (of excluded parties).
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(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a Subrecipient is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a
Subrecipient in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
government^ DOJ may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension^ and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The Subrecipient certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal
department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant been convicted of or
had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a
public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, thefl, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,

making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a

governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the
offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of this certification; and

(d) have not, within a three-year period preceding this Grant, had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the
statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to
this Grant.

Subricii$ient''Rei^sentative Signature ! Subr^cipient's Representative Title:

Subrecipient Name 1 Date
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-CERTinCATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees by signature of

the Subrecipient's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Grant
Agreement, to execute the following certification:

By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Subrecipient agrees to make
reasonable efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with

Disabilities Act of 1990.

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

Subrecipient Name ' Date
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-CERTIFICATION

PUBUC LAW 103-227, PART C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE-

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacxo Smoke, also known as the Pro
Children Act of 1994, requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor
facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or
regularly for provision of healtb, day care, education, or library services to children under
the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through
State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or ban guarantee.
The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by M^icare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient
drug or alcohol treatment.
Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty up to $1000 per day and/or the ur^JOsition of an administrative
compliance order on the responsible entity.
By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Subrecipient certifies that it will
conqjly with the requirements of the Act.

The Subrecipien^-^he^ agrees that it will require the langua^e^of this-certificatiotj be •
included in any subaWards which contain provisions for the children's" "sei^ces and tlfet:^
Subrecipients shall certify accordingly.

SubrecipieiltJfepresentative Signature Subrecipient's Rqiresentative Title

XToTYlt* /Subrecipient Name ' Date
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-Assurance Of Conpliance Nondiscrimination In Federally Assisted Programs

0MB Burden Disclosure Statement-

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15
minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the
collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other
aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
the Office of Management and Budget (0MB), Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400),
Washington, DC 20503.

The Subrecipient agrees to con^ly with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L.
88-352), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318,
Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub.
L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135), Title VHI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284). In accordance with the above laws and regulations
issued pursuant thereto, the Subrecipient agrees to assure that no person in the United
States shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination imder any program or activity in which the Subrecipient receives Federal .
assistance.

Applicability and Period of Obligation In the case of any service, financial aid, covered
employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased, or improved with Federal
assistance extended to the Subrecipient by DOJ with federal CARES Act funds, this
assurance obligates the Subrecipient for the period during which Federal assistance is
extended. In the case of any transfer of such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or
structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which Federal
assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obhgates the
Subrecipient for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.

Employment Practices Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide
employment or where the Subrec^ient's errgjloyment practices affect the delivery of
services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance extended by DOJ, the
Subrecipient agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex,
age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include,
but are not limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion,
demotion, transfer, rates of pay, training and participation in upward mobility programs; or
other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance The Subrecipient shall require any individual, organization, or
other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or subleases for the purpose of
providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with laws
and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrec^ient shall be required to sign a written
assurance form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure
compliance is not relieved by the collection or submission of written.assurance.^nns.

Data Collection and Access to Records The Subrecipient agrees to con:pile and maintain
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information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a result of tbc Subrecipient s
receipt of Federal assistance from DOJ. Such information shall include, but is not limited
to the following: (1) the mannpr in which services arc or will be provided and related data
necessary for detennining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the
basis of prohibiEed discriinmation; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color,
national origin, sex, age and disabilityj (3) data regarding covered errq)loynient including
use or planned use of bilingual pubUc contact employees serving beneficiaries of the
program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak
or understand Englishj (4) the location of existing or proposed fecilities connected with the
program and related infonnation adequate for determining whether the location has or will
have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; and (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national origin,
sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program.

The Subrecipient agrees to submit requested data to DOJ, the U.S. D^artment of Treasury
or 0MB regarding programs and activities developed by the Subrec^ient from the use of
CARES Act funds extended by DOJ upon request. Facilities of the Subrecipient (including
the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books, accounts, and
other sources of information pertinent to the Subrecipient's con?)liance with the civil rights
laws shall be made, available far inspection during normal business hours on request of an
officer or en:ployee ofDOJ, the U.S. Department of Treasury or 0MB specifically
authorized to make such inspections.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all
Federal grants, loans, contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or
other Federal assistance extended after the date hereof, to the Subrec^ient by DOJ
including installment payments on account after such data of application for Federal
assistance which are approved before such date. The Subrec^ient recognizes and agrees
that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the rqjresentations and
agreements mnde in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek
judicial enfoTcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the Subrecipient, the
successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose signatures appear
betow and who are auiorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Subrecipient.

Subrecipient Certification
The Subrecipient certifies that it has con^Ued, or that, within 90 days of the date of the
grant, it will con^ily with all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will
be furnished to the Subrecipient upon written request to DOJ).

ubrwipient's RepreSubrecipient Representative Signature Subrwipietit's Representative Title

(Ujfy
Subrecipient Name
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-CERTIPICATiqN REQARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE-

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA)requires Subrecipients
of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after
October 1, 201p,'to report on data related to executive cqmpensatidn ̂ d asso.ci^ed first-
tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent
grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to
the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Suhaward and Executive Compensation
Information)^ DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity

2) Amount of award

3) Funding agency

4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5) Program source

6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7) Location of the entity

8) Principle place of perfonnance

9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)

10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, phis 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to cocc^jly with
the provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law
109-282 and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and
Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the
Subrecipient's representative(s), as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement
execute the following Certification:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.

(f
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Subrecipient Rq)resentative Signature Subreciplent's Representative Title

Subrecipient Name Date

As the Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, 1 certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The UEI number for your entity is: ^PBS1A62152F3

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or orgamzation
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO ^YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

^NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:
4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount: '

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: ^Amount:

r pt
DS
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EXHIBIT K

-EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES-

Patrick Tufts

L  [responsible official], certify that

Granite United Way has completed the EEO reporting tool

certification within the last two years at: https://oip.gov/about/ocr/faa ccop.htm on

March 23. 2022

It is understood that subrecipients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipients with less than 50 employees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOP Training Requirements for Subrecipients

Shannon Swett ^ ^ . . , . . ,, . ,
[official that completed training] has completed

the EEOP training at hUps://oip.gov/about/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-training.htm on:

March 23, 2022 -j n t-u r-r-^n^ • ■ ^ l 1 * J ^1
[date]. The EEOP training must be completed at least once every

two years.

DOJ Discrimination Complaint Process

If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH Department of Justice
or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender
identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Rights I Grants
Management Unit I NH Department of Justice

Subrecipient Discrimination Complamt Process

1 further certify that: the Subrecipient will comply with applicable federal civil rights laws that
prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery of services and has a policy or written
procedure in place for accepting discrimination based complaints from employees and program
beneficiaries and that policy/procedure must be made publically available to program
beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.

-OS

pt
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EXHIBIT K

Certified Standard Assurances

On behalf of the Siibrecipient, and in support of this ̂ plication for a grant or cooperative,
agreement, I certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Depakifcent"),
that all of the following are true and correct:

(1) I have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. I understand that these representatbns will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) I certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the appKcation, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrec^ient will con^ly with aU award requirements and all federal.statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;
b. the Subrec^ient will require all subrecipients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and
c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section ̂ 1 ofthe Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C..§ 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §6102);
b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I ofthe Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) ofthe Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) ofthe Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182^)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b)(13) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
12291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such apphcable statutes (and associated regulations); and
d. on behalf of the Subrecipient, I make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based orrehgious,
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) I assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subrecipients and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's con^liance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) I assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § I0251(a)(17)), I assure that, if any award fiinds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such instituticfn Corhply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United Stales; and
b. subject to par. a, each such institution conqjly with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom; freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.

(9) I assure that, if the Subrecipient is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the apphcation—

Page25of26 SubrecipientInitial(s):
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a. it will comply with, the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose princ^al
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented PoUcing Services (COPS Office), I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(c)(l 1),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law-including, but not limited to,
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act-seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to fiirther effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § 10382(c)(ll).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DO! award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, I assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, are subject to review by the Department, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

Name oi Authorized Signor

ture

Title of Authorized Signor

Date

Pt
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE UNITED WAY is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 30, 1927. 1 further certify that all

fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 65650

Certificate Number: 0006205201

^ ■

Op.

a

4 S

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 13th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Kathy Bizarro-Thunberg, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Secretary of the Board of Granite United Way.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called and held on
September 24. 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Patrick Tufts, President & CEO, Is duly authorized on behalf of Granite United Way to enter Into
contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may In his judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to svhich this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of,New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

MY ••-v;

^gnature of Elected Omcer
Name: Kathy Bizarro-Thunberg
Title: Secretary

COMMJSSION
=  expires
-  ; OCTOBERS

.  I



ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMnMVYYYY)

5/3/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OP INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pol]cy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC.

45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511

Concord NH 03302-0511

JlSfMF-''' Alysaa Woods
(603)224-2562 no,:

ADDRESS: "woodafi rowleysgency. COB,

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COS'ERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A: Hanover Ins - Bedford

INSURED

Granite United Way

22 Concord Street

Floor 2

Manchester NH 03101

INSURER 6:

INSURER C:

INSURER 0:

INSURER E;

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23-24 all linas REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AbbL
iNsn

SUBft
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
/MM/DD/YYYY)

POLICY EXP
/MMmO/YYYY, LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GE4ERAL LIABILHY

E  1 X 1 OCCUR
SBV9003371 1/1/2023 1/1/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE s  1,000,000

CLAIMS^D
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PRFMLSFS /Fa occurrencel

)  100,000

MEO EXP (Any orte perton) s  10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY s  1,000,000

GEWLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s  2,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 5'!'^ 1 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS. COMP/OP AGO }  2,000,000

Proleaaionai Uabllty t  2,000,000

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABtLITY

eBV9003371 1/1/2023 1/1/2024

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT S  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

HEOULEO

TOS

N-OWNED
TOS

BODILY INJURY (Per perton) $

X

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

sc BODILY INJURY (Per eccldeni) s

X
NC PROPERTY DAMAGE

/Par atMiklanl,
S

s

A

X UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

OCCUR

CLAIMSAtAOE

UHV9003210 1/1/2023 1/1/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE $  1,000.000

AGGREGATE t  1,000,000

DEO * RETENTION S 0 s

A

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY y, ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 1

OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? M 1
(Manditofy In NH) '
II yet. detcribe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

3A Statee; NH, VT

WHVe9»6802 1/1/2023 1/1/2024

V PER OTH-
* STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT S  500,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE S  500.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT S  500.000

DESC

Cov

RIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddiUonel Remirkt Schedule, may be etteched If more tpKe It required)

ering operations of t:ha named insured during the policy period.

NH Dept. o£ Justice
33 Capitol street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE OEUVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATTVE

C Holman, CPCU, CIC/C

ACORD 25(2014/01)
INS0 2 5 (201401)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



W-9Form

(Ftav. October 2018)
Department of the Tmsury
Internal Revenue Swice

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

> Go to www.ir9.gov/PonnW9 for instructions and tho latest Information.

Give Form to the

requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

1 Name (as shown on your Income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

Granite United Way
2 Business name/dlsregartlad entity name. If different from above

(0

a
a.

c
o

. M
o c

H

II
Q. u
£
u

3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose ramo is entered on lint 1. Check only one of the
following seven boxes.

0 IndMdual/sole proprietor or D C Corporation D S Corporation D Partnership Q Trust/estate
single-member LLC

1  I Limited liability company. Enter the tax dassirication (C>C corporation, S»»S corporation, P«Partnorship) ►
Note: Check the approprfata box in the One above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check
LLC If the LLC is classtficd as a single-member LLC that Is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC Is
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Othenvise. a single-member LLC that
te disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for tho tax classification of its owner.

g] Other (see instructions) ► Not-fOr-profIt

4 Exemptions (codes apply only to
certain entities, not IndMduals; see
Instnjcdons on pago 3):

Exempt payee code (If any)

Exemption from FATCA reporting

code (If any)

flllifw to tecebntt euttbe M USJ

6 Address (number, street and apt or suite no.) See instructions.

22 Concord Street
6 City, state, and ZIP code

Manchester, NH 03101

Requester's name and address (optional)

7 List account number(s) here (optlorkal)

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)
Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided rnust match the name given on line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part 1. later. For other
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). if you do not have a number, see How to get a
TIN, later.
Note: if the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name end
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

Social security number

or

Employer klentifieation number

0 2 ~ 6 0 0 6 0 3 3

CertificationPart II
Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:
1. The number shown on this fonm is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. i am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup wfthholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue

Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am
no longer subject to backup withholding; and

3.1 am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and
4. Tbe FATCA code(s) entered on this form (If any) Indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.
Certification instructions. You must cross out Item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, Item 2 does not apply- For mortgage interest paid,
acquisition or abandonment of secured fxcperty, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement ORA). generally, payments
other than Interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the Instructions for Part II, later.

Sign
Here

Signature of
U.$. person >■ Oatae-

General Instructions
Section references are to the internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments
rolatod to Form W-9 and'rts Instructions, such as legislation enacted
after they were published, go to www.lrs.govlFormWS.

Purpose of Form
An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number CTIN) which may be your social security number
(SSN), Individual taxpayer identiflcatiori number (TTIN), adoption
taxpayer ident'rfication number (ATIN), or employer identification number
(EIN), to report on an information return ttie amount paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information
returns Include, but are not limited to, the following.
• Form 1099-iNT (interest earned or paid)

• Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
furids)
• Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)
• Form 1099-6 (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)
• Form 1Q99-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
• Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
• Form 1098 (home mortgage Interest), 109&-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)
• Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
• Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person pnciuding a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN.

tlyou do not retum Form W-9 fo the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withholding. See What Is backup withholding,
later.

Cat No. 10231X Form W-9 (R«v. 10-2018)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Granite United Way, which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2022 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Granite United Way as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Granite United Way and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Granite United Way's ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

Page 1
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Granite United Way's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Granite United Way's June 30, 2021 financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated
November 18, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2021 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Unifonn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
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used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 22,
2022 on our consideration of Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The supplementary schedules of community impact awards to qualified partner agencies and emerging
opportunity grants are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Concord, New Hampshire
November 22, 2022 '
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

2022 2021

Without

Donor/ Time

Restrictions

With

Donor/Time

Restrictions Total Total

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Prepaid and reimbursable expenses
Investments

Accounts and rent receivable

Contributions and grants receivable, net
of allowance for uncollectible contributions

2022 $465,181; 2021 $400,365

$  892,271

78,779

951,443

36,884

$  2,803,207 $

2,055,943

3,695,478 $

78,779

951,443

36,884

2,055,943

921,103

31,049

444,066

76,730

2,902,143

Total current assets 1,959,377 4,859,150 6,818,527 4,375,091

OTHER ASSETS

Property and equipment, net
Investn-jents - endowment

Beneficial interest in assets held by others

1,182,928

11,747 223,395

2,667,867

1,182,928

235,142

2,667,867

1,152,668

260,731

2,171,078

Total other assets 1,194,675 2,891,262 4,085,937 3,584,477

Total assets $  3,154,052 $  7,750,412 $ 10,904,464 $ 7,959,568

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long-term debt
Allocations payable to partner agencies
Donor-designations payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Funds held for others

$  15,016

32,602

468,473

435,762

199,767

12,142

$  - $

414,434

15,016 $

32,602

882,907

435,762

199,767

12,142

14,311

584,224

687,182

186,263

9,669

Total current liabilities 1,163,762 414,434 1,578,196 1,481,649

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities 157,251 157,251 172,347

Total liabilities 1,321,013 414,434 1,735,447 1,653,996

COMMITMENTS (See Notes)

NET ASSETS:

Without donor/ time restrictions

With donor/ time restrictions (Note 9)

1,833,039

7,335,978

1,833,039

7,335,978

572,573

5,732,999

Total net assets 1,833,039 7,335,978 9,169,017 6,305,572

Total liabilities and net assets $  3,154,052 $  7,750,412 $ 10,904,464 $ 7,959,568

See Notes to Financinl Statements. Page 4



GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year ended June 30, 2022 with comparative totals for the year ended June 30,2021

2022 2021

Without

Donor/Time

Restrictions

With

Donor/Time

Restrictions Total

Support and revenues:

Expenses:
Program services
Support services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

13,659,882

539,397

440,247

13,659,882

539,397

440,247

14,639,526 14,639,526

Increase (decrease) in net assets

before non-operating activities

Non-operating activities:
Change in value of beneficial interest in trusts,
net of fees 2022 $15,185; 2021 $12,131

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments
Paycheck Protection Program Loan Forgiveness
Inherent contribution, Seacoast Region (Note 1)
Investment income, net

Total non-operating activities

Net increase in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

1,168,059 1,135,060 2,303,119

Total

Total contributions pledged $
Restricted contributions pledged
Less donor designations
Less provision for uncollectible pledges
Add prior years' excess provision for uncollectible
pledges taken into income in current year

- $

20,432

6,599,672 $

1,878,594

(1,544,281)

(280,293)

6,599,672 $

1,878,594

(1,544,281)

(280,293)

20,432

5,627,124

1,593,987

(1,258,841)
(232,967)

114,020

Net campaign revenue
Support;

Grant revenue

Sponsors and program revenue
Contributed non-financial assets

20,432

34,299

6,653,692

9,489,106

141,950

436,767

6,674,124

9,489,106

141,950

471,066

5,843,323

4,832,836

158,554

35,356

Total support 54,731 16,721,515 16,776,246 10,870,069

Other revenue;

Rental income

Administrative fees

Miscellaneous income

98,131

64,677

3,591

-
98,131

64,677

3,591

96,913

47,863

15,092

Total support and revenues 221,130 16,721,515 16,942,645 11,029,937

Net assets released from restrictions:

For satisfaction of time restrictions

For satisfaction of program restrictions

4,898,245

10,688,210

(4,898,245)
(10,688,210)

-
-

15,807,585 1,135,060 16,942,645 11,029,937

10,269,155

461,753

588,728

11,319,636

(289,699)

- (368,827) (368,827) 489,357

;  (57,958) (28,031) (85,989) 10,899

-■ - - 772,500
. 861,057 861,057 -

150,365 3,720 154,085 134,200

92,407 467,919 560,326 1,406,956

1,260,466 1,602,979 2,863,445 1,117,257

572,573 5,732,999 6,305,572 5,188,315

$  1,833,039 $ 7,335,978 $ 9,169,017 $ 6,305,572

See Notes to Financial Statements. Page 5



GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended June 30, 2022 with comparative totals for the year ended June 30^ 2021

Program services
NH Camps COVID testing
Community impact grants
Public Health Network

211 New Hampshire
Ukraine Relief Fund

Recovery Friendly Workplace
Department of Justice
Whole Village Family Resource Center
Preschool Development

ARPA - Support for Grieving Children
Work United Program
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance

Literacy

Home for All

Leader in Me

CARES ACT - Recovery Friendly Workplace
COVID-19 Relief Fund

CARES ACT - Basic Needs

CARES ACT - Empower Youth
Fuel Our Families

Other program services
Total program services

Supporting Services
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses

United

Worldi

Salaries, Technology dues

employee and c

Grants and benefits telephone dues

awards and taxes Occupancy expenses subscript

$  3,356,914 $ 51,863 $ $ $

1,378,246
/

- •

4,105 , 516,337 14,311 830

- 609,885 - 222,558

684,834 35,559 - -

- 358,362 - -

- 37,260 - -

- 156,405 82,712 12,423

117,500 78,593 - 35

250,000 8,818 -
-

- 122,926 - -

- 94,435 - •

- 24,415 - -

28,015 . - -

300 - - -

- -
-

1

166,445 1,477,231 151,266 131,139 7;

5,986,359 3,572,089 248,289 366,985 7:

366,890 34,464 29,879 K

- 277,817 26,097 22,625 i:

- 644,707 60,561 52,504 2<-.

$ 5,986,359 $ 4,216,796 a>  308,850 $  419,489 $  101

See Notes to Financial Statements.



GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30,2022 and 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from donors $ 9,611,551 $ 7,633,270

Cash received from grantors 9,038,682 4,019,420

Administrative fees 64,677 47,863

Other cash received 141,568 64,007

Cash received from trusts 156,821 92,470

Designations paid (1,245,598) (1,551,848)

Cash received for fimds held for others 2,473 2,464

Cash paid to agencies (1,298,739) (3,394,198)

Cash paid to partners and vendors (12,992,806) (7,150,154)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 3,478,629 (236,706)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (113,314) (41,305)

Purchases of investments (576,549) -

Proceeds from sale of investments - 7,228

Net cash used in investing activities (689,863) (34,077)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of long-term debt (14,391) (13,417)

Net increase (decrease) in cash 2,774,375 (284,200)

Cash, beginning of year 921,103 1,205,303

Cash, end of year $ 3,695,478 $ 921,103

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash payments for:
Interest expense $ 8,071 $ 9,599

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Inherent contribution of investments $ 861,057 $ -

See Notes to Financial Statements. Page 7



GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Activities

Granite United Way is the result of several New Hampshire United Ways merging together to create a single,
efficient organization that covers most of New Hampshire and Windsor Coimty, Vermont Granite United
Way improves lives by mobilizing the caring power of their communities. More than fundraisers, Granite
United Way is a partner in change, working with a broad range of people and organizations to identify and
resolve pressing community issues. Granite United Way works closely with volunteer leadership to invest
donor dollars to help the community leam, earn and be healthy. By focusing on these investment initiatives.
Granite United Way is helping people in new and strategic ways.

Granite United Way conducts annual campaigns in the fall of each year to support hundreds of local
programs, primarily in the subsequent year, while the State Employee Charitable Campaign, managed by
Granite United Way, is conducted in May and June. Campaign contributions are used to support local health
and human services programs, collaborations and to pay Granite United Way's operating expenses. Donors
may designate their pledges to support a region of Granite United Way, a Community Impact area, other
United Ways or to any health and human service organization having 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status. Amounts
pledged to other United Ways or agencies are included in the total contributions pledged revenue and as
designations expense. The related amounts receivable and payable are reported as an asset and liability in
the statement of financial position. The net campaign results are reflected as with donor restrictions in the
accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets, as the amounts are to be collected in the
following year. Prior year campaign results are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in the current
year statement of activities and changes in net assets.

Granite United Way invests in the community through three different vehicles:

June 30, 2022 2021
, Community Impact Awards to partner agencies $ 1,378,246 $ 1,395,459
Donor designated gifts to Health and Human Service agencies 1,544,281 1,258,841
Granite United Way Program services 12,281,636 8,873,696

Total $ 15,204,163 $ 11,527,996

During the current year, the United Way on the Seacoast of NH was merged into the Granite United Way
from United Way of Massachusetts Bay and Merrimack Valley. This resulted in a one-time inherent
contribution of $861,057, which was comprised of New Hampshire Charitable Fund agency endowment
funds. No other assets or liabilities were assumed as part of this transaction.

Note!. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: The financial statements of Grarute United Way (the "United Way") have been
prepared on the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis, revenues and gains are recognized when earned
and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. The significant accounting policies followed are
described below to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements to the reader.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions: The United Way prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the United Way considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The United Way
had no cash equivalents at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Net assets: The United Way reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to
two categories of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions.
Descriptions of these net asset categories are as follows:

Net assets without donor/ time restrictions: Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use

at the discretion of the Board of Directors and/or management for general operating purposes.
From time to time the Board of Directors designates a portion of these net assets for specific
purposes which makes them unavailable for use at management's discretion. For example, the
Board has designated a portion of net assets without donor restrictions as a quasi-endowment (an
amount to be treated by management as if it were part of the donor restricted endowment) for the
purpose of securing the United Way's long-term financial viability.

The United Way has board designated net assets of $11,747 and $13,026 for endowment at June 30,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

Net assets with donor/time restrictions: Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whose use is

limited by donor-imposed, time and/or purpose restrictions.

The United Way reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with donor restrictions if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, the
net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Some net assets with donor restrictions include a situation that assets provided be maintained
permanently (perpetual in nature) while permitting the United Way to expend the income
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor imposed stipulations
or a Board approved spending policy.

Contributions receivable: Campaign pledge contributions are generally paid within one year. The United
Way provides an allowance for uncollectible pledges at the time campaign results are recorded. Provisions
for uncollectible pledges have been recorded in the amount of $280,293 and $232,967 for the campaign
periods ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The provision for uncollectible pledges was calculated at
4.5% of the total pledges for both of the years ended June 30,2022 and 2021.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments: The United Way's investments in marketable equity securities and all debt securities are
reported at their fair value based upon quoted market prices in the accompanying statement of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets in the accompanying
statement of activities. The United Way's investments do not have a significant concentration of credit risk
within any industry, geographic location, or specific location.

Revenue recognition - Contributions: The United Way recognizes contributions received and made,
including unconditional promises to give, as revenue in the period received or made. Contributions
received are reported as either revenues without donor restrictions or revenues with donor restrictions.
Contributions with donor restrictions that are used for the purposes specified by the donor in the same
year as the contribution is received are recognized as revenues with donor restrictions and are reclassified
as net assets released from restrictions in the same year. Promises to contribute that stipulate conditions to
be met before the contribution is made are not recorded until the conditions are met. There were no
conditional promises to give as of June 30, 2022.

Functional allocation of expenses: The statement of functional expenses present expenses by fimction and
natural classification. Expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area of the United Way are
reported as expenses of those functional areas. A portion of general and administrative costs that benefit
multiple functional areas (indirect costs) have been allocated across programs and other supporting services
based on estimates of time and effort.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are carried at cost if purchased and fair value if
contributed. Maintenance, repairs, and minor renewals are expensed as incurred, and major renewals and
betterments are capitalized. The United Way capitalizes additions of property and equipment in excess of
$2,500.

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Years

Building and building improvements 5-31Vz
Leasehold improvements 15
Furniture and equipment 3-10

Operating measure: The United Way has presented the statement of activities and changes in net assets
based on an intermediate measure of operations. The measure of operations includes aU revenues and
expenses that are an integral part of the United Way's programs and supporting activities and net assets
released from restrictions to support operating activities. Non-operating activities are limited to resources
outside of those program and services and are comprised of investment return, the changes in fair value of
the beneficial interest in trusts, and gains and losses on sales and dispositions of assets.

Concentrations of credit risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the United Way to
concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of contributions receivable, substantially all of which are from
individuals, businesses, or not-for-profit organizations. Concentrations of credit risk are limited due to the
large number of donors comprising the United Way's donor base. As a result, at Jime 30, 2022, the United
Way does not consider itself to have any significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to contributions
receivable.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition, the United Way maintains cash accounts with several financial institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At June 30, 2022, there was approximately $3375,000
included in cash in excess of federally insured limits.

Income taxes: The United Way is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The United Way is also exempt from state income taxes by virtue of its ongoing exemption
from federal income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

The United Way has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the United Way's tax positions and concluded the United Way had
maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

'With few exceptions, the United Way is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. Federal or
State tax authorities for tax years before 2019.

Change in accounting principle: In September 2020, the FASB issued. Accounting Standards Update (ASU
2020-07), Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed
Nonfinancinl Assets. This standard is intended to clarify the presentation and disclosure of contributed
nonfinancial assets, including land, buildings, and other items.

Recent accounting pronouncement: In February 2016, the FASB issued. Leases, Topic 842 (ASU 2016-02).
Under ASU 2016-02, at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a liability equivalent to
the discounted payments due under the lease agreement, as weU as an offsetting right-of-use asset. This
standard will be effective for the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2023. Management is currently
evaluating the impact this will have on its financial statements.

Note 3. Pair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10)
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value.

The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving sigruficant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

•  Level 1 - inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the
measurement date. The types of assets carried at Level 1 fair value generally are securities listed in
active markets. The Uruted Way has valued their investments listed on national exchanges at the
last sales price as of the day of valuation.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

•  Level 2 - inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

•  Level 3 - inputs are generally unobservable and typically reflect management's estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. The fair values are
therefore determined using model-based techniques that include option-pricing models, discounted
cash flow models, and similar techniques.

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at June 30, 2022:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds
Mutual funds:

Domestic equity
Fixed income

Fixed income fimds

Corporate bonds
Beneficial interest in assets held by others

Total

$ 16,765 $ 153,577 $ -

70,678 - -

234,586 - -

677,216 - -

- 156,984 -

- - 2,667,867

$ .999,245 $ 310,561 $ 2,667,867

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at June 30,2021:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds
Mutual funds:

Domestic equity
Fixed income

Fixed income funds

Corporate bonds
Beneficial interest in assets held by others

Total

$ 113,295 $ 33,689 $ -

100,093 - -

274,798 - -

150,923 8,476 -

- 45,882 -

- - 2,171,078

$ 639,109 $ 88,047 $ 2,171,078

All assets have been valued using a market approach, except for the beneficial interest in assets held by
others, and have been consistently applied. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets. Prices may be
indicated by pricing guides, sales transactions, market trades, or other sources.

The beneficial interest in assets held by others is valued using the income approach. The value is
determined by calculating the present value of future distributions expected to be received, which
approximates the value of the trust's assets at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

GAAP requires disclosure of an estimate of fair value for certain financial instruments. The United Way's
significant financial instruments include cash and other short-term assets and liabilities. For these financial
instruments, carrying values approximate fair value.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, at cost, at June 30, 2022 2021

Land, buildings and building improvements $  1,440,636 $ 1,440,636

Leasehold improvements 5,061 5,060

Furniture and equipment 484,117 370,804

Total property and equipment 1,929,814 1,816,500

Less accumulated depreciation (746,886) (663,832)

Total property and equipment, net $  1,182,928 $ 1,152,668

Note 5. Endowment Funds Held by Others

Agency endowed funds: The United Way is a beneficiary of various agency endowment funds at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as separate funds designated for the
benefit of the United Way.

In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation may make distributions from the funds to the United
Way. The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation's charitable distribution rate is currently 4% of the fund's
average market value of the trailing 20 calendar quarters.

The estimated value of the future distributions from the funds is included in these financial statements as

required by FASB ASC 958-605, however, aU property in the fund was contributed to The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way.

The United Way received $123,241 and $86,884 from the agency endowed funds during the years ended June
30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Designated fxmds: The United Way is also a beneficiary of eight designated funds at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of ^e resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the
benefit of the United Way. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from
the funds to the United Way. The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation's charitable distribution rate is
currently 4% of the fund's average market value of the trailing 20 calendar quarters.

These funds are not ii^cluded in these financial statements, since although all property in these funds was
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the
United Way, The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation may redirect funds to another organization.

The United Way received $33,580 and $5,586 from the designated funds during the years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021, respectively. The market value of these fund's assets amounted to approximately $801,000 and
$139,000 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 6. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at June 30, 2022 2021

Mortgage financed with a local bank. Interest rate at the 5-year
Federal Home Loan Classic Advance Rate plus 2.5% (4.11% at
June 30, 2022). Due in monthly installments of principal and
interest of $1,908 through December, 2031. CollateraHzed by
the United Way's building located in Plymouth, NH. $ 172,267 $ 186,658

Less portion payable within one year 15,016 14,311
Total long-term debt J__^J57£25^_|___J72£^^

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt at June 30,2022 were as follows:

Year Endine Tune 30,

2023 $ 15,016
2024 15,756
2025 16,532
2026 17,347
2027 18,202
Thereafter

Total $ 172,267

The mortgage note contains a financial covenant for debt service coverage, which is tested annually based on
the year-end financial statements.

The United Way has a revolving line-of-credit with Citizen's Bank with a maximum borrowing limit of
$250,000. The line-of-credit is subject to annual review and renewal. The line-of<redit agreement bears
interest equal to the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus 0.25% (5% as of June 30, 2022) and is secured by all
assets of the United Way. At June 30, 2022, there were no amounts outstanding on this line-of-credit
agreement.

Note 7. Funds Held for Others

The United Way held funds for others for the following projects:

June 30, ^ ^ 2022 2^
Work United Loan Default Program 6,471 4,555
Concord Multicultural Festival 4,286 3,729
Get Moving Manchester 1,140 1,140
Better Together Lakes Region 245 245

Total $ 12,142 $ 9,669
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8. Endowment Funds

The United Way's endowment consists of nine individual funds established for youth programs. Whole
Village Resource Center, and general operating support. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted
endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments. As required
by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of
Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Inteiyretation of Relevant Law: The United Way is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and, thus, classifies amounts in its donor-restricted
endowment funds as net assets with donor restrictions because those net assets are time restricted until the
Board of Directors appropriates such amounts for expenditures. Most of those net assets are also subject to
purpose restrictions that must be met before reclassifying those net assets to net assets without donor
restrictions. The Board of Directors of the United Way has interpreted UPMIFA as not requiring the
maintenance of purchasing power of the original gift amoimt contributed to an endowment fund unless a
donor stipulates the contrary.

As a result of this interpretation, when reviewing its donor-restricted endowment funds, the United Way
considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less than the sum of (a) the original value of
initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to the fund and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are
required to be maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument.

The Uruted Way has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in accordance with the
prudent measures required under the law.

Additionally, in accordance with UPMIFA, the Uruted Way considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and
preservation of the fimd, (2) the purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund, (3)
general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return
from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of the organization, and (7) the
investment policies of the United Way.

Underwater Endowment Funds: From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-
restricted endowment funds may fall-below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the United Way to
retain as a fund of perpetual duration. The United Way did not have any funds with deficiencies of this
nature as of June 30,2022 and 2021.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies: The United Way has adopted investment policies,
approved by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets for the long-term. The United Way seeks to
achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation,
which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable level of risk. Investment risk is measured in terms of
the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocations between asset classes and strategies are
managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable level of risk.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Spending Policy: The United Way does not currently have a spending policy for distributions each year as
they strive to operate within a budget of their current Campaign's income. To date there have been no
distributions from the endowment fund.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of Jime 30,2022 is as follows:

Board-designated endowment

Donor-restricted endowment funds:

Original donor-restricted gift amount
and amoimts required to be maintained
in perpetuity by donor
Accumulated investment gains

Total funds

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  11,747 $ - $

142,652

80,743

11,747 $ 223,395 $

Changes in the endowment net assets as of June 30, 2022 are as follows::

Endowment net assets, Jime 30, 2021

Investment return, net

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2022

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  13,026 $ 247,705 $

(1.279)

11,747 $

(24,310)

223,395 $

Total

11,747

142,652

80,743

235,142

Total

260,731

(25,589)

235,142

Page 16



GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods:

June 30, 2022 2021

Subject to expenditure for specified time period:
Contributions receivable related to campaigns $  1,927,694 $ 2,055,226

Designations payable to other agencies and United Ways (414,434) (261,946)

1,513,260 1,793,280

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Public Health Network services 395,399 574,736

Manchester Proud 677,582 505,095

Preschool Development 1,155,066 -

Mark Stebbins Community Center 231,392 -

Leader in Me 193,988 150,092

Youth Enrichment Partnership - 112,750

Literacy Program 28,871 97,198

Ukraine Relief Funds 98,809 -

Work United 62,854 74,255

Other programs 87,495 6,810

2,931,456 1,520,936

Endowments subject to the United Way's spending
policy and appropriation:
Investments in perpetuity (gift values of $142,652),
which once appropriated, is expendable to support:
General Operations 88,269 97,875

Youth Programs 26,922 29,852

Whole Village Resource Center 108,204 119,978

223,395 247,705

Beneficial interest in assets held by others:
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation 2,667,867 2,171,078

Total net assets with donor restrictions $  7,335,978 $ 5,732,999
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GRANITE UNITED WAV

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

The United Way's financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position date for
general expenditure are as follows:

June 30. 2022 2021
Cash $  3,695,478 $ 921,103

Investments 1,186,585 704,797

Contributions receivable, net 2,055,943 2,902,143

Beneficial interest in trust 2,667,867 ■ 2,171,078

Accounts and rent receivable 36,884 76,730

Total financial assets available xoithin one year 9,642,757 6,775,851

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within
one year, due to:
Restricted by donors with time or purpose restrictions (338,791) (396,233)

Subject to appropriation and satisfaction or donor restrictions (223,395) (247,705)

Agency endowed funds at the NH Charitable Foundation (2,667,867) (2,171,078)

Total amounts unavailable for general expenditure
within one year (3,230,053) (2,815,016)

Amounts unavailable to management without Board's approval:
Board designated endowment (11,747) (13,026)

Total financial assets available to management
$  6,400,957 $for general expenditure xihthin one year 3,947,809

Liquidity Managetmn t

The United Way maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs the
United Way has committed a line of credit of $250,000, which it could draw upon. Additionally, the United
Way has board designated net assets without donor restrictions that, while the United Way does not intend
to spend these for purposes other than those identified, the amounts could be made available for current
operations, if necessary.

Note 11. Pension Fund

The United Way sponsors a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code, whereby electing employees contribute a portion of their salaries to the plan. For the years ended June
30, 2022 and 2021, the United Way contributed $115,852 and $109,028, respectively to employees
participating in the plan.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12. Lease Commitments

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a four year term
commencing September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2021 for an office space in Concord, New Hampshire.
The lease required monthly payments of $3,647 through Au^st 31, 2021. During the current year, the
United Way renewed the lease for two additional terms ending on August 31, 2023. The lease required
monthly payments of $3,756 through August 31, 2022 and requires monthly payments of $3,869 through
August 31, 2023.

During the current year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a four year term
commencing on January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2025 for additional office space in Concord, New
Hampshire. The lease required monthly payments of $1,496 through December 31, 2022, increasing 3% in
each year thereafter.

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing July 15, 2016 through June 30, 2021 for an office space in Manchester, New Hampshire. The
lease required monthly payments of $6,082 through June 30, 2021.

During the current year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2026 for an office space in Manchester, New Hampshire. The
lease required monthly payments of $6,082 through June 30, 2022.

During a prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing on September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2023 for an office space in Lebanon, New Hampshire.
The lease requires monthly payments of $1,638 through August 31, 2022. The rent will increase each year
depending on the consumer price index. The lease requires payments for common costs.

During the prior year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a two year term
commencing on January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2022 for an office space in Berlin, New Hampshire.
The lease requires monthly payments of $191 and $187 through December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

During the current year, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five year term
commencing on April 1, 2022 through March 31, 2027 for an office space in Portsmouth, New Hampshire.
The lease requires monthly payments of $4,400 through March 31, 2023.

Total rent expense for these leases amounted to approximately $161,900 and $162,500 for the years ended
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The United Way leases multiple copier machines under the terms of operating lease agreements. The
monthly lease payments amount to approximately $1,600. The lease expense amounted to approximately
$19,700 for these leases for the year ended June 30,2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The United Way's future minimum lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending Tune 30, Total
2023 S 196,357

2024 129,550

2025 120,789

2026 111,603

2027 42,240
Total $ 600,539

Note 13. Commitments

In Plymouth, the United Way rents space in a building, which they own and occupy to twelve non-affiliated,
non-profit organizations. The monthly lease payments range from $125 to $1,995 per month. For the years
ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the rental income amounted to $98,131 and $96,913, respectively.

Note 14. Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the statement
of activities and changes in net assets included:

Jime 30, 2022 2021
Day of Caring $ 1,074 $
Prizes 225 1,000
Services 9,000 9,875
Office Space 24,000 24,000
Ukraine Relief 436,767

Rental " 284
Supplies ; ^^2

Total $ 471,066 $ 35,356

The Organization recognized contributed nonfinancial assets within revenue. Unless otherwise noted,
contributed nonfinancial assets did not have donor-imposed restrictions.

Contributed services are recognized when the services received would typically need to be purchased if they
had not been provided by donation or require specialized skills and are provided by individuals possessing
those skills. A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in United
Way's program services; however, the value of this contributed time is not reflected in the accompanying
financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet the criteria for recognition.

Contributed Day of Caring contributions are restricted for use during Day of Caring. The estimated fair
value is based on market rates for the items provided.

Contributed prizes are restricted to certain events. The estimated fair values are based on the value of the
prizes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contributed services consist of audit services provided. The estimated fair value is based on the market
value of the services provided.

Contributed office space consists of office space for the 211 New Hampshire program. The estimated fair
value is based on rent of similar spaces.

Contributed Ukraine Relief consists of medical and other supplies sent to Ukraine. The estimated fair value
is based on the cost of goods if purchased.

Contributed rental consists of ATV rentals. The estimated fair value is based on the rental rate.

Contributed supplies consist of general supplies. The estimated fair value is based on the cost of the goods if
purchased.

Note 15. Payment to Affiliated Organizations and Related Party

The United Way pays dues to United Way World\vide. The United Way's dues paid to this affiliated
organization aggregated $96,466 and $154,044 for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Note 16. COVID -19 and the Paycheck Protection Program Loan

In April 2020, the United Way received $772,500 in funds from the federal Paycheck Protection Program
(PPP). The PPP is a loan designed to provide a direct incentive for small businesses to keep their workers on
the payroll. SBA will forgive loans if all employees are kept on the payroll for the specified period of time
and the money is used for payroll, rent, mortgage interest, or utilities.

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the United Way received forgiveness for the PPP loan. The forgiveness
is recognized in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as nonoperating income.

Note 17. Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to confirm to the current year presentation.
Such reclassifications have had no effect on changes in net assets as previously reported.

Note 18. Subsequent Events

The United Way has evaluated subsequent events through November 22, 2022, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and have not evaluated subsequent events after that date. There were
no subsequent events that would require disclosure in financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2022.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

MERRIMACK COUNTY REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Community
Impact

Awards

Blueberry Express Day Care Center $  25,000

Concord Coalition to End Homelessness 20,000

Concord Family YMCA 12,500

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 22,500

Girls Inc. of New Hampshire 3,850

Merrimack Valley Day Care 37,500

New Hampshire Harm Reduction 10,000

Second Start 10,150

The Friends Program:
Foster Grandparents 16,000

Emergency Housing 25,000

The Pittsfield Youth Workshop 25,000

Tiny Twisters Child Care Center 7,500

Waypoint 5,000

$  220,000

Emerging
Opportunity

Grants

City of Concord $  4,434

Concord Police Department 1,139

Franklin Police Department 2,013

Upreach Therapeutic Riding Center 15,660

$  23,246
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIHED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTH COUNTRY REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Community
Impact

Awards

Believe in Books $ 1,998

Boys and Girls Club of the North Country 10,000
Copper Cannon Camp 6,000
Disability Rights Center 2,500
Epilepsy Foundation 500
Grafton County Senior Citizens:
ServiceLink 4,750

RSVP 5,090

Senior Nutrition and Transportation 5,625
Greenpath Financial Wellness 500
NH Legal Assistance 5,000
Northern Human Services 2,250

The Family Resource Center 4,263
Tri-County Commimity Action Program:
Support Center at Burch House 4,262
Tyler Blain House 5,262

Waypoint Parenting Transitional Living Program 5,000
J  63,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION

Year Ended June 30,2022

Community

Impact

Awards

Child Care Center in Norwich $  10,000

Copper Cannon Camp 1,000

Creative Lives 7,000

Cover Home Repair 10,000

Dismas of Vermont 2,500

Disability Rights Center - NH 2,500

Girls Inc. of New Hampshire 3,750

Global Campuses Foundation 4,500

Good Neighbor Health Care 2,650

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council 3,750

Headrest 3,500

HIV/HCV Resource Center 10,000

Mascoma Community Healthcare 20,000

Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health Center 1,500

Safeline 3,000

Second Wind Foundation 5,500

Southeastern Vermont Community Action 14,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30^ 2022

Community
Impact

Awards

(Continued)

Springfield Family Center $  2,500

Springfield Supported Housing Program 5,000

The Family Place 20,000

The Mayhew Program 2,500

The Special Needs Support Center 4,000

TLC Family Resource Center 5,500

Tri-Valley Transit 500

Twin Pines Housing Trust 2,850

Upper Valley Habitat for Humanity: 3,750

Food Services 12,500

Shelter Services 6,750

Upper Valley Trails Alliance 1,000

Visions for Creative Housing Solutions 7,500

Visiting Nurse and Hospice for Vermont and NH 15,000

Waypoint 7,500

West Central Behavioral Health 7,500

Willing Hands Enterprises 5,000

Windham & Windsor Housing Trust 4,500

Immigration Legal Services Program 4,000

Emergency Shelter and Housing Program 2,000

$  225,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

SOUTHERN REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Community
Impact

Awards

Amoskeag Health $ 55,000
Boys & Girls Club of Greater Salem, Inc. 14,280
Boys & Girls Club of Manchester, Inc. 60,000
City Year New Hampshire 20,000
Community Caregivers of Greater Derry 6,246
Copper Cannon Camp 5,000
Daniel Webster Council, Boy Scouts of America 10,000
Disability Rights Center - NH 6,000
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 12,750
Epilepsy Foundation New England 5,524
Girls Inc. of New Hampshire 30,200
Granite State Children's Alliance 5,000

International Institute of New England 7,650
Manchester Community Music School 15,000
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. 10,000
Manchester Police Athletic League 30,000
Mayhew Program 5,000
Media Power Youth 30,000

NeighborWorks Southern New Hampshire 5,000
New Hampshire Legal Assistance 23,320
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

SOUTHERN REGION

Year Ended June 30,2022

Community

Impact

Awards

(Continued)

NHBA Pro Bono Referral Program $ 9,180
Plaistow Community YMCA 12,750
Rockingham Nutrition and Meals on Wheels Program 11,250
Silverthorne Adult Day Center 6,000
Southern New Hampshire University, Center for New Americans 10,000
St. Joseph Community Services, Inc. 16,250
The Granite YMCA 160,000

The Mental Health Center of Greater Manchester 40,200

The Upper Room:
Adolescent Wellness Program 15,300
Greater Derry Juvenile Diversion Program 12,750

University of New Hampshire, STEM Discovery Lab 10,000
UpReach Therapeutic Equestrian Center 15,000
Waypoint 7,500
YWCA 17,850

$  700,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIHED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTHERN REGION

Year Ended June 30^ 2022

Community
Impact
Awards

Believe in Books $  2,000

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc. 1,500

Copper Cannon Camp 3,000

Disability Rights Center 1,250

Epilepsy Foundation New England 501

Green Path Financial Wellness 850

Harvest Christian Fellowship:
Community Caf6 4,000

Feeding Hope Food Pantry 4,500

Helping Hands North, Inc. 4,000

North Conway Community Center 2,000

Northern Human Services 2,250

The Family Resource Center at Gorham 4,000

Tri-County Community Action Program:
Tyler Blain House 1,149

ServiceLink 1,000

$  32,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

CENTRAL REGION

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Community
Impact

Awards

Big Brothers Big Sisters of New Hampshire $  7,500

Boys and Girls Clubs of Central New Hampshire 15,000

Circle Program 5,000

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc. 2,625

Granite State Children's Alliance 5,000

Health First Family Care Center 10,000

Kingswood Youth Center 7,500

Lakes Region Community Developers 12,500

Lakes Region Community Services 12,500

Lakes Region Mental Health Center 10,000

Mayhew Program 2,500

New Beginnings Without Violence and Abuse 10,000

New Hampshire Legal Assistance 2,625

Pemi Youth Center 3,750

Plymouth Area Recovery Connection 8,500

$  115,000
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•RAL AWARDS

Assistance Expenditures
Listing Federal to

Number Expenditures Subrecipients

Huster

ices

uman Services - South Central Public Health Network

.'Ht of Substance Abuse 93.959 S  209.448 $  197,988

93.069 109.654 105,304

.ness 93.889 9.882 8,973

93.354 15.843 14,369

lock Grant 93.758 33.574 33,574

^ices 93.243 8.000 8,000

93.268 1.121 -

97.036 35.491 31,129

21.019 728 -

;ency Response 93.070 1.556 1,556

Human Services - South Central Public Health Netioork 425.297 400,893

uman Services - Capital Area Public Health Network
;nl of Substance Abuse 93.959 116,223 1,757

93,069 102,597 -

.ness 93.889 9,501 -

93.354 1,504 -

lock Grant 93.758 31,736 -

^ices 93.243 6,536 -

93.268 22,803 -

;ency Response 93.070 1,434 •

21.019 16,232 -

97.036 45,203 -

Services - Capital Area Public Health Netioork 353,769 1,757

uman Services - Carroll County Coalition for Public Health
;nt of Substance Abuse 93.959 127,078 -

93.069 74,495 -

.ness 93.889 2.713 -

93.354 1,292 -

lock Grant 93.758 28,064 -

/ices 93.243 7.276 -

93.268 11,264 -

;ency Response 93.070 1,575 -
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iRAL AWARDS (continued)

Humau Services • Carroll County Coalilioti for Public Heallh

•Jehvork Services Chislcr

I Matching Grant Program

itv fCARES)

:f Recovery
ost a primary caregiver during the pandemic

Fund

:f Recovery

uman Services

;t

(COAP)-Recovery

EMA^

land Security and Emergency Management

ices

h. Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services

Awards

IIS schedule.

Assistance

Listing
Number

Federal

Expenditures

Expenditures
to

Subrecipients

97.036

21.019

9,686

3,068

266,511

1,045,577 402,650

21.009 64,861

21.019 250,000 250,000

21.027 213,352 128,191

93.323 3,692,606 3,356,914

16,838

16.838

388,994

149,824

538,818

330,156

132,249

462,405

97.042 42,374

93.788 416,939

$  6,264,527 $  4,600,160
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Notel. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ("the Schedule") includes the federal grant activity of
Granite United Way ("the United Way"), under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2022. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the
Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Unifomt Guidance. Because the schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of the United Way, it is not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the United Way.

Note 2. Basis of Accounting

This schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the United Way's financial statements. The
United Way uses the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures represent only the federally funded
portions of the program. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 3. Program Costs

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of the program
costs. Entire program costs could be more than shown. Such expenditures are recognized following, as
applicable, either the cost principles in the OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit
Organizations, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 4. Major Programs

In accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance, major programs are determined using a risk-based approach.
Programs in the accompanying Schedule are determined by the independent auditor to be major programs.

Note 5. Indirect Cost Rate

The amount expended includes'$510,336 claimed as an indirect cost recovery. The United Way elected to
use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uruted States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Granite United Way as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Granite United Way's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November
22, 2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Granite United Way's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United
Way's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite
United Way's internal control.

A deficienaj in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material xveakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of- deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control
over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Granite United Way's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Govemtnent Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
November 22, 2022
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ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
UNIFORM GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Granite United Way's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Granite United
Way's major federal programs for year ended June 30, 2022. Granite United Way's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for'each of Granite United Way's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Unijbrm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Granite
United Way's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Granite United Way's
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Granite United Way complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30,2022.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Granite United Way is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Granite United Way's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the au^ting procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material xueahtess in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
November 22, 2022
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Section I: Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes X None Reported

Is anv nnnrompliance material to financial statement noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
federal programs: unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major federal programs:

Assistance Listing Numbers

93.323 - NH Camps COVID Testing

Name of federal program or cluster

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

State of N.H. Department of Health and Human
Services

21.027- Recovery Friendly Workplace Coronavirus State and Local Recovery Fund
Governor's Office for Emergency and Relief
Recovery

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type
A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? X  Yes No
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Section D - Financial Statement Findings

No financial statement findings noted.

Section III - Federal Awards Findings

No federal awards findings noted.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Samantha Durfee Director, Public Health $3937.51

(6.25%)



Samantha Durfee, MSW

Objective:
To continue developing professional experiences and education in the areas of social work,
public health, holistic health, and community engagement.

Work Experience:

Granite United Way

Director, Public Health, February 1, 2020 - Present
Director of Community Impact Operations, December 2017 - January 31, 2020
Associate Director of Community Impact Operations, May 2017 - December 2017
Graduate Intern, jun 2016 - May 2017

-  Facilitates multi-sector stakeholder meetings for collaborative initiatives, such
as regional public health advisory council and coalition development, assessing
community needs, developing strategic plans, implementing strategies with a
collective impact model, and monitoring progress and outcomes.

-  Leading the facilitation and management of a $750,000 Preschool Development
Grant aimed to enhance early childhood systems and outcomes for New
Hampshire's "Region 2"/Capital Area.
Supported the planning and development of a Concord Area "Adverse Childhood
Experiences Response Team" (ACERT) in coordination with regional partners.
Currently manages a federal grant supporting this body of work.

-  Facilitated grant making operations with 140+ applicants, multiple regional
volunteer review teams, and United Way staff.

NH Division of Children, Youth & Families
Child Protective Service Worker, ]une 2014-Oct. 201S.

-  Assessed child welfare concerns and family dynamics within a social-ecological
framework, utilizing the Solution Based Casework model.

-  Assisted families with identifying community resources, wrote referrals, and
provided case management.
Used legal intervention when necessary and attended family court hearings.
Utilized clear, professional communication skills for formal written documents
and with clients.

The Red Blazer Restaurant and Pub Concord, NH Oct. 2009 - May 2017
-  Provide professional and friendly service to guests, special groups and vendors.

Keep an organized workspace and appearance.

Community Advisor Plymouth, NH Aug. 2012 - May 2013
-  Served as a student liaison for residents of Plymouth State University.



Education:

University Of New Hampshire, 2016-2017
Master of Social Work

Plymouth State University, 2010-2014
Bachelor of Social Work

Graduated Magna Cum Laude, CPA 3.72

•  Recipient of New Hampshire's National Association of Social Workers "Bachelor's of
Social Work Student of the Year" for 2014

•  Recipient of Plymouth State University's "Social Work Outstanding Community
Service Award" for 2013

Professional Memberships:

New Hampshire Humane Society Board of Directors, September 2020-present

Social Work Volunteer Experience:
Dominican Republic Service Learning Course San Luis, DR Spring 2014

Service learning trip geared to improve an understanding of social justice and social
work interventions within vulnerable, impoverished communities in order to
provide socially conscious aid and support.

Youth Villages Memphis, TN Spring 2013
- Week long, alternative spring break where nine PSU students volunteered at a

residential facility for youth with complex behavioral/mental health needs. Engaged
youth during recreational therapy.

Habitat for Humanity Cleveland, OH Spring 2012
Week long, alternative spring break where nine PSU students.'^helped with the
rehabilitation of two homes with the purpose of creating affordable housing in
partnership with people in need.

Voices Against Violence Plymouth, NH Spring 2011
30 hour volunteer placement at Plymouth's domestic and sexual violence crisis
center. Placement was focused on increasing education and understanding of
domestic violence and to engage in safety planning with victims of violence.

Interests: Ballroom dancing, performing arts, artwork, exploring NH with my pup,
reading, nature, and cooking.



Granite United Way

Granite United Wa/s Mission is to improve the quality of people's lives by bringing together the caring

power of communities.

POSITION DESCRIPTION

POSITION: Director of Public Health FLSA: Exempt

DEPARTMENT: Public Health STATUS: Full-time (37.5 hrs)

REPORTS TO: Vice President of Public Health

INTRODUCTION:

Granite United Way's Vision is to be the preferred way people work together to build a
community that values its collective responsibility to care for each other. All employees at
Granite United Way are integral to our ability to achieve our mission. Performance of job
duties outlined below, in a manner that enables us to follow through on our promises to the
communities we serve, is more than an expectation—it is a standard here at Granite United
Way.

Granite United Way's commitment to advancing the common good in communities throughout
New Hampshire draws power from the social determinants of health model, with an
understanding that factors related to clinical care, healthy behaviors, community safety,
economic stability and educational achievement are clear predictors of how long we live and
how well we live. Granite United Way serves as "host agency" for three regional public health
networks in NH: Capital Area Public Health Network. Carroll County Public Health Network,
and South Central Public Health Network. In addition. Granite United Way invests significant
resources in public health-related strategies across its catchment area, particularly
concerning behavioral health and substance misuse.

RESPONSIBILITIES: This position supports public health strategies supported by Granite
United Way, with particular emphasis on deliverables related to the Continuum of Care for
Substance Use Disorders and Public Health Advisory Council of the Capital Area Public
Health Network. This position works to align processes and priorities to leverage resources to
effectively address the most pressing issues impacting public health in NH. This position also
serves as lead staff for the Merrimack County Community Impact Committee and Community
Review Teams.



Title; Director of Public Health

Position Description
Page 2

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (PUBLIC HEALTH 85% PTE):
1. Provide oversight and coordination of the Continuum of Care for Substance Use

Disorders (SUD) Scope of Work for the Capital Area Public Health Network.
2. Work collaboratively with partners and key stakeholders across the SUD Continuum of

Care, from prevention, treatment, and recovery, as well as Primary Care and Mental
Health, to develop strategic and work plans.

3. Identify and monitor changes in gaps, barriers, assets and gaps across the Continuum
of Care in coordination with other regional initiatives, including the Integrated Delivery
Network (IDN) and Doorways.

4. Develop and align resources to support Continuum of Care strategic and work plans.
5. Update Continuum of Care Development Plan priorities and actions based on progress-

and need.

6. Provide support for current and emerging initiatives that result in increased and/or new
service capabilities that address gaps identified in assets and gaps assessments,
including collaboration with other providers and systems.

o Ongoing support and development for the ACERT initiative in Concord
7. Collaborate with State, regional, and local partners to disseminate information to every

community in the Capital Area region in order to increase awareness of and access to
services.

8. Provide coordination and support to the Public Health Advisory Council (PHAC) of the
Capital Area Public Health Network,and to monitor workplan progress.

9. Contribute to Capital Area CHIP development, implementation and monitoring,
including CHIP evaluation.

10. Encourage alignment among GUW public health related goals, strategies and
outcomes with CHIPs and public health network initiatives when appropriate.

11. Monitor potential funding streams for possible alignment with GUW strategies
addressing public health and substance misuse.

12. Develop grant proposals and maintain funding streams for public health strategies
across GUW Public Health Network catchment areas.

13. Develop and maintain relationships with key community leaders and stakeholders in
the following sectors: nonprofit, business, education, safety, government, health.

14. Provide technical assistance and support to GUW staff, volunteers and stakeholders
concerning best practices in public health and substance misuse.

15. Provide technical assistance and support to public health network staff, volunteers,
and stakeholders concerning data collection/analysis, assessment, strategic planning,
strategy implementation, evaluation, and sustainability.

16.'Partlcipate in education, training and technical assistance opportunities to support
public health strategies.

17. Work with GUW Marketing Team to develop, disseminate, and monitor
communications related to public health strategies supported in the GUW catchment
area.

18. Provide support for GUW contract administration and reporting functions.
19.Represent*Granite United Way in the Merrimack County/Capital Area through

involvement in pertinent committees and task forces.
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. This document
describes the position as it is currently available and is not a contract. Granite United Way retains the right to change or modify
the position description at any time.



Title: Director of Public Health

Position Description
Page 3

20. Develop and maintain strong visibility in Merrimack County/Capital Area communities.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBLITIES (COMMUNITY IMPACT 15% PTE)
1. Plan and facilitate ongoing Merrimack County Community Impact Committee

meetings. ,
2. Plan and facilitate Merrimack County Community Review Team meetings during

annual grant review process.
3. Participate in ongoing Community Impact team meetings.
4. Develop and maintain strong relationships with CIC arid CRT members and Merrimack

County community stakeholders.
5. Represent Granite United Way in the Merrimack County/Capital Area region through

involvement in pertinent committees and task forces.
6. Develop and maintain strong visibility in Merrimack County/Capital Area communities.

OTHER DUTIES:

The Director assists with other tasks as determined by supervisor,

EDUCATION, EXPERIENCE, AND SKILLS REQUIRED:
1. Bachelor's degree in public health, community development/organizing or macro social

work; Master's degree preferred
2. A minimum of 2-3 years' experience in public health systems development, macro

social work, or community development/organizing
3. Experience developing grant and contract proposals
4. Experience developing work plans, reports, strategic plans, and other formal

communications to various stakeholder groups
5. Ability to develop and maintain strong, collaborative relationships with key community

leaders and stakeholders

6. Knowledge of and ability to apply community development/organizing practices and
principles to work effectively with individuals, groups, and communities

7. Significant knowledge regarding all steps of strategic planning, including data
collection/analysis, root cause analysis, logic model development, evidence-based
strategy implementation, evaluation, and sustainability planning

8. Thorough understanding of United Way campaign and community impact processes,
as well as marketing principles

9. Proficient in Microsoft Office, databases and web-based applications (internet, email,

social media)

10. Ability to follow written and verbal instruction
11. Excellent verbal and written communication skills

ENVIRONMENT:

To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. This document
describes the position as It is currently available and is not a contract. Granite United Way retains the right to change or modify
the position description at any time.



Title: Director of Public Health

Position Description
Page 4

The venue of this position is a general office environment that is clean, well-lighted,
and environmentally comfortable, free of fumes or airborne particles, and only
minimally exposes employees to office solvents limited to those relative to copier
equipment.

This position requires:
1. Minimal requirement to reach at or above shoulder level; occasional reaching below

shoulder level required
2. Ability to travel throughout the territory required
3. Ability to work a flexible schedule, which may include night and weekends
4. Ability to tolerate prolonged sitting and/or standing and to lift up to approximately 25

pounds to waist high level whenever necessary.
5. Mobility includes regular sitting, some standing and walking.

To perform this job successkilly, an Individual must be able to perform each essential duty satisfactorily. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. This document
describes the position as it Is currently available and is not a contract. Granite United Way retains the right to change or modify
the position description at any time.



FORM NUMBER G-1 (vertion 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows;
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions. _

1.1. state Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Cbncofd, NH 03301 |

1.3. Grantee Name

Claremont Police Department

1.4. Grantee Address

58 Opera House Square '
.Claremont, NH 03743

1.5 Grantee Phone #
■' 1

(603) 504-0240
L_

1.6. Account Number
02-20-20.201510-2479-072-

500574

1.7. Completion
06/30/2024.

w  t
•f

1.8. Grant Limitation |
$80,000 « f

' 1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency'Telephone Number ]
(603)271-3658

if Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By ligaiDgtbis form we certify that we have complied with any public >;
meeting requirement for acceptance of thif eraoti locludioe if applicable RSA 31:95>b.'*. . .. . ^ . :!1.11. G^t^3ignatu^^' 1.12. Name &. Title of Grantee Signor 1 |

K  - -

Name & Title of Grants Signor 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

1,13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s) (
'  Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration .

T.15. Approval by Attorney Genera! (Form, Substance and Eiecution) (if G & C approval requlr^j ^
,;By: PQA£&uf^ Assistant Attorney General, On: 6/7/23/ |
1,16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: / /

through the Agency identified in block l.I (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as **the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and
more particulcirly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

Page 1 of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s);^ VA..
bate:



4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise spedfically provided for herein, the
Qrantee shall pcifom the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire. 9J.
EFFECTIVE DATE: CONffLETION OF PRQ/ECT.

This Agreement, and all ohligatieos of the pa/ties hereunder, shall become
cfTeciive on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Coundl of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon 9J.
signature by the Sute Agency u shown b block 1.14 ("the Effective Date").
Except as otherwise specificaUy provided herein, the Project, bchiding all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
Mock 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C,
attached hereto. 9.5.

Tbe manner of, tod schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.
b accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C, and b consideration 10.
of the satisfiictory performance of the Project, as detcrmmed by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general previsions, the State shall pay the
GrMee the Grant Amount. The Stale dull withhold from the amount otherwise

payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.

The payment by the Slate ofthe Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expoites, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee b the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Prey ecL The State shall have no liabilities to II.
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount 11.1.

Notwithstanding anything b this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circunutances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, 11.1.1
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitatiDD set forth b block 1.8 of 11.1.2
these general provisons. 11.1,3
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.1.4

connection with the performance of the Project, tbe Grantee shall comply with all 11.2.
staniies, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon tbe Grantee, including M .2.1
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA31-95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Dale and the date seven (7) years after the Compleiion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of ail expenses incurred in connection with the I U.2
Project, mcluding, but not Uaiited to. costs of administratiort. transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and sorvicet. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Dale and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Dale, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or tbe Agency pursuant to I I.2J
tubpmgraph 7.1, at any time during tbe Grantee's nomul busbess hours, and as
often u the Stale shall demaod, the Grantee shall make available to the State all 11.2.4
records pertabbg to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the Stale to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that 12.1.
term is hereinafter defmed), and other information relatbg to all matters covered
by this Agreemeiil. As used b this paragraph, "Cranlec" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform 12.2.
tbe Project. The Grantee warrants Ihsl all personnel engaged b the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project under ell applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it ̂ 11 not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee, 12J.
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged b a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any pason who has a contractual relaiionthip with
the Sute, or who is a Sute officer or enqtloyee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be (he rcpresenutive of the Sute hereunder. In the event
of any dispute h^eunder, the blerpreution of (his Agreement by the Grant 12.4.
Officer, and his/her decision on any ̂spute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in (his Agreement, the word "datt" shall mean all inforouticn and things 13.
developed or obubed during (he perfennance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordbgs, video reeordings, pictorial
reproductions, <^wbgs, analyses, graphic represenutions.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Cmnpletion Date the Grantee shall grant to
(he Sute, or any person designated by it, uiu-estricted access to all data for
cxamnation, du^icatien, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No dau shall be su^'cct to copyright in the United Sutcs or any other country by
anyone other than (he State.
On and after the Effective Date all dau, and any property which has been received
from the Sute or purchased with fiinds provided bt thai purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of (he Stale, and shall be returned to the Sute
upon demaod or upon termination of this Agreement fet any reason, whichever
s^l first occur.
The Sute, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publiah, discloae, distribute and otherwise use, b whole or b part, all data.
CONOmONAL NATURE OR AQREEMENT. NotwithsUndbg anything b
this Apeemeni to (he contrary, all obUgaticns of the Sute hereunder, includiRf,
without limiution, the continuance of payments hereuoder, an contbgcnt upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the Sutc
be liable for any paymenU hereunder b excess of such available or apprepriated
funds. In (he event of a nduction or tmninalion of (hose ftmdt, the Sute shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become avaiUUe, ifever, and
shall have tbe right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon givbg the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more ofthe followbg acts or^ooussions ofthe Grantee shall constitute
an event of de&ult hereunder (haetrufto referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfrctorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to mainuin, or permit access to, the records required heretmder; or
Failure to perform any ofthe other covenants and conditions of this AgreemenL
Upon the eccurreoce ofany Event of Default, the Sute may take any one, or more,
or all, of the following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying (be Event of Dcfrull and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser spocification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of (be notice;.and if the Evem of Dc&ult is not
timely remedied, iermbate this Agreement, cfTective two (2) days after givbg tbe
Grantee notice of termination; and
Give (he Grantee a written ntxice speci lybg (be Event of Debull and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
from the dale of nich notice until such lime as the State determines that the

Qrantee has cured (he Event of De&ull shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set offagainst any other obligation (he State ouy owe to the Q^lee any damagm
the State suffers by reason ofany Evem of Default; and
Treat (he agreement as breached and pursue toy of its remedies at law or b equity,
or both.

TERMINATION.

b the evem of any early termination of (his Agreement for any reason other (hah
the completion of the Project, tbe Gramee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
bier than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describbg in detail all Project Work
performed, and ibeGrant Amoum earned, to tod includbg (he date oftennnatica
b the event of Termination under pangr^ths 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall emitb
tbe Grantee to receive (hat portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

b the evem of Termbation under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of (bete general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State thai! in no
event relieve the Onnlee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State bs>b result of the Grantee's breach of its oblipiioos
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything b this Agrcemem to tbe contrary, either the Sute or.
except where notice debull has been given to (he Grantee hereunder, (he Grantee,
may termiiale this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Otamee,
and no represeoutive, officer or employee ofthe Sute ofNew Hampshire or of
the governing body of tbe locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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IS.
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17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

tpprovsl of the undertiking or carrying out of fuch Prciject, shell pulicipale in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects hii or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly iiUerested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuruary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Oianlee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of 18.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the Stale. Neither the Grantee nor any of its ofGecrs,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shall have authority
to bind the State nor are they entitled >10 any of the benefits, workmen's
compettsation or emoluments provided by the Suie to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the Sute. None of the Project Work dull be sub^tracted or
subgranied by the Grantee other than u set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of (he State. 20.

INDEMNIFICATION. The Grantee shall defend, indeomify and hold harmless
the State, its ofBcert and employeca, from and against any and all losses suffered
by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties isscrted apinsl the State, its ofBcers and employees, by or on behalf 21.
of any person, on account of^ based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the Grantee or
tubcontncior, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein conuined shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity ofthe State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the Stale.
This covenant shall survive the (ernunation of this agreement. 22.
INSURANCE.

The GrvMee shall, at its own expense, obtain ud maintain in force, or shall 2).
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
dtlain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the follovriog
insurance:

Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees enpged in the performance of (he Ptoject, and
Genera! liability insurance apinst all daims ofbodily itvuriea, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggreple for bodily injury or death any one incident, and $500,000 for properly
damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subpangraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be tlx standard
form employed in the State ofNew Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the Stale, certincales of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no lata than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No &ilure by the Slate to enforce any provisjons hereof
aflo any Event of Debult shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event No' express waiver of any Event of Deiauh
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such &ilure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the Sute to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any ftutbcr or other default on the pan of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postap
prepaid, in a Uraied Sutea Post OfSee addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by (he parties hereto and only afler a|^ovai of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govereer ai>d Council of the Sute
of New Hampshire, ifrequired or by the signing SUte Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OP AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the Sute of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to ibe benefit ofthe parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of (be "subject" blank arc used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of (he parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not inteod to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and undcrsunding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Claremont Police Department as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as '*Subrecipient") shall be compliant
at all times with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below, which are subject to annual review.

1. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail
providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary.
The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with these
requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.gov.

2 The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a fmding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal fmancial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a
copy of the fmding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C 20531. For additional information
regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grahts-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded
funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and the Office
for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply)
with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of2002 (34 U.S.C. §
11182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681,1683, 1685-86);
and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also comply with Ex.
Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations;
Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships
With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ implementing
regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly
rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required . Prior approval
requests require additional justification.
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EXHIBIT A

5. The Subrccipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be
billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or
supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the
NHDOJ.

V

6. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future years.

7. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards)

are considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract. The DOJ reserves the
right to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs or
withholding of funds.

8. To the extent required to comply with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, Subrecipient
shall complete an audit at the end ofthe Subrecipient's fiscal year ending after June 30, 2022

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a response to the
current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters written as a result
of the audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to DOJ within one month of the time of
receipt by the Subrecipient accompanied by an action plan, if applicable, for each fmding or
questioned cost.

9. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the direct cost
principles

detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 7.1 and 7.2 of the standard provisions,

program and financia] records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Subrecipient for 5
(five) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report as per requirements from the
Treasury Office of Inspector General.

11. RESTRJCTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING

It is understood and agreed between the parties that no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for
the purpose of obtaining additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if
authorized under that law."

12. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS

The following are attached and signed: Certiftcation Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements;
Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other
Responsibility Matters; Certiftcation Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act Con^liance;
Certification Regarding
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EXHIBIT A

Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted
Programs; and Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
Compliance."

13. COPELAND ANTI-KJCKBACK ACT

All contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for construction or repair using funds under this grant shall
include a provision for compliance with Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 USC 874) as
supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each
Subrecipient, subcontractor or Subrecipient shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any
person en^loyed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The Subrecipient should report all suspected
violations to DOJ.

14. PROCUREMENT

Subrecipient shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post Federal Award
Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on financial procurement (2 CFR 200
Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post Federal
Award Requirements - Property Standards)

15. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT

Subrecipient shall submit a final report electronically to the DOJ grant officer by e-mail or other
electronic means subsequently designated by DOJ of the uses of the grant funds through June 30,
2023, and shall break down the reporting by facility location at the town level. In the event that
Subrecipient has not demonstrated that the grant funds have not been expended for allowable costs of
at least the amount of this grant, the excess grant funds shall not be paid and will lapse.

16. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PIl)

Any "subrecipient" at any tier must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient)-(l) creates, collects, uses,
processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable
information (PI!)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2)
uses or operates a "Federal information system" (0MB Circular A-130).
The subrecipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach
of PII to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit by the end of the
business day in which.the breach becomes known.

17. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must—
A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will be
funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the subrecipient properly verifies the employment
eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)( 1)
and (2).

I

;/
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EXHIBIT A

B. Notify all persons associated with any subrecipient who are or will be involved in activities under
this award of both-

1. this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and
2. the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking, make it unlawful,
in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be notified
ofthe award requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated provisions of 8
U.S.C 1324a(a)(l)and(2).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance
with this award condition in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention requirements, as well as
records of all pertinent notifications and trainings. '

2. Monitoring
The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this
condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may be
obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure
compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in hiring process
For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this award"
specifically includes (without limitation) any and all subrecipient officials or other staff who are or
will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole or in
part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-verify
For purpose of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment
eligibility, any subrecipient may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov),
provided an appropriate person authorized to act on behalf ofthe subrecipient uses E-Verify (and
follows the proper E-Verify procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a
"Final Nonconfomation") to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the
United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the Virgin
Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any subrecipient at any tier, or
any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or
nondiscrimination law.
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EXHIBIT A

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any
subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law,
including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the E-
Verify website (https://www.e-vcrify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Vcrify
employer agents can email E-Verify at E-VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award
acceptance.

18. The subrecipient agrees to submit quarterly performance reports

On the performance metrics identified by NHDOJ, and in the manner required by NHDOJ. This
information on the activities supported by the award funding will assist in assessing the effects that
VOCA Victim Assistance funds have had on services to crime victims within the jurisdiction.

19. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated — in the application for the award (as
approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding announcement
(solicitation), or an associated federal statute — that a purpose of some or all of the activities to be
carried out under the award (whether by a subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set of individuals
under 18 years of age.
Any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment
status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://pjp.g0v/funding/Expl0re/l
nteract-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain
individuals who may interact with participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

20. Certification Regarding EEOP Required

Within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for approval, an acceptable
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28 CFR 42.301 et seq. or a Certification
Form to the Office of Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th Street, NW,
Washington, DC 20531. Failure to submit an approved EEOP or Certification of exemption is a
violation of the Program Guidelines and Conditions and may result in suspension or termination of
funding, until such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. The EEOP reporting tool and
instructions can be found at: https://ojp.gov/about/ocr/faq_eeop.htm

21. Requirements related to "de minimis" irnJirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use
the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(1), and that elects to use the "de
minimis" indirect
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EXHIBIT A

cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election, and must comply with all
associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied
only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.
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EXHIBIT B

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive a grant from the New Hampshire Department of

Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided for direct victim

services provided by the subrecipient using an adverse childhood experiences

response, which is a coordinated system of support focused specifically on
responding and providing services to children affected by trauma as a result of

crime.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on expendittires

described in Exhibit C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (IS)

days following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports

submitted later than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be

considered late and out of con^liance. For example, with an award that begins

on January I, the first quarterly report is due on April 15'*' or 15 days after the
close of the first quarter ending on March 31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant

expenses both state funds and match if provided and to produce those

documents upon request of this office or any other state or federal audit

authority. Grant project supporting documentation shall be maintained for at

least seven (7) years after the close of the Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by

DOJ. Such desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with

Subrecipient and every attempt shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate

the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or Rhonda.J.Beauchemin@doj.nh.gov
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EXmBlT c

- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved

expenditure reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the

DOJ's approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the

Subrecipient's account receivables address per the Financial System of the State

of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement

shall not exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-1 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $80,000.00 of

the total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/2023,

whichever is later, to 06/30/2024, with approved expenditure reports. This

shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient

may apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal

grant end date, not after. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing.

No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs

incurred under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, or after

06/30/2024 or, unless a grant extension is approved in writing by DOJ.

Page 11 of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s); ^
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ExmeiT D

- DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE-

The Subrecipicnt identified in Section 1.3 ofthe Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of Sections 5151-5160 ofthe Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L.
100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the
Subrecipicnt *s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement
execute the following Certification:

Certiflcadon Regarding Drug Free Workplace

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 ofthe
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. I00-6W, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et
seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations were amended and published as Part II of the
May 25, 1990. Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require certification by
Subrecipients (and by inference, sub-Subrecipients and sub-Subrecipients), prior to award,
that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) ofthe regulation
provides that a Subrecipient (and by inference, sub-Subrecipients and sub-Subrecipients)
that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal
year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of
grants, or government wide suspension or debarment.' Subrecipients using this form
should send it to;

Lisa Lamphere
Department of Justice

33 Capitol St
Concord, NH 03301

Lisa.J.Lamphere@doj.nh.gov

(A) The Subrecipient certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Subrecipient *s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about^
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the worlqplace;
(2) The Subrecipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance
programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;
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EXHIBIT P

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will-:—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days
after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices.
Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The Subrecipient may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of
work done in connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county. State, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there arc workplaces on file that are not identified here.

op I- Mif July I. 2023- June 30. 2024
Subrecipient Name Period Covered by this Certification

Name and Title of Authorized Subrecipient Representative

Subrecipient Representative Signature Date
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EXHIBIT E

-LOBBYING-

The Subrccipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to conq)ly with
the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New
Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the
Subrecipient's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 ofthe Grant
Agreement execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Programs (in^cate applicable program covered): American Rescue Plan Act
Contract Period.- July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or

employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an

employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal

contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant,

loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-Subrecipient or sub-

Subrecipient).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a

Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of

Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement
(and by specific mention sub-Subrecipient or sub-Subrecipient), the undersigned shall

con^lete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award document for sub-awards at ail tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and

contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when

this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite

for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.
Any person who &ils to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of
not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

S^brecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

Subrecipient Name Date
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EXHIBIT F

-DEBARMENT-

The.Subrecipient identified in Section 1,3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR
Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further
agrees to have the Subrecipient's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the Grant Agreement execute the following Certification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement, the Subrecipient is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily
result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the Subrecipient
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the DOJ determination whether to enter
into this transaction. However, failure of the Subrecipient to furnish a certification or an
explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DOJ determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
Subrecipient knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Goverrunent, DOJ may terminate this transaction for cause or
default.

(4) The Subrecipient shall provide immediate written notice to DOJ, to whom this Grant is
submitted if at any time the Subrecipient learns that its certification was erroneous when
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier
covered transaction," '^participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal,"
"proposal," and 'Voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in
the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:
45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The Subrecipient agrees by submitting this Grant that, should the proposed covered
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DOJ.

(7) The Subrecipient further agrees by submitting this Grant that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DOJ, without modification, in
all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered

transactions.

(8) A Subrecipient in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of Subrecipient in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous.
A Subrecipient may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility
of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Non-procurement
List (of excluded parties).
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EXHIBIT F

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good foith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a Subrecipient is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a
Subrecipient in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
government, DOJ may terminate this transaction for cause or defrult.

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other

Responsibility Matters • Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The Subrecipient certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal
department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant been convicted of or

had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal

offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a
public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public

transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of

embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,

making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a

governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the

offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of this certification; and

(d) have not, within a three-year period preceding this Grant, had one or more

public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause orde&uh.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the

statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to

this Grant.

L\ly
Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrccipicnt's Representative Title:

Subrecipient Name Date
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EXHIBIT G

-CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees by signature of
the Subrecipient's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Grant

Agreement, to execute the following certification:

By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Subrecipient agrees to make
reasonable efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with

Disabilities Act of 19i

Sil^recipient Representative Signature Subfecipient's Representative Title

ylr/r
Subrecipient Name Date
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EXHIBIT H

-CERTIFICATION

PUBLIC LAW 103-227, PART C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE-

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro
Children Act of 1994, requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor
facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or
regularly for provision o f health, day care, education, or library services to children under
the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through
State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.
The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of ̂cilities used for inpatient
drug or alcohol treatment.
Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $ 1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative
con^liance order on the responsible entity.
By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Subrecipient certifies that it will
con^ly with the requirements of the Act.

The Subrecipient further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be
included in any subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all
Subrecipients shall certify accordingly.

Subr^ipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

Subrecipient Name Date
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-Assurance Of Compliance Nondiscrimination In Federally Assisted Programs

0MB Burden Disclosure Statement-

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15
minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the
collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other
aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
the Office of Management and Budget (0MB), Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400),
Washington, DC 20503.

The Subrecipient agrees to con^ly with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L.
88-352), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318,
Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub.
L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135), Title VIII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284). In accordance with the above laws and regulations
issued pursuant thereto, the Subrecipient agrees to assure that no person in the United
States shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity in which the Subrecipient receives Federal
assistance.

Applicability and Period of Obligation In the case of any service, financial aid, covered
employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased, or improved with Federal
assistance extended to the Subrecipient by DOJ with federal CARES Act funds, this
assurance obligates the Subrecipient for the period during which Federal assistance is
extended. In the case of any transfer of such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or
structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which Federal
assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Subrecipient for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.

Employment Practices Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide
employment or where the Subrecipient's employment practices affect the delivery of
services in programs or activities resulting ̂ m Federal assistance extended by DOJ, the
Subrecipient agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex,
age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include,
but are not limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion,
demotion, transfer, rates of pay, training and participation in upward mobility programs; or
other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance The Subrecipient shall require any individual, organization, or
other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or subleases for the purpose of
providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with laws
and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written
assurance form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure
compliance is not relieved by the collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records The Subrecipient agrees to compile and maintain
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EXHIBITI

information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a result of the Subrecipient's
receipt of Federal assistance from DOJ. Such information shall include, but is not limited
to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related data
necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the
basis of prohibited discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color,
national origin, sex, age and disability; (3) data regarding covered employment including
use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries of the
program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak
or understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the
program and related information adequate for determining whether the location has or will
have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; and (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national origin,
sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program.

The Subrecipient agrees to submit requested data to DOJ, the U.S. Department of Treasury
or 0MB regarding programs and activities developed by the Subrecipient from the use of
CARES Act funds extended by DOJ upon request. Facilities of the Subrecipient (including
the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books, accounts, and
other sources of information pertinent to the Subrecipient's compliance with the civil rights
laws shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an
officer or employee of DOJ, the U.S. Department of Treasury or 0MB specifically
authorized to make such inspections.
This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all
Federal grants, loans, contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or
other Federal assistance extended after the date hereof, to the Subrecipient by DOJ
including installment payments oti account after such data of application for Federal
assistance which are approved before such date. The Subrecipient recognizes and agrees
that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and
agreements made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek
judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the Subrecipient, the
successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose signatures appear
below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Subrecipient.

Subrecipient Certification
The Subrecipient certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the
grant, it will comply with all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will
be furnished to the Subrecipient upon written request to DOJ).

C\ //
Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

ateSubrecipient Name
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-CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE-

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA)requires Subrecipients
of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after
October 1, 2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-
tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial award is l^low $30,000 but subsequent
grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to
the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation
Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity

2) Amount of award

3) Funding agency

4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5) Program source

6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7) Location of the entity

8) Principle place of performance

9) Unique identifier ofthe entity (SAM#)

10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, phis 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law
109-282 and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and
Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the
Subrecipient's representative(s), as identified in Sections 1.11 ofthe Grant Agreement
execute the following Certification:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.
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EXHIBIT J

^ [h/
Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

Subrecipient Name Date

As the Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

I. The UEI number for your entity is:_NYNHWG7TN2F |

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to U2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to U2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

^NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:
4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:
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EXHIBIT K

-EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES-

I, L3.L^\Wv>o^ [responsible official], certify that

Claremont Police Department has con^leted the EEO reporting tool

certification within the last two years at: httP8;//oip.gov/about/Dcr/fad eeop.htm on

[date]

It is understood that subrecipients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipients with less than SO en^loyees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOP Training Requirements for Subrecipients

[official that completed training] has con^leted

the EEOP training at https://oip.gov/about/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-traininp.htm on:

[date]. The EEOP training must be completed at least once every
two years. /j,

DOJ Discrimination Complaint Process

If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH Department of Justice
or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender
identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Rights I Grants
Management Unit I NH Department of Justice

Subrecipient Discrimination Complaint Process

I further certify that: the Subrecipient will comply with applicable federal civil rights laws that
prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery of services and has a policy or written
procedure in place for accepting discrimination based complaints from employees and program
beneficiaries and that policy/procedure must be made publically available to program
beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.
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Cerrificd Standard Assurances

On behalf of the Subrecipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement, I certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the following are true and correct:

(1)1 have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. I understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) I certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, aiKl financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with all award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;
b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecipients to conqily with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and
c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient imderstands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 ofthe Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 ofthe Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §6102);
b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I ofthe Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) ofthe Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) ofthe Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182^)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b)(I3) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
12291 (b)( 13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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EXHIBIT K

c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and

d. on behalf of the Subrecipient, I make the specific assurances set out'in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limit^ to, 2 C.F.R- Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) I assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subrecipients and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) I assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award fimds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § 10251(a)(17)), I assure that, if any award funds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such institution conply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and
b. subject to par. a, each such institution comply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.

(9) I assure that, if the Subrecipient is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the applicationr—
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EXHIBIT K

a. it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.G §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply with requirements of5U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office), I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(cXl 1),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law-including, but not limited to,
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act-seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided imder 34
U.S.C. § 10382(c)(ll).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, I assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and fmancial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for &lse claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications
provided in coimection with such awards, are subject to review by the Department, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

Name of Authorized SigneJ^ Title of Authorized Signor

Signatufe^ Date
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CITY OF

Claremont
RESOLUTION 2023-28

2024 ARPA Claremont Police Department

BE IT RESOLVED by the Claremont City Council, after a public hearing duly noticed, that;

WHEREAS the City of Claremont, New Hampshire has been awarded an American Rescue Plan
Act Grant in the amount of $80,000 for a one-year period to fund the position of ACERT
Coordinator. This position facilitates the Adverse Childhood Experiences Response Team
(ACERT) for the Greater Claremont Area; and

WHEREAS the City would like to accept and expend the funds for their intended purpose;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby authorizes the City
Manager or his designees to undertake all actions and execute all documents as may be required
to accept a grant in the amount of $80,000.00 from the NH Department of Justice to fund the
ACERT Coordinator position; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED to raise and appropriate the sum of $80,000.00 for the Police
Department (from off-setting grant revenue) for the purpose of compensation for said position for
the Claremont Police Department with no impact to the tax rate; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager or his designees are hereby authorized to
execute all documents and undertake all actions as may be required to implement this resolution.
{2/3 Vote Required)

Dated this 24th day of May, 2023, the City of Claremont, County of Sullivan, State of New
Hampshire.

AYES ABSENT O

NAYS 0 ABSTAIN

CERTIFICATION

I, Julia A. Bizzarro, the undersigned officer, hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was
adopted by the City Council of the City of Claremont, New Hampshire, at a meeting duly noticed
and held on May 24, 2023.

P, - r\lJUA, jlSj p.
Julib Bizzarrol (̂rlc fo the CounclT
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NH Public Kin Monofltnwnt ExcheitM CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex^) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter 5^,
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws. Primex' is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs established for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Prlmex^ is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below, in addition, Primex' may extend the same coverage to non-members.,
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to eQ of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, njles, policies and procedure
that are applicable to the members of Prlmex^, including but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence Omit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of llabOity as set forth by the Coverage Documents ar>d Declarations. TheJimIt shown may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is iirhited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Uabillty) end Coverage B (Property
Damage LlabHily) only, Coverage's C (PubOc Officials Errors and Omissions). D (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Ern^oyee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity Is a member in good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may,
however, be revbed at any time by the actions of Prlmei^. As of the date this certificate is issued, the infonnation sat out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is Issued as a matter of infonnation only and confers no rights upon the certiflcata holder. This certificate does not amervj, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Partidpating Uamber Member Number

City Of Ciaremont 141
56 Opera House Square
Ciaremont. NH 03743

Ccmpeny Affording Coverege:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange • Primex'
Bow Brook Place
46 Donovan Street
Concord, NH 03301-2624

1  TypeofCov^gel Effsctfve Osfs-' ExpindonDetei , Umli^ NH Statuto'ry Limits May Apply; If Not!
X Qeneral Liability (Occurrence Form)

Professional Liability (describe)
1/1/2023 1/1/2024 Each Occurranca' $'5,000,000

General Aggregate $ 5,000,000

□ Mad™ □ Occurrence Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp and CoD:

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(Each Aeddunl)

Aggregate

X Workers' Compensation & Employers' Uabillty 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 X  Statutoiy

Each AccldenI $2,000,000

Disease - eaa EmpioyM $2,000,000

Disease - PoHcy LMt

Property (Spedel Risk includes Fire and Theft) BIsnkat Limit, Rtplac«m«nt
Cost (unless otherwise stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTinCATE HOLDER: . Additional Covered Party Loss Payee "^Primex*- NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By: 7Xe*f Pmtttt

-Date: 1/26/2023 mburcenOhhDrltTwx.ofdState of New Hampshire
Department of Justice
33 Capitol St
C^oncord. NH 03301

Please direct inquires to:
Primex* Clalma/Coverage Services

603-226-2641 phone
. 603-226-3833 fu , .



FORM NUMBER G-1 (version 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address

33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Grantee Name

603 Legal Aid
1,4. Grantee Address

93 N State Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Grantee Phone U

(603) 584-4141

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-2

479-072-500575

1.7. Completion Date

06/30/2024

1.8. Grant

Limitation$270,000

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Kathleen Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

(603) 271-3658

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public
meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b-"

1.11. Grantee Signature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signer 1

Steven B. Scudder, Interim Executive Director

Grantee Signature 2 Name & Title of Grantee Signer 2

Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signer 3

1.13 State Agency Signature(s)

CioAA.
1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

KathlMn Carr, Otractor of Administration

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

Assistant Attorney General, On: / / 5/5/23

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /  /

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block I.l (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").
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4.

4.1.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8,1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED. Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Grantee shall perform the Project in, and with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire. 9.2.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required {block 1.16), or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1,14 ("the Effective Date").
Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C.
attached hereto. 9.5.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C,
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT 0. and in consideration 10.
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise

payable to the Grantee under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums required, or
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Project. The State shall have no liabilities to II.
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount. 1 1.1.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, 1 1.1.1
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of 1 1.1.2
these general provisions. 1 1.1.3
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 1 1.1.4

connection with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all 11.2.
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the Grantee, including 11.2.1
the acquisition of any and all necessary permits and RSA 31 -95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the 11.2.2
Project, including, but not limited to, costs of administration, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to 11.2.3
subparagraph 7.1, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as the State shall demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State all. 11.2.4

records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits 12.
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that 12.1.
term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters covered
by this Agreement. As used in this paragraph, "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional, afTiliatcd with, controlled by, or under common ownership
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions

PgRSONNEL.
The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to perform 12.2.
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgrantee, M2.3.
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort
to perform the Project, to hire any person who has a contractual relationship with
the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agreement by the Grant 12.4.
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things 13.
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.

Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.

On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been received
from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the State
upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, the State shall

have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, ifever, and
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.

EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall constitute
an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of Default"):
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or more,
or all, of the following actions:
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of time,
thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and
Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
from the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that the

Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Set off against any other obligation the Slate may owe to the Grantee any damages
the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treal the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date oftermination.
In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Grantee to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Grantee's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee,
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the goveming body of the locality or localities in which the Project is to be
performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
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approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.

14. GRANTEE-S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of 18.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors, and arc neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantecs, shall have authority
to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

15. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
written consent of the State. 20.

16. INDEMNIFICATION, The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless

the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and alt losses suffered
by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penalties asserted against the State, its officers and employees, by or on behalf 21.
of any person, on account of. based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity ofthe State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement. 22.

17. II^SURANCE-
17.1 The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall 23.

require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance:

17.1.1 Statutory workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all 24.
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and

17.1.2 General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 ofthis paragraph shall be the standard
form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantee
shall furnish to the State, certificates of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of (he right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be

construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and arc not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

603 Legal Aid as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as "Subrecipient") shall be compliant at all times
with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below, which are subject to annual review.

1. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail
providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary.
The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with these
requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.gov.

2 The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a
copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information
regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded
funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and the Office
for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient will comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply)
with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. §
11182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 1301-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-86);
and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also comply with Ex.
Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations;
Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships
With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ implementing
regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly
rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required . Prior approval
requests require additional justification.
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EXHIBIT A

5. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be
billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or
supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the
NHDOJ.

6. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future years.

7. 2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards)

are considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract. The DOJ reserves
the right to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs
or withholding of funds.

8. To the extent required to comply with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, Subrecipient
shall complete an audit at the end of the Subrecipient's fiscal year ending.

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a response to
the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters written as a
result of the audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to DOJ within one month of the
time of receipt by the Subrecipient accompanied by an action plan, if applicable, for each finding or
questioned cost.

9. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the direct cost
principles

detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 7.1 and 7.2 of the standard provisions,

program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Subrecipient for 5
(five) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report as per requirements from the
Treasury Office of Inspector General.

11. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING

It is understood and agreed between the parties that no portion of the "Grant" funds may be used for
the purpose of obtaining additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if
authorized under that law."

12. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS

The following are attached and signed: Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace
Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension
and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act
Compliance; Certification Regarding
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EXHIBIT A

Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted
Programs; and Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
Compliance."

13. COPELAND ANTI-ICICICBACK ACT

All contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for construction or repair using funds under this grant shall
include a provision for compliance with Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 USC 874) as
supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each
Subrecipient, subcontractor or Subrecipient shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any
person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The Subrecipient should report all suspected
violations to DOJ.

14. PROCUREMENT

Subrecipient shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post Federal Award
Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on financial procurement ( 2 CFR
200 Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post
Federal Award Requirements - Property Standards)

15. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT

Subrecipient shall submit a final report electronically to the DOJ grant officer by e-mail or other
electronic means subsequently designated by DOJ of the uses of the grant funds, and shall
break down the reporting by facility location at the town level. In the event that Subrecipient
has not demonstrated that the grant funds have not been expended for allowable costs of at
least the amount of this grant, the excess grant funds shall not be paid and will lapse.

16. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

Any "subrecipient" at any tier must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-17-12) if it (or a subrecipient)"(l) creates, collects, uses,
processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable
information (PII)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or
(2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (0MB Circular A-130).
The subrecipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent
breach of PII to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit by the end of
the business day in which the breach becomes known.

17. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must—
A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is

or will
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EXHIBIT A

be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the subrecipient properly verifies the
employment eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of
8U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l)and (2).

B. Notify all persons associated with any subrecipient who are or will be involved in
activities under this award of both—

1. this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and
2. the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking, make it
unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

C. Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be
notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the
associated provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2).

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to
compliance with this award condition in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention
requirements, as well as records of all pertinent notifications and trainings.

2. Monitoring
The recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance
with this condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award
funds may be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions
designed to ensure compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction

A. Staff involved in hiring process
For purposes of this condition, persons "who are or will be involved in activities under this
award" specifically includes (without limitation) any and all subrecipient officials or other
staff who are or will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a position that is or
will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-verify
For purpose of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of
employment eligibility, any subrecipient may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify
(www.e-verify.gov), provided an appropriate person authorized to act on behalf of the
subrecipient uses E-Verify (and follows the proper E-Verify procedures, including in the
event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or a "Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm
employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the United States that is or will be
funded (in whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, the
Virgin Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana islands.
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D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any subrecipient at
any tier, or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable
civil rights or nondiscrimination law.

E. Nothing in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any
subrecipient at any tier, or any person or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed
by law, including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify
visit the E-Verify website (https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-
Verify employer agents can email E-Verify at E-VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before
award acceptance.

18. The subrecipient agrees to submit quarterly performance reports

On the performance metrics identified by NHDOJ, and in the manner required by NHDOJ. This
information on the activities supported by the award funding will assist in assessing the effects that
Victim Assistance funds have had on services to crime victims within the jurisdiction.

19. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated — in the application for the award (as
approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding
announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the
activities to be carried out under the award (whether by a subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set
of individuals under 18 years of age.
Any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's
employment status.
The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gOv/funding/Bxplore/l
nteract-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain
individuals who may interact with participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

20. Certification Regarding EEOP Required

Within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for approval, an acceptable
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28 CFR 42.301 et seq. or a
Certification Form to the Office of Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th
Street, NW, Washington, DC 20531. Failure to submit an approved EEOP or Certification of
exemption is a violation of the Program Guidelines and Conditions and may result in suspension or
termination of funding, until such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. The EEOP reporting
tool and instructions can be found at: https://ojp.gov/about/ocr/faq_eeop.htm

21. Requirements related to "de minimis" indirect cost rate
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EXHIBIT A

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to
use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(1), and that elects to use the
"de minimis" indirect Cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its election,
and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de
minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined by the Part 200
Uniform Requirements.
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-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive a subgrant from the New Hampshire Department

of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred and services provided to improve access

of legal services for victims of crime and direct victim services provided by the

subrecipient including but not limited to expenses for personnel, benefits,

travel, supplies and other.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on expenditures
described in Exhibit C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports

submitted later than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be

considered late and out of compliance. For example, with an award that begins

on January 1, the first quarterly report is due on April 15'^ or 15 days after the
close of the first quarter ending on March 31.

3. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant

expenses both state funds and match if provided and to produce those

documents upon request of this office or any other state or federal audit

authority. Grant project supporting documentation shall be maintained for at

least seven (7) years after the close of the Federal Grant.

4. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by

DOJ. Such desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with

Subrecipient and every attempt shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate

the schedule.

5. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or RJionda.J.Beauchemin@doj.nh.gov
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- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved

expenditure reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the

DOJ's approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the

Subrecipient's account receivables address per the Financial System of the

State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement

shall not exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-1 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $270,000.00 of

the total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/2023,

whichever is later, to 06/30/2024, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient

may apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal

grant end date, not after. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing.

No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or costs

incurred under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, or after

06/30/2024 or, unless a grant extension is approved in writing by DOJ.
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- DRUG-FREE WORICPLACE-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L.
100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the
Subrecipient's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement
execute the following Certification:

Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et
seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations were amended and published as Part II of the
May 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681 -21691), and require certification by
Subrecipients (and by inference, sub-Subrecipients and sub-Subrecipients), prior to award,
that they will maintain a drug-ffee workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation
provides that a Subrecipient (and by inference, sub-Subrecipients and sub-Subrecipients)
that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal
year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of
grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Subrecipients using this form
should send it to:

Lisa Lamphere
Department of Justice

33 Capitol St
Concord, NH 03301

Lisa.J.Lamphere@doj.nh.gov

(A) The Subrecipient certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Subrecipient's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The Subrecipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance
programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
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(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days
after such conviction;

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices.
Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f).

(B) The Subrecipient may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of
work done in connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county. State, zip code) (list each location)

Check n if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

603 Legal Aid July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024
Subrecipient Name Period Covered by this Certification

Steven B. Scudder, interim Executive Director

Name and Title of Authorized Subrecipient Representative

4/25/2023

Subrecipient Representative Signature Date
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-LOBBYING-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New
Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the
Subrecipient's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Grant
Agreement execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Programs (indicate applicable program covered): American Rescue Plan Act
Contract Period; July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 \
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or

employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an

employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal

contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant,

loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-Subrecipient or sub-

Subrecipient).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a

Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of

Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement

(and by specific mention sub-Subrecipient or sub-Subrecipient), the undersigned shall

complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in

accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the

award document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and

contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall

certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when

this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite

for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.

Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of

not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Interim Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

Steven B. Scudder 4/25/2023

Subrecipient Name Date
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-DEBARMENT-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR
Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further
agrees to have the Subrecipient's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the Grant Agreement execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement, the Subrecipient is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily
result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the Subrecipient
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the DOJ determination whether to enter
into this transaction. However, failure of the Subrecipient to furnish a certification or an
explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DOJ determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
Subrecipient knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DOJ may terminate this transaction for cause or
default.

(4) The Subrecipient shall provide immediate written notice to DOJ, to whom this Grant is
submitted if at any time the Subrecipient learns that its certification was erroneous when
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier
covered transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal,"
"proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in
the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:
45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The Subrecipient agrees by submitting this Grant that, should the proposed covered
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DOJ.

(7) The Subrecipient further agrees by submitting this Grant that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DOJ, without modification, in
all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered

transactions.

(8) A Subrecipient in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of Subrecipient in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous.

^ A Subrecipient may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility
of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Non-procurement
List (of excluded parties).
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(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a Subrecipient is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a
Subrecipient in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
government, DOJ may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other

Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

(1) The Subrecipient certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal
department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant been convicted of or
had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a

public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of

embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the
offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of this certification; and

(d) have not, within a three-year period preceding this Grant, had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the
statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to
this Grant.

Interim Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title:

■Steven B. Scudder 4/25/2023
Subrecipient Name Date
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-CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees by signature of
the Subrecipient's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Grant
Agreement, to execute the following certification:

By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Subrecipient agrees to make
reasonable efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with ■

Disabilities Act of 1990.

Interim Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

Steven 8. Scudder 4/25/2023
Subrecipient Name Date
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-CERTIFICATION

PUBLIC LAW 103-227, PART C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE-

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro
Children Act of 1994, requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor
facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or
regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children under
the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through
State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee.
The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient
drug or alcohol treatment.
Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative
compliance order on the responsible entity.
By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Subrecipient certifies that it will
comply with the requirements of the Act.

The Subrecipient further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be
included in any subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all
Subrecipients shall certify accordingly.

Interim Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

Steven B. Scudder 4/25/2023
Subrecipient Name Date
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-Assurance Of Compliance Nondiscrimination In Federally Assisted Programs

0MB Burden Disclosure Statement-

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15
minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the
collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden estimate or any other
aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
the Office of Management and Budget (0MB), Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400),
Washington, DC 20503.

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L.
88-352), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318,
Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub.
L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135), Title VIII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284). In accordance with the above laws and regulations
issued pursuant thereto, the Subrecipient agrees to assure that no person in the United
States shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity in which the Subrecipient receives Federal
assistance.

Applicability and Period of Obligation In the case of any service, financial aid, covered
employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased, or improved with Federal
assistance extended to the Subrecipient by DOJ with federal CARES Act funds, this
assurance obligates the Subrecipient for the period during which Federal assistance is
extended. In the case of any transfer of such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or
structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which Federal
assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Subrecipient for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property.

Employment Practices Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide
employment or where the Subrecipient's employment practices affect the delivery of
services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance extended by DOJ, the
Subrecipient agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex,
age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include,
but are not limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion,
demotion, transfer, rates of pay, training and participation in upward mobility programs; or
other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance The Subrecipient shall require any individual, organization, or
other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or subleases for the purpose of
providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with laws
and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written
assurance form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure
compliance is not relieved by the collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records The Subrecipient agrees to compile and maintain
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information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a result of the Subrecipient's
receipt of Federal assistance from DOJ. Such information shall include, but is not limited
to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related data
necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the
basis of prohibited discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color,
national origin, sex, age and disability; (3) data regarding covered employment including
use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries of the
program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak
or understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the
program and related information adequate for determining whether the location has or will
have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; and (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national origin,
sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program.

The Subrecipient agrees to submit requested data to DOJ, the U.S. Department of Treasury
or 0MB regarding programs and activities developed by the Subrecipient from the use of
CARES Act funds extended by DOJ upon request. Facilities of the Subrecipient (including
the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books, accounts, and
other sources of information pertinent to the Subrecipient's compliance with the civil rights
laws shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an
officer or employee of DOJ, the U.S. Department of Treasury or 0MB specifically
authorized to make such inspections.
This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all
Federal grants, loans, contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or
other Federal assistance extended after the date hereof, to the Subrecipient by DOJ
including installment payments on account affer such data of application for Federal
assistance which are approved before such date. The Subrecipient recognizes and agrees
that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and
agreements made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek
judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the Subrecipient, the
successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose signatures appear
below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Subrecipient.

Subrecipient Certification
The Subrecipient certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the
grant, it will comply with all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will
be furnished to the Subrecipient upon written request to DOJ).

Interim Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

Steven B. Scudder 4/25/2023
Subrecipient Name Date
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-CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE-

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires Subrecipients
of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after
October 1, 2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-
tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent
grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to
the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation
Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity

2) Amount of award

3) Funding agency

4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5) Program source

6) Award title descriptive ofthe purpose ofthe funding action

7) Location of the entity

8) Principle place of performance

9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)

10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law
109-282 and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and
Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the
Subrecipient's representative(s), as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement
execute the following Certification:

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.
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EXHIBIT J

Interim Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient's Representative Title

Steven B. Scudder 4/25/2023
Subrecipient Name Date

As the Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The UEI number for your entity is: XN1CDQ5AC4HW6

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO X YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO ^_YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:
4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Page 22 of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s):
Dale: 4/25/2023



EXHIBIT K

-EEOP REPORirNG, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES-

I, Steven B. Scudder [responsible official], certify that

603 Legal Aid has completed the EEC reporting tool

certification within the last two years at: https://oip.gov/about/ocr/faq ecop.htm on
11/18/2021 [date]

It is understood that subrecipients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipients with less than 50 employees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOP Training Requirements for Subrecipients

Sonya Bellefant (previous Executive Director) [official that completed training] has completed

the EEOP training at https://oip.gov/about/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-training.htm on:

11/18/2021 [date]. The EEOP training must be completed at least once every

two years.

DOJ Discrimination Complaint Process

If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH Department of Justice
or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender
identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Rights I Grants
Management Unit I NH Department oFJustice

Subrecipient Discrimination Complaint Process

I further certify that: the Subrecipient will comply with applicable federal civil rights laws that
prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery of services and has a policy or written
procedure in place for accepting discrimination based complaints from employees and program
beneficiaries and that policy/procedure must be made publically available to program
beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.
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EXHIBIT K

Certified Standard Assurances

On behalf of the Subrecipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement, I certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the following are true and correct:

(1)1 have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. I understand that these representations will be relied upon as material in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) I certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with all award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulations applicable to the award;
b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecipients to comply with all applicable award
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and
c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational
conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any
manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §6102);
b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11 182(b)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b)( 13) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. §
I2291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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c. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and
d. on behalf of the Subrecipient, I make the specific assurances set out in 28 C.F.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipient also understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection).

(6) I assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subrecipients and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-312508), and the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands).

(7) I assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § I025l(a)(l7)), 1 assure that, if any award funds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that are imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and

b. subject to par. a, each such institution comply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.

(9) I assure that, if the Subrecipient is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the application—
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a. it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and
b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office), I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(c)(l 1),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law-including, but not limited to,
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act—seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § 10382(c)(ll).

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, I assure as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or I62I, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ I027I-I0273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, are subject to review by the Department, including by
its Office of the Inspector General.

Subrecipient Representative Signature Title of Subrecipient Representative

4/25/2023

Signature Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that 603 LEGAL AID is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November 01, 1995.1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office Is

concerned.

Business ID: 239384

Certificate Number: 0006216018

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 25th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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Certificate of Authorify

I, Melinda S. Gehris, hereby certify that 1 cm duly elected Co^Choir of 603 Legal -

Aid. I hereby certify that the following is o true copy of o vote taken at o

meeting of the Board of Directors duly called and held on April 13, 2023 at which
d quorum of Directors participated.

Voted: that Steven Scudder, Esquire, Interim Executive Director is, and has been

since prior to March 1, 2023, duly authorized to enter into contracts or

agreements on behalf of 603 Legal Aid with the State of New Hampshire and
any of its agencies or departments and further is and has been authoirzed to

execute any documents which may in his judgment be desirable or necessary

to effect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains

in force and effect as of the date of any contract to which this certificate is

attached.

I further certify that is it understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on

this certificate as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the
position indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of the named individual to

bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, q|l such
limitations are epxressly stated herein.

Date: L■Attest:

Melinda S. Gehris, Board Co-Chair

Mv

COMMISSION %
5  ..^CHI3,202^_; I

'^ssS>



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

04/25/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE

POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S),

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATIONIS WAIVED,

subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not
confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

USI INSURANCE SERVICES LLC/PHS

04041093

The Hartford Business Sen/Ice Center

3600 Wiseman Blvd

San Antonio. TX 78251

CONTACT

NAME:

PHONE (866) 467-8730 p**
(A/C. No. Ext): (A'C. No);

E-MAIL

ADDRESS;

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURED

603 Legal Aid

93 N STATE ST STE 200

CONCORD NH 03301-4334

INSURER A Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424

INSURER B Hartford Fire and Its P&C Affiliates 00914

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE

TERMS. EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR

LTR
TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADDL

INSR

SUBR

WVO
POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF

(MM/nn/YYYYI

POUCY EXP

IMM/DfVY YYYl
LIMITS

A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

X 04 SBA EQ5895 02/21/2023 02/21/2024

EACH (XCURRENCE S2.000.000

claims-made! X loCCUR DAMAGE TO RENTED $500,000

X Genera) Liability MED EXP (Any one persort) $10,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $2,000,000

GEfTL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000

POLICY

OTHER;

X LOC PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG $4,000,000

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

04 SBA EQ5895 02/21/2023 02/21/2024

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT $2,000,000

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person)

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED

AUTOS

SCHEDULED

AUTOS

NON-OWNED

AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per acddeni)

X X
PROPERTY DAMAGE

(Per accident)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-

MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

DED RETENTION $

B

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

N/A 04 WEC NJ8891 02/21/2023 02/21/2024

X
PER

STATUTE

OTH-

ER

ANY

PROPRIETORfl>ARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICERAAEMBER EXCLUDED?

Y/N E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000

E.L DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE $500,000
(Mandatory In NH)

If yes. describe under

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMH* $1,000,000

OSSCRIPnON OF OPeRATtONS/LOCAVONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramarka Schadula, may ba attachad If mora apaca la raqulrad)

Those usual to the Insured's Operations. Certificate holder Is an additional Insured per the Business Liability Coverage Form SS0008 attached to this
policy.

NH Department of Justice

33 CAPITOL ST

CONCORD NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED

BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



INTERNAL REVEhJUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURV

P. 0. BOX 2508

CINCINNATI.. OH 4S201

Employer Idencificacibn Number-:

MAY ,0 1 2000 ou':'"""
17053085'782010

LEGAL ADVICE & REFERRAL CENTER INC ConCact Person:

C/0 STEVEN V CAMERINO MARK G PEARCE ;iD« 31181
33 N MAIN ST ConCacc -Telephone Nurnber:
CONCORD, NH 03301-4930 (.877) 829-SSOO

Our Letter Dated;

January 1.996
Addendum Applies:

No

Dear Applicant;

This modifies our letter of the above date in which we stated chat you
would be treated as an organization that is not a private .foundation until the
expiration of your advance ruling period.

Your exempt status under section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code ao an.
organization described in section 501(c)(3) is still in effect. Based on the
information you submitted, we have determined that you are not a private
foundation within t'he meaning of section 509 (a) of the Code because you are an
organization of the type described in section 509 (a)(1) and 170 (b) (!1) (A) (vi) .

Grantors and contributors may rely on this determination unless the-
Internal Revenue Service publichec notice to the contrary. However.; if you
lose your section 509 (a)(1) status, a grantor or contributor may not rely on
this determination if he or she was in part responsible for, or was aware of.,
the act or failure 'to act, or the substantial or material change on the part of
the organization that resulted in your loss of such status, or if he or she
acquired knowledge chat Che Internal Revenue Service had given notice that you
would no longer be classified as a section 509(a)(1) organizacion.

You are required Co make your annual information return; Form 990 or
Form 990-E2, available for. public inspection for three years after the later
of Che due dace of the return or tl^e date the return is filed. You are. also

required to make available for public inspection your exemption application,
any supporting documents, and your exemption letter. Copies of these
documents are also required to be provided to any individual upon Written! or in
person request without charge other than reasonable fees for copying and
postage. You may fulfill this requirement by placing these documents on, the
Internet. Penalties may be imposed for failure to comply with these
requirements. Additional information is available in Publication 557,
Tax.-Exempt Status for Your, Organization, or you may call our toll free
number shown above.

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum
applies, the addendum enclosed is an integral pare of this letter.

Letter 1050 (DO/CG)
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LEGAL ADVICE & REFERRAL CENTER INC

Because this ieccer could help resolve any questions about your private
foundation status, please keep it in your permanent records.

If you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and
telephone number are shown above.

Sincerely yours,

Steven T. UUlo^

Steven T. Miller

Director, Exempt Organizations

Letter 1050 {DO/CG)



603 LEGAL AID

Financial Statements

With Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

December 31, 2021

and

Independent Auditor's Report

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an

Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

With Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

LSC Grant Recipient #130010



603 LEGAL AID

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pagefs)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT I -3

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Financial Position 4

Statement of Activities 5

Statement of Functional Expenses 6-7

Statement of Cash Flows 8

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 9-16

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES

Schedules of Sub-Recipient Award and Expenses 17-18

Schedule of Support, Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for Legal Services
Corporation Grants 19

FEDERAL COMPLIANCE

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 20

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 21

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With

Government A uditing Standards 22-23

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 24-26

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 27-30

Corrective Action Plan 31-32



^^X^CHON ClXJKAY certified public accountants
C  /^/-v A T T)/^ 608 Chestnut Sircci • Manchester, Ncw:Hampshire 03104
OsT C-OMPANY ir C,/ (603) 622-7070 • Fax: (603) 622-1452 • www.vachonclukay.corn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

603 Legal Aid

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 603 Legal Aid (a nonprofit
organization) which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of 603 Legal Aid as of December 31, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of 603 Legal Aid and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities ofManagementfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about 603 Legal Aid's
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about 603 Legal Aid's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The additional schedules on pages 17-19 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the financial statements. Additionally, the accompanying schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
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procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the additional schedules on pages 17-19 and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in ail material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
June 30, 2022, on our consideration of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering 603 Legal Aid's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited 603 Legal Aid's 2020 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated June 29, 2021. In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Manchester, New Hampshire
June 30, 2022



603 LEGAL AID

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals as ofDecember 31, 2020)

2021 2020

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 440,541 $ 746,243
Grants receivable 302,949 83,685

Prepaid expenses 26,533 5,942
Total Current Assets 770,023 835,870

Property

Furniture and equipment, net 8,481 1»255

Other Assets

Security deposits 4^ 4,400

TOTAL ASSETS $ 778,904 S 841,525

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 37,504 S 51,708
Accrued expenses 1,633 10,518
Advances from grantors 6,000 60,633
Current portion of note payable 120,867

Total Current Liabilities 45,137 243,726

Nonciirrent Liabilities

Note payable, net of current portion 35,816
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 35,816

Net Assets

Without donor restrictions 358,181 210,265

With donor restrictions;

Legal Services Corporation - Property 8,481 1,255
Non-Legal Services Corporation 367,105 350,463
Total Net Assets ^ 733,767 561,983

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 778,904 S 841,525

See notes to financial statements
4



603 LEGAL AID

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31,2021

(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

Without

Donor With Donor Restrictions Total Total

Restrictions LSC Nnn-I.SC Total 2021 2020

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT:

LSC Basic Field Grant $ 910,221 S  910,221 $ 910,221 S  838,842

lOLTA Grant $  241,375 241,375 43,752

Other grants 63,242 S  305,493 368,735 368,735 217,044

Interest income 8 174 174 182 453

Inkind revenue 79,840 79,840 79,840 ■

Contributions 155,149 - 155,149 78,692

PPP Loan forgiveness 156.683 • 156,683 ■

Miscellaneous income 63,468 - 63,468 ♦

Satisfaction of program restrictions 1,335,102 (966,411) (368,691) (1,335,102) - -

Total Revenues and Other Support 1,951,785 7,226 16,642 23,868 1,975,653 1,178,783

EXPENSES:

Program services 1,532,693 - - - 1,532,693 1,136,819

Management and general 271,176 - - - 271,176 99,943

Total Expenses 1,803,869 . - 1,803,869 1,236,762

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 147,916 7,226 16,642 23,868 171,784 (57,979)

Net Assets at Beginning of Year, as restated 210,265 1,255 350,463 351,718 561,983 619,962

Net Assets at End of Year S  358,181 $  8,481 $  367,105 S  375,586 $  733,767 $  561,983

See notes to financial statements
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penses

:r31,2021

>r the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

LSC

Basic Field

Grant

LSC Private

Attorney

Involvement

LSC

TIG

Grant

LSC

TCB

Grant

LSC

COVlD-19

Response Grant Library

NH Bar

Foundation

IQLTA VAWA

$ 336,718

26,379

53.804

416,901

$  78,009

6,268

8,676

92,953

7,954

635

1,083

9,672 $

$ 28,479

2,525

4,164

35,168

5,831

505

913

7,249

$ 81,110

6,308

12,354

99,772

16,801

1,315

2,651

20,767

24,840

4,176

9,462

1,149

2,128

1,806

1,707

440

40,028

918

1,028

3,125

830

976

119

363

212

107

64

28,546

115

18,327

75

322

124

3,105

1,384

56

20

25

2

490

9

5,443

3,142

2,058

243

606

364

2,440

120

8,708

242

658

438

217

28

48

47

69

78

51,640

31

87,682 34,457 18,327 75 5,537 23.366 53,254

21 $  504,583 $ 127,410 $ 27,999 $ $  35,243 $ 12,786 $ 123,138 $ 74,021

20 $  640,334 $ 100,467 $ 27,443 $ 18,232 $  83,092 $ 10,257 $ 43,745

See notes to financial statements
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ODtinued)

1

r Ended December 31, 2020)

VOCA

;Pr6gram:Scryic^

COVID-19

Relief

Funds

Foreclosure

Grant

Low-Income

Tax Clinic

Other

Legal

Services

Total

Program

Services

Management

and

General

2021

Combined

Total 2m

142,317

9,759

10,050

162,126

33,555

2,740

4.963

41,258

47,709

3,719

5,730

57,158

$ 186,642

14,564

28,567

229,773

965,125

74,717

132,955

1,172,797

S 191,898

15,432

28,928

236,258

1,157,023

90,149

161,883

1,409,055

745,360

54,860

112,330

912,550

191

143

250

1,641

1,126

633

62

179

134

141

31

2,587

70

2,094

2,358

67

18

19

11

22

42

28,413

9

17,820

30,556

10,244

632

2,638

1,008

5,427

352

21,921

6,359

55,943

42,941

26,905

3,635

6,112

3,602

9,938

1,129

200,910

7,753

1,028

9,406

5,054

3,260

356

835

676

681

214

14,041

395

584

65,349

47,995

30,165

3,991

6,947

4,278

10,619

1,343

214,951

8,148

1,028

6,604 33,053 96,957 359,896 34,918 394,814

62,066

43,978

19,873

2,067

2,400

3,519

4,869

30

183,969

689

752

324,212

-  162,710 $ $  47,862 $ 90,211 $ 326.730 $ 1,532.693 $ 271,176 $ 1,803,869

;  33,050 $ 22,975 541 $  156,683 $  1,136,819 $  99,943 $  1,236,762

See notes to financial statements
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603 LEGAL AID

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

2021 2020

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $  171,784 $  (57,979)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,028 752

PPP Loan forgiveness (156,683)

Net effect of changes in:
Grants receivable (219,264) (59,510)

Prepaid expenses (20,591) (4,684)

Security deposits 4,000

Accounts payable (14,204) 38,943

Accrued expenses (8,885) 10,518

Advances from grantors (54,633) 60,633

Net cash used by operating activities (297,448) (1 1,327)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (8,254)

Net cash used for investing activities (8,254) •

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from note payable 156,683

Net cash provided by financing activities - 156,683

NET rNCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (305,702) 145,356

CASH - January 1 746,243 600,887

CASH - December 31 $  440,541 $  746,243

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Transactions:
inkind donations received $  79,840

Inkind expenses (79,840)

PPP Loan forgiveness 156,683

$  156,683 $

See notes to financial statements



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

603 Legal Aid, formally Legal Advice and Referral Center, (the 'Entity') was organized as a nonprofit
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Entity is a non-profit corporation
organized for the purpose of providing civil legal assistance to persons financially unable to afford legal
assistance in the State of New Hampshire.

The accounting policies of the Entity conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applicable to nonprofit organizations and the Accounting Guide for LSC Recipients,
except as indicated hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Merger

During May 2021, a merger agreement was executed between New Hampshire Pro Bono Referral
System, a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation, and Legal Advice and Referral Center, the surviving
nonprofit corporation. Consideration paid and received as a result of this merger was commensurate with
the cash settlement value of outstanding receivables and payables of the New Hampshire Pro Bono
Referral System as of the date of the merger, approximately $23,331 and $9,307 respectively. As a result,
no gain or loss on merger, or goodwill or other intangible asset, was recognized. Concurrent to the merger
the name of the merged corporation was amended to "603 Legal Aid".

Basis ofAccounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions and
may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Entity. These net assets
may be used at the discretion of management and the Board of Directors.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

Recognition ofDonor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassifled to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

The Entity recognizes grant and contract funds from Legal Services Corporation (LSC) as conditional.
Revenue is recognized as conditions are met. Funds remaining at year end for which conditions have not
yet been met are reported as an advances from grantor liability. The advance of LSC assets are subject to
the provisions of LSC's Fund Balance Regulation. LSC may, at its discretion, request reimbursement for
expenses, the return of funds, or both as a result of noncompliance by the Entity with the terms of the
grant or contract. If the Entity terminates its legal assistance activities, all unexpended funds are to be
returned to the funding sources. Furthermore, when LSC flinds are used to acquire capital assets, the
donor restriction expires as depreciation expense is recognized on those assets, with the undepreciated
balance reported as net assets with donor restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents is comprised of cash, including
cash on hand, and other highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less.

Contributions and Grants Receivable

Unconditional pledges and grants are recorded as made. These amounts are recorded at the present value
of the estimated fair value. Conditional pledges and grants are recognized only when the conditions on
which they depend are substantially met and the pledges become unconditional. All contributions and
grants receivable are considered current and expected to be received within one year.

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost for purchased iterns and at fair value for donated items and
is summarized as follows:

LSC Non-LSC Total

Furniture

Equipment

Less Accumulated depreciation

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

$  5,102 S  5,102 $ $  - S  5,102 S  5,102

75,024 79,404 - • 75,024 79,404

80,126 84,506 - - 80,126 84,506

(71,645) (83,251) - - (71,645) (83,251)

$  8,481 $  1,255 $ $ $  8,481. $  1,255

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated, three to ten-year lives. The
Entity's capitalization policy is to capitalize assets with a useful life greater than 1 year and a cost greater
than $5,000. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
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603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

All furniture and equipment acquired by the Entity was purchased using LSC funds. The Entity owns
those assets; however, LSC has a reversionary interest in those assets purchased with its fimds.

Depreciation expense was $1,028 and $752 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Accrued Vacation Leave

Employees cannot carry forward earned compensated leave time.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions when cash is received. Donations, and other income are recorded as
revenues as received. Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other
barrier and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.
Amounts received in advance of meeting recognition criteria have been reported as advances from
grantors.

The Entity also has revenue derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and grants, which
are conditional upon certain performance requirements and/or incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as donor restricted revenue. Amounts are reclassified to
support without donor restrictions as expenditures are incurred in compliance with the specific contract or
grant provisions. Amounts not yet received but already awarded are recorded as grants and contracts
receivable.

Donated Services, Materials and Facilities

Donated facilities, supplies, equipment and staff support are recorded as "In-kind" contributions if the
services (a) create or enhance nonfmancial assets or (b) require specialized skills, are performed by
people with those skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the Entity. Donated services recognized as
revenues and expenses in the statement of activities for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
totaled $79,840, and $0, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based
on hours worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include payroll taxes, employee
benefits, space and occupancy, office supplies and expenses, communications, library maintenance, and
insurance, which are all allocated on the basis of time and effort, as noted previously.

11



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of December 31, 2021 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that
need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, grants receivable, accounts payable and other liabilities are carried in the
financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of
the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for certain
accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

NOTE 2—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested in insured cash
sweep accounts in order to maximize investment return while maintaining safety and liquidity. Excess
LSC funds are maintained in FDIC insured checking or money market accounts.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor and other restrictions or internal board designations.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:
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603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

2021 2020

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents $  440,541 $  746,243

Grants receivable 302,949 83,685

Total Financial Assets 743,490 829,928

Less amounts not available to be used within one year:
Net assets with donor restrictions 375,586 351,718

Less LSC restricted net assets - property (8,481) (1,255)

367,105 350,463

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $  376,385 $  479,465

In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the Entity also could draw upon $50,000 of its available
line of credit, as further discussed in Note 5.

NOTE 3—CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains its cash balances with various financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a combined total of $250,000 per financial institution. The
bank balances may, at times, materially exceed federally insured limits. The Entity has not experienced
any losses on such accounts. As of December 31, 2021, deposits with financial institutions in the amount
of $19,438 were uninsured and uncollateralized.

NOTE 4—GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivable, by funding category, consist of the following at December 31, 2021 and 2020: •

2021 2020

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - lOLTA $  120,687 $  32,376

VOCA 40,168 10,768

Campaign for Legal Services 31,964

NHLA - Call Center 31,521

IRS LITC 26,664

Miscellaneous grants 24,401

LSC TIG Grant 15,839 5,541

VAWA 11,705

New Hampshire Law Library 35,000

$  302,949 $  83,685

NOTE 5—LINE OF CREDIT

603 Legal Aid has a revolving unsecured line of credit with a financial institution for $50,000 with a
variable interest rate at December 31, 2021 and 2020 of 6.00% and 5.25%, respectively. No amounts have
been drawn on the line of credit and there was no outstanding balance due as of December 31, 2021 and
2020.
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603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31. 2020)

NOTE 6—LEASE COMMITMENTS

In April 2014 the Entity entered into a rental lease agreement for office space and parking at a monthly
rale of $4,200, which extended through October 31, 2021. Effective November 1, 2021, the Entity
relocated, entering into a new rental lease agreement which extends through October 2024, at a monthly
rate of $8,833.

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $59,666 and $50,400, respectively.

The following is a schedule, by years, of future minimum payments for the operating lease:

Year Ended Annual Lease

December 31. Commitments

2022 $ 105,996

2023 105,996

2024 88,330

$  300,322

NOTE 7—PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

During April 2020, the Entity obtained a note payable under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) in
the amount of $156,683. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Entity applied for and received
principal forgiveness in whole by the Small Business Administration under the CARES Act. For the year
ended December 31, 2021, PPP loan forgiveness of $156,683 has been reported on the statement of
activities as revenues and other support without donor restrictions.

NOTE 8—NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions represent contributions for civil legal services as of December 31, 2021
and 2020, whose use has been limited by the donors as to purpose and future time periods and are as
follows:

2021 2020

LSC Basic Field Grant - Property $ 8,481 $ 1,255
Website and Technology Improvements 37,350
Housing Assistance 39,945
Victim of Crime Act Grant 167 167

New Hampshire Law Library Grant 78,433 91,220
BOA Foreclosure Grant 211,210 259,076

375,586 $ 351,718

NOTE 9—ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

For each of the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, approximately 46% and 69%, respectively, of
total support and revenue was derived from the LSC Basic Field Grant. The future existence of the Entity
is dependent upon the continued support from LSC.
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603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

NOTE 10—LSC SUBGRANTEE AGREEMENTS

The Entity entered into a subgrant agreement with New Hampshire Pro-Bono using funding from Legal
Services Corporation (LSC) Basic Field Grant. The agreement with NH Pro-Bono is to provide attorney
representation - pro bono. The contract period for the subgrant for the year ended December 31, 2021,
was for the period January 1, 2021 through the earlier of December 31, 2021 or date of completed merger
of the program with 603 Legal Aid. The merger of the Pro Bono program with 603 Legal Aid was
executed effective May 31, 2021. The contract period for the subgrant for the year ended December 31,
2020, was for the period January I, 2020 through December 31, 2020. The subgrant agreements,
approved by LSC, totaled $59,532 for each of the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Entity entered into a subgrant agreement with New Hampshire Pro-Bono using funding from Legal
Services Corporation (LSC) COVID-19 Response Grant. The agreement with NH Pro-Bono is to provide
attorney representation - pro bono. The contract period for the subgrant for the year ended December 31,
2020, was for the period June 1, 2020 through May 31, 2021. The subgrant agreement, approved by LSC,
totaled $ 19,990 for the years ended December 31, 2020. No additional awards were made under the terms
of this agreement for the year ended December 31, 2021.

NOTE 11—PENSION PLAN

The Entity sponsors a defined contribution pension plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
section 401(a) for all employees who have attained the age of twenty-one. Contributions are based on a
percentage of the employee's annual compensation; 5% for 2021 and 2020. For the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 pension expense was $49,752 and $33,847, respectively.

NOTE 12—CONTINGENCIES

The Entity receives funds from Federal sources, which require that the Entity use the funds within certain
periods and for purposes specified by governing laws and regulations. If expenses should be found not to
have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Entity might be required to repay the
funds.

No provisions have been made for these contingencies because specific amounts, if any, have not been
determined or assessed by government audits as of December 31, 2021.

NOTE 13—FUTURE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

FASB has issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which the Entity is required to implement for the
year ending December 31, 2022. Management believes that this update will have a potentially significant
impact on the financial statements. The Entity will be required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability for transactions currently identified as operating leases.

NOTE 14—RESTATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

In accordance with LSC Program Letter 20-4, management determined that amounts previously reported
as net assets with donor restrictions attributable to unspent portions of its LSC Basic Field Grant and LSC
COVlD-19 Response Grant, had not met the conditions necessary for recognition and accordingly, have
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603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2020)

been reclassified as advances from grantor. Net assets previously reported as of December 31, 2020, have
been restated as follows:

Donor restricted net assets, December 31, 2020 - as previously reported $ 398,575
Less restatement of advances from grantor (46,857)

Donor restricted net assets, December 31, 2020 ■ as restated S 351,718

NOTE 15—UNEXPENDED LSC AWARDS

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Entity reported $11,614 and $35,243 as advances from
grantor for unexpended portions of its LSC Basic Field Grant and LSC COVID-19 Response Grant.
These funds were fully expended during the year ended December 31, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Entity fully expended each of its LSC awards, with no
unexpended LSC awards reported as advances from grantor.

NOTE 16—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 30, 2022 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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603 LEGAL AID

Schedule of Sub-Recipient Award and Expenses

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Fiscal Year

2021 Grant

2021 Sub-recipient award S 26,210

2020 Budget remaining to be spent 20,656
Total Revenues 46,866

Expenses:

Personnel salaries 34,731

Fringe benefits 9,452

Payroll taxes 2,683
Total Expenses 46,866

Budget remaining to be spent

17



603 LEGAL AID

Schedule of Sub-Recipient Award and Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Fiscal Year

2020 Grant

2020 Sub-recipient award $ 79,522
2019 Budget remaining to be spent 666

Total Revenues 80,188

Expenses:
Personnel salaries 34,514

Fringe benefits 9,687

Space and occupancy 3,094
Office supplies and expenses 4,403
Payroll taxes 5,417
Insurance 530

Miscellaneous 395

Telephone 260
Audit U232

Total Expenses 69,532

Budget remaining to be spent
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iscs and Changes in Net Assets

its

IT:

Private Management LSC LSC LSC

Basic Field Attorney and TIG TCB COVlD-19 Grand

Grant Involvement General Grant Grant Resoonse Grant Total Prooertv Total

$ 503,381 $  127,410 $ 271,176 $  27,999 $  35,243 :$  965,209 $  8,254 $  973,463

174 174 174

503,555 127,410 271,176 27,999 $ 35,243 965,383 8,254 973,637

336.718 78,009 191,898 7,954 28,479 643,058 643,058

26,379 6,268 15,432 635 2,525 51,239 51,239

53,804 8,676 28,928 1,083 4,164 96,655 96,655

416,901 92,953 236,258 9,672 - 35,168 790,952 - 790,952

24,840 3,125 9,406 37,371 37,371

4,176 830 5,054 10,060 10,060

9,462 976 3,260 13,698 13,698

1,149 ■  119 356 1,624 1,624

2,128 363 835 75 3,401 3,401

1,806 212 676 2,694 2,694

1,707 107 681 2,495 2,495

440 64 214 718 718

40,028 28,546 14,041 18,327 100,942 100,942

918 1 15 395 1,428 1,428

- 1,028 1,028

86,654 34,457 34,918 18,327 . 75 174,431 1,028 175,459

503,555 127,410 271,176 27,999 - 35,243 965,383 1,028 966,411

7,226 7,226

1,255

$  8,481

1,255

8,481
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603 LEGAL AID

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Federal Granting Agency/Grant Program/ Grant Number/
Recipient State Agency/Grant Program/State Grant Number

LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION

Received Directly from Legal Services Corporation

Basic Field Grant

Technology Initiative Grant #19043

COVID-19 Response Gram #CV20007

Total Legal Services Corporation

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Pass Through Payments from New Hampshire
Legal Assistance, Inc.

Crime Victim Assistance

Victim of Crime Act Assistance

Pass Through Payments from State of New Hampshire
Department of Justice

Crime Victim Assistance

V2-GX-0500

Pass Through Payments from State of New Hampshire
Department of Justice

Violence Against Women Formula Grants
2020-WF-AX-002I

Total Department of Justice

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Received Directly from U.S. Treasury Department
Low Income Taxpayer Clinics

21-LITC0544-0I-00

Total Department of the Treasury

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Assistance

Listing
Number

09.130010

09.130010

09.130010

16.575

16.575

16.588

21.008

Expenditures

S  910,395

27,999

35,243'
973,637

973,637

40,210

121,114

161,324

23,394

184,718

26,664

26,664

Passed

Through to
Subrecipients

$  26,210

26,210

4,530

4,530

S  1,185,019 $ 30,740

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
20



603 LEGAL AID

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

NOTE 1—GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
award activity of 603 Legal Aid under programs of the federal government for the year ended
December 31, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of 603 Legal Aid, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of 603 Legal Aid.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting which is described in Note 1 to 603 Legal Aid's financial statements. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3—INDIRECT COST RATE

603 Legal Aid has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

21



^^X^CHON CLUKAY cert/fied public accountants
^ ^ "n/^ Chesinui Street • Manchester, New Hampshire 03104
05t C-^OMPANY IT (603) 622-7070 • Fax: C603) 622-1452'* www.vachonclukay.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERT^MEr^TAVDITINGSTAf^DARDS

IndeoentJent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

603 Legal Aid

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and in accordance with the Legal
Services Corporation Compliance Supplement for Audits of LSC Recipients, dated April 2016, the
financial statements of 603 Legal Aid (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses,
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated June 30, 2022.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 603 Legal Aid's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether 603 Legal Aid's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
June 30, 2022
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

603 Legal Aid

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited 603 Legal Aid's (a nonprofit organization) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement and in the
Legal Services Corporation Compliance Supplement for Audits of LSC Recipients, dated April 2016, that
could have a direct and material- effect on 603 Legal Aid's major federal program for the year ended
December 31, 2021. 603 Legal Aid's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, 603 Legal Aid complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program
for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the standards contained in
the Legal Services Corporation Compliance Supplement for Audits of LSC Recipients, dated April 2016;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our
responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of 603 Legal Aid and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 603 Legal Aid's compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.
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Responsibilities of Managementfor Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to 603 Legal Aid's federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on 603 Legal Aid's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform
Guidance, and Legal Services Corporation Audit Guide for Recipients and Auditors and the related
Compliance Supplement will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about 603 Legal Aid's compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government
Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the Legal Services Corporation Audit Guide for
Recipients and Auditors and the related Compliance Supplement, we:

•. Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding 603 Legal Aid's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 603 Legal Aid's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in intemal control over compliance that we identified during the audit

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
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deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we did
identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant
deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that materiaf noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as iterns 2021-001 and 2021-
002, to be significant deficiencies.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on 603 Legal
Aid's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 603 Legal Aid's response was not subjected to
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose

Manchester, New Hampshire
June 30, 2022
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603 Legal Aid
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Section I~Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required

unmodified

yes

yes

yes

X  no

_X none reported

X  no

yes

X  yes

X  no
none reported

unmodified

2CFR 200.516(a)? X  ves no

Identification of major federal programs:

Assistance Listing Numbcr(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

09.130010 Legal Services Corporation - Basic Field Grant

09.130010 Legal Ser\'ices Corporation - Technology Initiative Grant

09.130010 Legal Services Corporation - COVID-19 Response Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B program: S 750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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Section II—Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section III—Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

The following findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a) are required to be
reported.

Finding #2021-001 - Property and Inventory

Legal Services Corporation
Basic Field Grant (ALN# 09.130010)

Criteria or specific requirement: Legal Services Corporation Accounting Guide section 2-2.4 states
physical inventories should be reconciled with property records and accounting records. Differences
should be identified and investigated to determine cause. Additionally, the Legal Services Corporation
property management manual states that capital and non-capital inventory should be documented to
include certain required information fields, including check number, cost, funding source, vendor, and
item identification number.

Condition: A reconciliation between the physical inventory and the accounting records is not performed.
Additionally, through examination of the inventory records it was noted that certain required information
fields were not completed for each item listed.

Questioned Costs: No questioned costs were identified.

Context: The nature of this deficiency is isolated to the design of controls over inventory. The deficiency
was detected through examination of the inventory records and discussions with management.

Effect: Failure to accurately capture all required information while performing the physical inventory and
failure to reconcile that information back to the accounting system increases the risk of non-compliance
with the LSC requirements for asset management and disposal. Furthermore, failure to reconcile the
physical inventory back to the accounting system increases the risk that the information may be
incomplete.

Cause: Items identified in the physical inventory were oflen acquired many years ago, which reduces the
ability to gather certain elements of the required information or significantly increases the amount of time
and effort necessary to do so. Additionally, the current process over the physical inventory does not
incorporate a reconciliation to the accounting system, which would allow for missing information to be
identified.

Recommendation: It is recommended that the inventory system be evaluated to incorporate a
reconciliation process between the results of the physical inventory and the information contained within
the accounting system. Additionally, we recommend that management review the Legal Services
Corporation property management manual to ensure that all required data fields are completed during the
inventory process.
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Management Response: In November 2021, a physical inventory of furniture & equipment currently on-
site was conducted and recorded into a tracking spreadsheet which is formatted to capture all the elements
required by the LSC Fundamental Criteria. Unfortunately, the staff doing and maintaining the
spreadsheet were not provided with the necessary financial components required such as purchase date,
vendor, original cost, etc. The organization was able to identify and record in the depreciation
spreadsheet that information for items being capitalized.

Now that the accounting is no longer outsourced and being done in house the accounting staff will be
maintaining this spreadsheet. Periodic review during the fiscal year will be done to evaluate transactions
in the general ledger, for addition to the report, particularly in the office expense and equipment purchases
accounts.

Finding #2021-002 - Program Income

Legal Services Corporation
Basic Field Grant (ALN# 09.130010)

Criteria or specific requirement: Legal Services Corporation Regulations 45 CFR 1630 Cost Standards
and Procedures requires that income derived from an activity supported in whole or in part with LSC
funds must be allocated to the same project used to track the LSC grant in the same proportion that the
LSC funds were expended in support of the activity.

Condition: 603 Legal Aid receives support from an outside organization towards their call center
activities. The call center activities are also supported by LSC funds. While total expenses incurred
exceeded the amount of additional support and LSC funding received, indicating that 100% of funding
was expended, a proportionate share of the income was not allocated and reported as part of the LSC
program.

Questioned Costs: No questioned costs were identified.

Context: This deficiency was identified through general discussions with management and is considered
to be isolated to the single source of program income received.

Effect: Failure to identify and allocate a proportionate share of income to the LSC program increases the
risk that an excess amount of unspent LSC funds at year end may be accumulated, which may exceed
allowable carryover limits.

Cause: Program income was generated through a new form of revenue source in the current year. No
similar support had been received in prior periods, and the specific requirement to allocate a portion of the
proceeds and additional eligible costs to the LSC program were not considered.

Recommendation: It is recommended that income received be evaluated to determine if it is generated as
a result of activities supported in whole or in part by LSC funds (program income) to determine if the
income is derived from activities already supported through LSC resources. In the event that income is
determined to be program income, it is recommended that a share of the income be allocated to the LSC
program in proportion to the support provided through the use of LSC ftinds in generating the income.

Management Response: An assessment of alternate funding sources that support activities that have been
charged to LSC was evaluated for 2021 by the current staff accountant. Program Income of $63,468 to
support Call Center activity was recorded as unrestricted funds. At year end, salary expense of
approximately $95K charged to LSC throughout the year was reclassifled to unrestricted. The
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reclassification entry did not specifically select Call Center staff wages but rather a non-specific pool of
salary expense was reclassified.

In order to better track use of the support for call center activities, management proposes identifying the
Call Center income as a unique funding source within the accounting system. A monthly reclassification
entry of call center personnel and associated expense equal to the monthly contract income will be
reallocated from LSC to the contract income funding.
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Finding 2021-001

Corrective Action Plan: Property & Inventory Listing

In November 2021, a physical inventory of furniture & equipment currently on-site was
conducted and recorded into a tracking spreadsheet which is formatted to capture all the
elements required by the LSC Fundamental Criteria. Unfortunately, the staff doing and
maintaining the spreadsheet were not provided with the necessary financial components required
such as purchase date, vendor, original cost, etc. The organization was able to identify and
record in the depreciation spreadsheet that information for items being capitalized.

Now that the accounting is no longer outsourced and being done in house the accounting staff
will be maintaining this spreadsheet. Periodic review during the fiscal year will be done to
evaluate transactions in the general ledger, for addition to the report, particularly in the office
expense and equipment purchases accounts.

Name of Responsible Person: Donna Dudley, Staff Accountant

Anticipated Implementation Date of Corrective Action: A review was done for 2022 through the
audit date.

Finding 2021-002

Corrective Action Plan: Program Income

An assessment of alternate flinding sources that support activities that have been charged to LSC
was evaluated for 2021 by the current staff accountant. Program Income of $63,468 to support
Call Center activity was recorded as unrestricted funds. At year end, salary expense of
approximately S95K charged to LSC throughout the year was reclassified to unrestricted. The
reclassiflcation entry did not specifically select Call Center staff wages but rather a non-specific
pool of salary expense was reclassified.

In order to better track use of the support for call center activities, management proposes
identifying the Call Center income as a unique flinding source within the accounting system. A
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monthly reclassification entry of call center personnel and associated expense equal to the
monthly contract income will be reallocated from LSC to the contract income funding.

Name of Responsible Person: Donna Dudley, Staff Accountant

Anticipated Implementation Date of Corrective Action: 5/1/2022

Sincerely,

Sonya GxBellafant, Esq.
Executive Director
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Positions and Salaries

Total Organization 2023 Budgeted Salaries 1,167,717

Percentage of Total for ARPA $171,500 14.7*

Annual

Wages

PTE

Allocated

to Grant

ARPA LSC

Personnel
■  .

Attorney - AW 66,000 0.75 49,500 16,500.00

Paralegal-TBH 50,000 1.00 50,000 '• -

rDO^E'C6'ordinator.-TBH,_ "i U'toTooo^^  'oTeo"1 42,000 '  13,000.00.

DOVE Administrative Support-TBH 50,000 0.60 30,000. .7,500.00

Executive Director -

Sub Total 236,000 - 171,500 $  39,000 $

2.95 14.7*



Angelika Wilkerson

BAR ADMISSION

Admitted November 2017.

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire School of Law, Concord, NH
Juris Doctor, May 2017
Faculty Liaison, Student Bar Association, Fall 2015-Spring 2017

Franklin Pierce University, Rindge, NH
Bachelor of Arts, Social Work and Counseling and Criminal Justice, May 2013
Student Affairs Leadership Award; Psi Chi National Honorary Society; Alpha Chi National Honorary
Society, American Red Cross Blood Drive organizer, Retention Committee liaison.

EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Bar Association, Concord, NH
Domestic Violence Emergency (DOVE) Project Assistant Coordinator, February 2018 - Present
•  Support legal and advocacy professionals to maintain a panel of volunteer attorneys to represent indigent victims

of domestic violence and stalking.
•  Assist victims of domestic violence and stalking in accessing available legal resources.
•  Provide training to attorneys and advocacy professionals on the topics of domestic violence and stalking.

Concord City Prosecutor's Office, Concord, NH
Legal Resident. Spring 2017
•  Represented the State in District Court criminal proceedings.
•  Filed numerous types of motions with the Court.

8"* Circuit Court, Keene, NH
Legal Resident, Fall 2016
•  Observed Family Court hearings and assisted the Judge with drafting orders.
•  Completed legal research for the District, Family, and Probate Court Judges.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Concord, NH
Legal intern. Summer 2016
•  Assisted the Office of Legal Services with research, pleading-drafting, and hearing preparation.
•  Represented New Hampshire Hospital in Probate Court under Rule 36 supervision.

University of New Hampshire Criminal Defense Clinic, Concord, NH
Student Attorney, Spring 2016
•  Represented indigent defendants in misdemeanor criminal cases, under Rule 36 supervision.
•  Conducted client interviews, drafted motions, and prepared cases for trial.



AmeriCorps Victim Advocate, Keene, NH
Victim/Witness Coordinator^ Nov. 2014-Aug. 2015
•  Handled victim services for misdemeanor cases of domestic violence for the Office of the Cheshire County

Attorney.

•  Served as a liaison between victims and prosecutors to assure that victims were being treated fairly and in
accordance with New Hampshire law.

The Office of the Cheshire County Attorney, Keene, NH
Intern, Summer 2014

•  Assisted the County Attorney and Assistant County Attorneys with research, briefing, and trial preparation.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Cheshire County Bar Association, Keene, NH,
Secretary and Events Coordinator, Spring 2018-present
Record meeting notes and plan regular events offered to members of the Cheshire County Bar and legal community.

Franklin Pierce Emergency Medical Services, Rindge, NH,
Supervisor of Operations, Spring 2010-Spring 2013
Trained new members, responded as the commanding officer upon the absence of the Chief and acted as the superior
officer to Senior EMS members and staff.



PAMELA DODGE

EXPERIENCE

JUNE 2021-PRESENT

PRO BONO PROGRAM DOVE PROJECT COORDINATOR, 603 LEGAL AID

Work on RFPs and timely grant report submissions; perform grant related program
activities; monitor compliance with grant conditions, submit timeiy reports to funders.
Project coordination and collaboration with statewide crisis service agencies.
Coordination with other civil legal service providers and social service agencies.

Volunteer lawyer recruitment, coordination, and retention.

Manage client database for applications legal assistance to victims of domestic violence
from intake to case closure for over one hundred cases annually.

Maintain volunteer lawyer data base, from onboarding'on volunteer to case placements

and outcomes.

Development of educational opportunities, featuring experienced lawyers and allied
professionals as trainers for volunteer lawyers and crisis center advocates.
Assist in providing volunteer lawyer support, including arranging interpreters and court
reporters.

Enhance DOVE Project collaborations offering technical assistance to partner crisis center
advocates.

Develop innovative civil legal service delivery models to improve access to justice in NH.
Assist in the implementation of centralized intake for NH low-income residents. Assisted
in the development of a crisis service advocate facilitated online application for victims of
domestic violence and stalking.

•  Collaboration with University of New Hampshire Franklin Pierce School of Law
o  Daniel Webster Scholar Program training creating client ready volunteers upon

graduation.

o  Partnering with faculty and students to promote volunteerism by alums.

NOVEMBER 1998-JUNE 2021

PRO BONO PROGRAM DOVE PROJECT COORDINATOR, NEW HAMPSHIRE BAR

ASSOCIATION

•  Coordinated the DOVE Project; replenished and sustained a volunteer panel of over one
hundred volunteer lawyers to represent victims of domestic violence and stalking at final
protective order hearings.

•  Built strong relationships with NH Bar Members, Pro Bono volunteer lawyers, and the
Judiciary by demonstrating reliability and superior customer service skills.

•  Implemented innovative civil legal service delivery models for underserved and rural
counties in NH.



Provided timely response to membership/public/court requests.

EDUCATION

1997

1-YEAR PARALEGAL CERTIFICATE PROGRAM, FRANKLIN PIERCE COLLEGE

•  Paralegal Student of the Year

1975-1977

ASSOCIATE OF ARTS RETAIL MERCHANDISING, UNIVERSITY OF NE\A/ HAMPSHIRE

SKILLS

•  Ability to collaborate \A/ith community • Event planning for recruitment and
stakeholders and build enduring relationships. recognition of volunteer efforts.

•  Competent at meeting project timelines and • Coordination of educational programming
managing program priorities. to address trending needs of victims of

domestic violence and stalking.

ACTIVITIES

2022 - present

•  Member of the NH Supreme Court Domestic Violence Task Force.

June 2018/ November 2018

•  Participate in exchange programming with international visitors hosted by the World Affairs
Council and sponsored with the International Visitor Leadership Program

March 2018 - May 2018

•  Access and Visitation Legal Services Focus Group - Facilitated by CPR Center for Policy
Research

January 2015 - present

•  Member of Greater Manchester Council Against Domestic & Sexual Violence

March 2010

•  ASA Steering committee on best practices in delivery of services to pro se litigants
seeking civil protection orders

March 2010 - present

•  Development of DOVE Project training program with the Daniel Webster Scholar Program
Director for participating students at UNH School of Law

February 2010 - 2012

•  Service delivery and evaluation workgroup for the development of a Strafford County Family
Justice Center

2009 - present

•  Development of North Country Outreach Project to deliver "unbundled" legal services to pro
se victims of domestic violence in restraining order cases In concert with Response,
Starting Point, and Voices Against Violence Crisis Centers

2008 - 2010

•  NH Legal services statewide planning committee



2003 - present

•  Member of Domestic Violence Advisory Council

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

2001

•  Cited by the ABA as an effective national model for volunteer attorney involvement
2006

•  Rape & Domestic Violence Crisis Center Purple Ribbon Award in recognition of efforts to
eradicate sexual, domestic, and stalking violence

2010

•  Recipient of Pierce Law Class of 2010 class gift
2012

•  Inducted in the NH Coalition Against Domestic & Sexual Violence Hall of Fame



Job Description

Job Title: Domestic Violence Prevention Projects Coordinator
Reports To: Associate Executive Director for Legal Services
Department: Legal Services Department
FLSA Status: Full-time, Exempt

Summary: Manages the day-to-day operations of the DOVE Project and related Pro Bono
domestic violence projects and initiatives. Represents DOVE and the Pro Bono Program within
the domestic violence and legal services networks.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities

DOVE Project Support
•  Volunteer Recruitment and Support

•  Supervise and mentor DV Prevention Project's Assistant Coordinator
•  Attorney recruitment/panel maintenance.
•  Attorney coordination and support.
•  Development and coordination of attorney domestic violence and stalking

educational seminars.

•  Partnership with UNH Franklin Pierce School of Law Daniel Webster Scholar
Project

•  Attend Annual Job Fair and participate in outreach opportunities regarding Pro Bono
opportunities for law students and newly minted lawyers.

•  Recruit and supervise DV Project interns.
•  Develop and coordinate DOVE training for second-year Webster Scholars.

Provide opportunities for Scholars with DOVE attorney volunteer mentors.
•  Project Coordination with Partner Agencies

•  Develop and coordinate crisis service seminars to enhance partnerships with
volunteer lawyers.

•  Provide technical assistance to crisis service advocates for referrals to volunteers.

•  DV Project coordination and collaboration with legal services partners to increase
victims' access to justice.

•  Respond to inquiries from court staffs, law enforcement and social service and
partner legal services providers.
Attend council meetings with DV agency stakeholders; attend DV and stalking
related conferences for enhanced DV and stalking-related education.

•  Case Management

•  Assis with case review assessment as needed for Pro Bono volunteers.

•  Client intake and case development/follow-up.

•  Client Data information input and management of cases from application to
closure.

Extended services for DV victims with collateral legal concerns:

•  Project coordination with partner agencies
•  Development and coordination of statewide seminars for crisis service partners to

enhance partnerships with volunteer lawyers and legal services partners.
Development of case priorities for volunteer panel.
Client intake and case development/follow-up.
Case review assessment regarding available resources.
Case management.
Attorney referrals and support.



•  Process referrals.

Administrative/Other Support:

Provide support to the Director as needed.

Assist with grant applications, reporting and compliance.
Assist with coordinating and staffing referral marathons.
Track DOVE and other DV project statistics.

Develop DV and stalking public outreach brochures and other materials.
Field complaints and elevate to Director when needed.

Assist with volunteer attorney acknowledgments/recognition.

Other duties may be assigned and include:

Copying, scanning, faxing, use of postage meter

Qualifications:
Successful job performance requires an individual's ability to perform each essential duty
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities
to perform the essential functions.

Language Ability:
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals,
technical procedures, or governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business
correspondence, and procedure manuals. Ability to effectively present information and respond
to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers, and the general public.

Math Ability:
Ability to work with mathematical concepts such as probability and statistical inference, and
fundamentals of plane and solid geometry and trigonometry. Ability to apply concepts such as
fractions, percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical situations.

Reasoning Ability:
Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions. Ability to
interpret an extensive variety of technical instructions in mathematical or diagram form and deal
with several abstract and concrete variables.

Computer Skills:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have knowledge of Outlook, Excel,
database software; association management software; and Microsoft Office.

Education/Experience:
BS/BA Degree preferred, Paralegal Degree/Certificate or equivalent experience. 4-6 years of
experience. Domestic violence and stalking awareness and prevention education. Knowledge of
NH Domestic Violence statutes and case law.

Equipment:
Valid driver's license and access to an automobile

Knowledge, Skills and Other Abilities:
•  Sensitivity to the needs of people experiencing financial hardship.
• High level of multi-tasking ability.
•  Ability to prioritize.



•  Flexibility in time, attitude, outlook and with dealing with volunteers.
•  High level of good judgment.
• High level of diplomacy and sensitivity when dealing with challenging volunteers and/or

members of the public.

•  Ability to cope under stressful conditions.

• Ability to boil down information to communicate essential information quickly and effectively.
• Microsoft Office package use ability.
•  Appreciation for value of lawyers and legal system.
•  Commitment to quality.

Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit; use hands; reach
with hands and arms and talk or hear. The employee is occasionally required to stand and lift or
move up to 15 pounds.

Work Environment:

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate.



Job Description

Job Title: Assistant Domestic Violence Prevention Projects Coordinator
Reports To: Domestic Violence Projects Coordinator under supervision of Associate Executive

Director for Legal Services
Department: Legal Services Department
FLSA Status: Full-time, Exempt

Summary: Assists in management of the day-to-day operations of the DOVE Project and related
Pro Bono domestic violence projects initiatives.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities

This staff position will support the Coordinator with the following:
DOVE Project Support
•  Volunteer Recruitment and Support

•  Attorney recruitment/panel maintenance.
•  Attorney coordination and support.
•  Development and coordination of attorney domestic violence and stalking

educational seminars.

•  Partnership with UNH Franklin Pierce School of Law Daniel Webster Scholar
Project
•  Coordinate DOVE training for second-year Webster Scholars.
•  Provide opportunities for Scholars with DOVE attorney volunteer mentors.

•  Project Coordination with Partner Agencies
•  Provide technical assistance to crisis service advocates for referrals to volunteers.

•  Respond to inquiries from court staffs, law enforcement and social service and
partner legal services providers.

•  Attend council meetings with DV agency stakeholders; attend DV and stalking
related conferences for enhanced DV and stalking-related education.

•  Case Management
•  Client intake and case development/follow-up.

•  Client Data information input and management of cases from application to
closure.

Extended services for DV victims with collateral legal concerns:

•  Project coordination with partner agencies
•  Development and coordination of statewide seminars for crisis service partners to

enhance partnerships with volunteer lawyers and legal services partners.
Development of case priorities for volunteer panel.
Client intake and case development/follow-up.
Case review assessment regarding available resources.
Case management.
Attorney referrals and support.
Process referrals.

Administrative/Other Support:

Assist with grant applications, reporting and compliance.
Track DOVE and other DV project statistics

Develop DV and stalking public outreach brochures and other materials
Field complaints and elevate to Director when needed
Assist with volunteer attorney acknowledgments/recognition



Other duties may be assigned and include:

Copying, scanning, faxing, use of postage meter

Qualifications:

Successful job performance requires an individual's ability to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill,
and/or ability required. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with
disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Language Ability:
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals,
technical procedures, or governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business
correspondence, and procedure manuals. Ability to effectively present information and respond
to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers, and the general public.

Math Ability:
Ability to work with mathematical concepts such as probability and statistical inference, and
fundamentals of plane and solid geometry and trigonometry. Ability to apply concepts such as
fractions, percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical situations.

Reasoning Ability:
Ability to define problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions. Ability to
interpret an extensive variety of technical instructions in mathematical or diagram form and deal
with several abstract and concrete variables.

Computer Skills:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have knowledge of Outlook, Excel,
database software; association management software; and Microsoft Office.

Education/Experience:
BS/BA Degree preferred. Paralegal Degree/Certificate or equivalent experience. 4-6 years of
experience. Domestic violence and stalking awareness and prevention education. Knowledge of
NH Domestic Violence statutes and case law.

Equipment:
Valid driver's license and access to an automobile <

Knowledge, Skills and Other Abilities:
•  Sensitivity to the needs of people experiencing financial hardship
•  High level of multi-tasking ability
•  Ability to prioritize
•  Flexibility in time, attitude, outlook and with dealing with volunteers
•  High level of good judgment
•  High level of diplomacy and sensitivity when dealing with challenging volunteers and/or

members of the public

•  Ability to cope under stressful conditions



Job Description: Staff Paralegal - DV specialist

Job Purpose:

Providing high quality legal advice services to victims of domestic violence, sexual assault
and stalking, particularly in the area of housing preservation and income maintenance: to
work collaboratively with the DVAP and DOVE referral systems to facilitate the full
utilization of statewide resources; to collect and manage data for statewide planning and

project evaluation purposes.

Key Responsibilities and accountabilities;

1. Familiarity with NH housing law and public benefits programs.

2. Knowledge of issues pertaining to domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking,

including trauma informed practice.

3. Knowledge of scope of services available to victims of domestic violence, sexual
assault and stalking.

4. Excellent written and oral communication skills.

5. Facility with technology and the accurate collection of data.
6. Thorough knowledge of office operations as they apply to applicant screening and
the provision of legal assistance, particularly the intake manual and screening protocols
and case closing and coding protocols, but not excluding New Hampshire laws or LSC rules
and regulations to the extent necessary.

7. Appropriate manner and sensitivity in dealing with applicants and clients.

8. Highest degree of professionalism in the maintenance of client files, with
particularly reference to professional responsibilities to clients.

9. Professional demeanor and interactions with co-workers, supervisors, and

colleagues in the broader legal community. ,,

10. Collegial and collaborative approach to the delivery of legal services in New
Hampshire.

11. Appropriate team approach to LARC mission.

12. Maintenance of knowledge base necessary to the delivery of assistance in relevant

areas of the law and clear understanding of limits of that knowledge base.



Job Description: Staff Attorney - DV specialist

Job Purpose:

Providing high quality legal advice services to victims of domestic violence, sexual assault

and stalking; to work collaboratively with the DVAP and DOVE referral systems to facilitate

the full utilization of statewide resources; to collect and manage data for statewide

planning and project evaluation purposes.

Key Responsibilities and accountabilities:

1. Licensed to practice law in New Hampshire, in good standing.

2. Experience representing victims of domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking,
including trauma informed practice.

3. Knowledge of scope of services available to victims of domestic violence, sexual
assault and stalking.

4. Excellent written and oral communication skills.

5. Facility with technology and the accurate collection of data.

6. Thorough knowledge of Legal Services Corporation regulations governing services

provided by grantees.

7. Thorough knowledge of office operations as they apply to applicant screening and
the provision of legal assistance, particularly the intake manual and screening protocols
and case closing and coding protocols, but not excluding New Hampshire laws or LSC rules
and regulations to the extent necessary.

8. Appropriate manner and sensitivity in dealing with applicants and clients.
9. Highest degree of professionalism in the maintenance of client files, with
particularly reference to professional responsibilities to clients.

10. Professional demeanor and interactions with co-workers, supervisors, and

colleagues in the broader legal community.

11. Collegia! and collaborative approach to the delivery of legal services in New
Hampshire.

12. Appropriate team approach to LARC mission.

13. Maintenance of knowledge base necessary to the delivery of assistance in relevant
areas of the law and clear understanding of limits of that knowledge base.



FORM NUMBER G-1 (version 11/2021)

GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire;and the,Grantee hereby-
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL RROVISIONS

Identification and Definitions.

1.1: SLtate Agency Name'

NeWHamp'shire Department of Justice

1.2. State.Agency Ad^reM

33 Capitor Street, CbncordyNH 03301

1.3. Grantee Name

Carroll County Attorney's Office

1.4. Grantee Address"

95 Water Village Road-
Ossipec, NH 03864

l.S Grantee Phone #

(603) ■539-7751
.1.6. Account Number
'02-20^20-20151;0-2479-

072-500574

1.7. Completion

Date .06/30/2624

L8. Grant Limitatlbii

$32,500

1.9. Grant Ofiicer for State Agency
Kathleen Cair

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-3658-

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing'this form'we certify that we. have complled/wltH any'publtc
meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant, including If applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. Q/antee Signature 1 >n -1:12. Nanie & Title of GrantMj^ighor 1

Grantee Signature 2 / Name & Title of Grahfee Signer 2

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

1.13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14. Name & Title pf State Agcnc)' Sign6r(s)
^ j / /) /I Kathleen Carr, Director of Administration

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: Assistant Attorney General, On: 6/7/2S
(/1:16. Approval by Govemor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: / /
2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the^State ofNew Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block I.I (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the ;Grantee
identified in block 1 .3 (hereinafter referred to as -'the Grantee"), shall perform that work^identiifTed and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope ofwork
being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

Page 1 of 26 Subrecipienl Initial(s): /^(L .
Date: U 3



4.

4.1,

4.2.

5.

5.1,

5.2,

5;3,

5,4.

•5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

ARl-A COVERED. E.\cept as otherwise specifically provided for herein: ihe
Granice shall pCTform the Projcci in, and with rcsp«i to, the State of New
Hampshire.
EFFECTIVE DATE: COMt'LiniON Ol-- PROJL-CT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
effective on the date on the date.of approval.of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if rcquired„(blc«k 1.16). or upon^
signature by the State Agoicy as shown in'block 1.14 ("the EffectivelDate").
Except as otherwise specifically ixovided herein, the Project, including all reports
required b);,this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entire^' prior to.the date.in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VQUCHERS:.PAYMENT,

The Grant Amount is identified and more"panicularly-dcscfibe'd in EXHIBIT C.
attached hereto.

The manner of. aiid schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C. and in consid^atioh
of the satisfactoiy performance of the Project, as determined b>" the'State. and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Grantee the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise
puyiiblc to the Grantee under ihis subparagraph 5.3 tho« sums required, or
permitted, to'be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA_80;7 through 7-c,
The poyment bj' the Slate^of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the'complete
paymcnfio thc'Grantee for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the. complete,
compensation to the Grantee for the Projcci. The State shall have no liabilities to
the Grantee other than the Grant Amount.

Notwithstanding an)'thihg in this Agreement to the contrar)-, and rvbtwithstahding
unexpected circumstances, in no evcnt'shall the total of all ^yrhcnts authorized,
or aaiialiy made, hereunder exceed the Gram lirhiiatibn set forih in blod; 1.8 of
these general provisions.
COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In

connection wiih the performance ofthe Project, the Grantee .shall comply with all
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, count)', or municipal
authorities which shall impose any obligations or dut)' upon the Grantee, including
the acquistiion of any and all neccssar)- permits and RS A 31 •95-b.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effeciivc Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unlcss otherwise required bj' the grant terms or the Agency, the Grantee
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in :conneciion with the
Project, including, but not lirriitcd to. costs of administration, iransponalion.
insurance, telephone callSi and clerical materials and services. Such accounts
shall be supponcd b>' receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Encctivc~Datc and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Date, unless oihcrwii required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1, at any lime during the Grantee's normal business hours, and as
often as ilic State^all demand. ih'e'Gramce shalt make availaWe to the State all
records pertaining to matters covacd b>' this' Agreement. The Grantee shail
permit the State to audit, e.xaminc, and'fcproducc such records, and to make'audiis
of all contracts, invoices, nwiwials,.payrolls, records of paspnncl.^ia (as thai
term is hereinafter defined), and other infornwiioh relating to all matters covered
b>' this Agreement. As u^ in this paragraph. "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or-fictional, affiliated w;iih, contrdMed by, or uridcr common ownership
with, the entity identified Bs;the.Graniec.in block 1.3 of these provisions
PERSONNEL. , .

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel nwcssar>' to perform
the Project. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the Project shall
be qualified to perform such Project and shall be properly liccnscdand authorized
to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor, subgranicc.
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined"cfron
to perform the Project to hirc'any person who has a contractual rctaiionship wiih
the State, or who is a Slate ofl'iccr or employee, elected of a;^intcd.
The Grant Officer shall bcthc representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder. the interpretation of this Ayecmem b>' the Grant
OfTlcer. and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in this Agreement the word "data" shall rnean all information and things
developed or obtained during the performance of. or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement iiKluding. bui not limited to. all studies, rcpods. files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts,.sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, draw-ings. analyses, graphic representations.

9:2.

9.3.

9;4.

9.5.

10.

1 1.

11:1.

I I.I.I

11.1.2

ll.i:3

11.1.4

11.2.

n.2.1

11.2.2

n.2.3

n.2.4

12,

I2..1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

13.

computer progfariis, computer printouts, notes, Iciicrs, memoranda, pa^. and
documcnts.-all whether finished or itrifinishcd;
Between"the Effenive Daie^ahd the Completion Date the Cranice' shall gram' to
the State, or any person designated b)' it, unrestricied 'access to all, data for
txamination, duplicaiion.,publiation. translation, sale, disposal; or'fbr any other
purpose whatsoever..
No daia shall be subject to^copyrighi in the United States or any other cqunpy b>'-
anyone other than the State.
On and afta the Effectiyc.Datc all data,'and a_ny:property which has been received
from the State or purchased with funds,provided Tor^ihai purpoK under'this
Agreement, shali'.be the proper^ of (he Stale,-and shall be returned to the State
upon'demand or upon termination of this Agreemem. for any reason,- whichever
shall fifst'oc'ciir.

The State, and friybhe". it'Shall dcsighate.."shall-ha'vc'unrestricted,.auihofit)* to
publish, diieiose. diaribulcandbthcfwise.usc, ih-w^wicbf in purt, airdata.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT: NdlwHih'Mndtng ai^'lhihg in
this Agreement to the contrar)'. all obligations of the'State hereunder. including;
withoui limitation, (he continuance of peyrheiiis herrandcr. are comingent upon
theav'ailabilit)' or continued aj^ropriation of funds, and in.ho.cvent stall the Sia.tc
be liable for any payments hercundCT in exces$,prsuch available or, appropriated
funds. In the eveiii of a reduciion or termination of ihose.fiinds, ̂ e State shall
have the right to withhold payment until^such'funds become available. ifev'Cf, and
shall have ihc:fight to/terminate ihis Agreementammediatcly.upon giving the
Grantee notice of such termination.,
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Anyone or more ofihe.following acts or omissions ofthe Grantee stall constitute
an event of default hercundcr:(herein8fter referred to as ''Events'df.Default''):
Failure to perform tta Project satisfactorily, orbn schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the rixbrds required hereunder. or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agirccfncht.
Upon the occurrence ofany Event of Default, the State may. take any one. or more,
oral), of the following actions:
Gi%'c the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and rcquiringji

timely
Grantee notice of lerminalioq; and

Give ihe,Gninteea written notice speci()'.tng ihe.Evenipf DefauRand suspending
all payments to bc'modc under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the.
Grant Amount which woiild 'oihcrwise. accruc.lOThc^Grantcc during the period
from the dale ofsuch notice until such limcjas the Slate.determines that the
Grantee has cured the EvcnTof Default shall never be paid to the Grantee: and
Set offagainsi any other obligation the State may bwc.io the Grantee any damages
the Stale suffers reason of any Event of Defauit;.and
Treat the agreement as brca'ched and purwean);.of its remedies at law or in equity,
or both.

TERMINATION. . . , , .
In'lhc event ofony «rly icfmitation'of this Agfeemeni fbr any reason other ihaii
the completion of,the.Projecij ihe Cfamec stall deliver to,the Graht OfTiccr, not
later than fifteen (15) days-after.-.lhe date of termination, "a rcpon (Iweinafter
referred to as the "Terminaiibn Repp.n'')'descrjbing,in deuij all_ ^oje« Wort:
performed, and the Gram Amount earned, to and including the date ofierrninatipn.
in the cyeni of Termination under •paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, thc.approvra) of such a Tcrmi'nation.Reppn by the Staic stall'enjiilc-
the Grantee lo reccivc that portion'of-ihc Grantpmouni earned'io and including,
the date oftCTmination.

In the e^•cm of Termination under paragraphs 10 or il4 of'lhcse general
provisions, the approval of such.a Termination Report by the State stall in no
event reiieve'lhc Grantee from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred bs- the Stale as a rcisuit of the Granteels-breach of its obligation's
hereunder.

Nbiwiihstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary.reiihcr the State of.
c.xccpt where notice dcfauli^tas been given to the Granice hereunder. the Grantee;
may tefmiriaie this Agfeemeni without cause upon thirty (30) da'ys wTittim notice.
CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No ofTiccri member of emplo>'cc of the Grahiee.
and no rcpresentaliye. officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
the governing body of the localit)- or localities in which ihe Project is to be
performed, who exerciscs ony functionspr responsibilities in;thc review or-

Page 2 6f'26 rSubrccipient Initial(s):
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14.

15.

16.

19.

20.

17.

17.!

17.1.1

17.1.2

approval of (he undertaking or carr^-ing out of such Projeci, shall pantcipaie in 17.2.
an>- decision relating to this Agreement which affects his.or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interefled, nor shall he or she luve any persona) or
pecuniarN' interest, direct or'indireci, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
•GRANTEE'S RELATION TO THE STATE: In the performance of this,
Agreement the Grantee, its employees, and any subconiraaor or subgrantee of 18.
the Grantee are in all respects independent contractors,-and are neithcr^agcnis
nor employees of ihc State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgfa'ntces, shall ha veauthorit)*
to bind the State nor are the>' entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or crholurncnts-provided bv the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Grantee shall not assign; or
otherwise u^nsfer any interest in this Agreement withoiit ihe prior wTitieh
consent of the State. None, of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranied by the Grantee other than as set forth in E.vhibit D-wiihout the prior
written consent of the State.

INDENfNlFICATION. The Grantee shall defend, indernnify and hold harmless
the State, its officers and employees, from and against any ai^ all losses suffered
b)- (he State, its olTiccrs^and employees, and any and all claims, liubilitics or

penalties assencd against the State, its olTicers and employees, b)- or on behalf 21.
of any person, onaccount of. based on, resulting from, arising out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a.vsaiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which imrhuniiy is hcreb>' reserved to the State.
This covenant shall survive the termination oTthis agrecrhcni.
INSURANCE.

The Grantee shall, at iis own c.\pense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any subconVaaor. subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance;

Statutory- workers' compensation and employees liability insurance for all
employees engaged in the performance of the Project, and
General Iiabiiit>' insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less than SI.OOO.CW per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injuf>: or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

22.

23.

24.

The policies described in subparagraph 1-7.1 pfthisFeragraphshall be thestan^rd
form employed in the State of New Hampshire issued by undCTwriiCTS acceptable
to the State, andauilwiznl.io.do business in the State of New Hamp^ire.. Grantee
shall fiirnish to the State, certificates of insurance for all reRewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement,no later^ihan ten (10) days priorito.thc.expiration
date of each.insurance^policy.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State,to cnforccariy provisions hereof
afleriany Event of Ocfauli:shaII be;deemed.a'waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or an>- subsequent Event. No express 'vt^ivcr of any Event of Default
shall bc'deem'ed aVwaiver of any provisions hereof; No sii'ch raiiurc-'of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the Siaie-to enforce «ch.ah<J 'all of the
provisions hereof upon any furthcTor other default oh the"pan of the Orahice;
NOTICE: -Any notice by a'party hereto to ihe othCTpa'ny shall be deemed to have
been diily delivered or givcn-at the' time of mailing by certified mail, pp.sia'ge
prepaid, in a United States Pon Office,addressed to the panjes at the ad^esses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may beamendcd..waived or discharged only
by an'instniment. in writing signed b^' the parties hereto and only afier approval of
su(;h amendment, waivCT or discharge,by the G.oycmpr'and Council.of the State,
of New Hampshire, if required or by thc.sigriing State Agency..
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of (he State of New Hampshire. attdMs
. binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective'su«essors
and assignees. The captions and comeniis of the "subject" blank-are used only as'
a rriatlcr of convenience, and are not to be considered a part ofthis.Apeemerii or
to' be used in determining the iniertd ofthe'partics hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The-parties hereto do nbi iiiiehd to benefit any;third parties*
and this A^eemem shall hot be construed to confer any such behefii.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, whicli rhay be cxecuied'ih a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be dcem^ an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding ^wem the jnnics, -and supersedes all pi;ior
agreements and understandings.relating,hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS; The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
E.xhibii A hereto arc inccrppraied'as port;of this agreement.
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EXHIBIT A

-SPECIAL PROVISIGNS-

Carroil County Attorney's Office as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as '•Subrecipient").shall be
compliant at alj times with the terms,cpnditions.ahd specifications detailed bel6>Y, which are subjeclto
annual, review.

I . The Subrecipierit rhust certify that. Lirhited English Proficiehcy persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). MeaningfijLaccess may entail
providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation vyheh necessary.
The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with these
requirements. The guidance doeumerit .can be accesse.d.on the Internet at wH^v.lep.gbv.

2 The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Fede.raTor State^ court or Federal or'State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal finahc.ial a_ssistance and after a due process-hearingiagainst the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex-, age, or disability,.a
"copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to the U..'S. Department of Justice, Office for Givjj RightSi Offi.ce of
Justice Programs, 810 7lh Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional'information
regarding your obligations under civil fights please reference the, slate website at
http:/Avww.doj.nh.gov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded
funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and the Office
for Civil Rights," Office of'Just ice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient will corhply (and will require,any subrecipients or contractors to comply)
with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 1.0228(6)); the Victims of Grime Act (34
U.S.C, § 201 lO(ej); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Acrof,2002'(34 U;S.C..§
1 1 r82(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § I'229l(b)(l3)); the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights.Act (25 U.S.C. §§ 13.01-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Arnericans with Disabilities Act of 1,990 (42
U.S.C. §§ 1,2131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 UiS.C. §§, 1681, 1683, 1685-86);
and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also comply with Ex.
Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizat ions;
Executive. Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships
With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DQJ implementing
regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar services in the marketplace. The curreni consultant limit is $650. per day or
$8i;25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit foran 8-hour day,of a pfoportiohaie hourly
rate (excluding travel and subsistencexosis), a written prior approval is required . Prior approval
requests require additional justification.
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EXHIBIT A

5. The Subrecipienl agency agrees that, should they employ a Termer member of.the'NH
Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative ̂ h'all not perform work oh,or be
billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award thai the.emplpyee djrectly rnanaged-or
supervised while at the.NHDOJ for the life of the subgranf without the. express approvahof the
NH DOJ.

6'. The Subrecipient uriderstarids that .grants are funded for the grant award period rio,te.a.oh 'the.:
grant award document No guarantee is^given or Implied of subsequent'fundingjn'ftjlure years.

1. 2 CFR 200 as.amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit'
Re.qulfements for Fe'deraKAvvards)

are considered legally binding and enforceable docunnents under this contract.. The DOJ reserves thp
right to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not limitedio, disallowance of costs or
withholding Of funds.

8; To the extent required to comply with 2 CFR 200,- Subpart F - Audit Requ'iremenis, Subrecipient
shall complete an audit at the end of the Subrecipieht 's fiscal year iehdihg after June 3.0, 2022

The audit report shall include,a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along;with.a;response:to-the
current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all rhanagemeht letters written as a result
ofthe audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to DO.J With'm.one rnonthpflhe lime of
receipt by the Subrecipieni accompanied.by an action plan, ifapplicable, for each'finding or
questioned cost.

9. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the direct cost
principles

detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E-Cost Principles,

10. Notwithstanding paragraph 7.1 and 7.2 ofthe standard provisions,

program and firiahcial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the S.ubfecipiejit for 5
(five) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report as.per requirements from'the
Treasury Office of Inspector General.

I  I. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUl^DlTJO'

It is understood and agreed between the parties that no portion ofthe "Grant" funds rriay be used for
the purpose of obtaining additional Federal funds under any other law ofthe United States, except If
authorized under that law."

12. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS

The following are attached and signed: Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace.R^uirements;
Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding Dcbarmeiit, Suspehsibn.'ahd.Othef
Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance;-
Certifica'tion Regarding
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EXHIBIT A

Environmental Tobacco Snioke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimjnaiion in Federally Assisted
Programs; and Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency
Compliance."

13. COPELAND ANTI-K-ICKBACK ACT

All contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for construction or repair using funds under this grant shall
include a provision for compliance with Copelahd "Ahti-iCickback" Act (18 USC 874)'^"
supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each
Subrecipient, subcontractor or Subrecipient shall be.prohibited from inducing,-by ariy-means, any
person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise.entitled.. The Subrecipient should report all suspected
violations to DOJ.

14. PROCUREMENT

Subrecipient shall comply with all provisions of.2 CFR 200 Subpart D - Post Federal Award
Requirements - Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on financial procurement (-2 GFR;2'00
Subpart F - Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D'.- Post Federal
Award Requi'rertients - Pr6p;erty Standards)

15. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT

Subrecipient shall submit a final report electronically to the DOJ grant officer by ̂e-mail or other
.electronic means subsequently designated by DOJ of the uses.of the grant funds through June 30,
2023, and shall.break down the reporting by facility location at the town level. In.the;evenl that
Subrecipient has not derhonstrated that the grant fuhdis have not been expended forallowable costs of
at least the amount of this grant, the excess grant funds shallnot be paid and will lapse.

16. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach ofpersonally identifiable information (Pll)

Any "subrecip.ient" at any .tier must have written procedures in place to respond in the event ofap
actual or imminent "breach" (0MB M-i 7-l2) if it (or a subrecipient)"(.I).creates, collects, uses,
processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable
information (Pll)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program oractivily, or (2)
uses of operates a "Federal information system" (0MB Circular A-130).
The subrecipient's breach procedures must include a requirement-to report'actual or irnminent breach
of Pll to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Managefncrit Unit by the-end'of the
business day in which the breach becomes known.

17. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

I . The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier)'must—
A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United Slates that is or will be
funded (in whole or in part) with award funds; the subrecipient properly verifies the employment
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EXHIBIT A

eligibility of the individual who is being hired, cbnsisteht, with,the prdvisi6hsoT8:;U;S..C
and ,(2).

B. Notify.all persons associated withany subrecipient who are orwiil-be ihYolv.ed in activities.under
this'award of both-

l. this award requiremerit>for verification of employment eligibility, and
2.,the associated provisions in 8 O.S.C. I 324a(a)(l)"and (2) that, generally speaking, make-Ht-unlawfu!,
in the Uniied StateS; to hire (or recruit/for employment);certain.aliens.

C. Provide, training (to the.extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to ̂  notified
of the award requirement for employment eligibility .verificat ion and ■of theiassbciated prdvlsions oTS:
U.S.C. I.324a(a)(1)and (2).

.D. As part oftherecordkeeping forthe award (including pursuant to the Part 200 .Uniform
'Requirernents),- maintain reeords.qf all ernployment.eligibility verifications,pertinent to cornpliance
with this.award condition.in accordance withTorm 1-9 record retentibh.fequifementsV-as well as
records of all pertinent notificMions.and trainings.

2..Monitoring
the recipient's monitoring responsibilities include monitoring of subrecipient compliance^with-this
cond it ion.

3; Allowable costs
To the.extentrthat such costs are hot reimbursed under any other federal pr'ogfam, award fijnds rhay be
obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allo.cable costs (if any) ofactions designed to ensure
compliance with this condition.

4. Rules of construction
A. Staff involved in hiring process
For purposes ofthis condition, persons "who are or will be involved in aclivities under this award"
specifically includes (without limitation)^any and all subrecipient officials or other staff who. are' or
will be invojyed in the hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded;(in whole or in
part) with award funds.

B. Employment e|igibility.cbnfirmalion with E-verify
For purpose.^of-satisfylng.the requifement.Of^this-cbndition,regarding vefiin.cationofemployment:
eligibility, any subrecipient may^choose to participate in^ and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify,go.v),
provided an appropriate person authorized to act on behalfof the subrecipient .uses E^ Verify (and
follows.ihe proper E- Vefify proced'ures, including'in the event of a "Tentative Npnconfirmatipn" or a
"Final Nonconfirmation") to confirm employment eligibility for,each hiring.for a,position ;in the
United States'that is or will be funded.(in whole or in part) with award funds.

C. "United States" specifically includes the District of Coiumbia, Puerto Rico, .Guam, the Vifgirt
Islands of the United States, and the Comrnonwealth of the Northern; Mariana Islands.

D. Nothing in this conditioh shall be understood to authorize Or require any subrecipient at any tier;-or
any-person or Other .entity, to violate any federal law,, including any applicable civil rights or
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nondiscriminatibn law.

E. Nothing, in this condition, including in paragraph 4.B., shall be understppd ip reHeve any-
subrecipient at any tier, of;any person or other entity;.'of any-obiigation.otherwise imposed by law,
including'8 IJ.S.G. I324a(a)(l) and (2).

Questiohsabout E-VerifyShould be directed to DHS. For more ihformatidh'-abbut.E-V E-
Verify website (hhps://u'v.'w.e-verify.gov/) bremail E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.;goy. E-Verify
erhployer agents can emSil E-Verify at E-VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov;

Questions about the rrieaning or scope of thisbOnditipn.shpuld be directed to OJP,7before award
acceptance.

18. The subrecipient agrees to submit quarterly pefformarice reports

.On .the performance metrics identified'by an'dm the rnanner requiredby:NHDOJ. This
information on the activities supported by the award funding wiihassist-ih assessing the eftects that:
VOGA Victim Assistance funds have had on services to crime yicfims within the jurisdict ion.

r9. Detehriihation of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies-'to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the a^ard.(as
approved by DOJ)(of in the'application for any subaward, at any tier),, theiDOJ funding announcement
(solicitation), orbn associated federal statute ---.that a purpose of some of all ofthe activities to be
carried out under the award (whether by a subrecipient at any tier)'is to benefit a set of individuals
under 1:8 years of age'. .
Any subrecipient at any tier,, must make determinations of suitability before'cetlain individuals tnay
interact with participating iViinofs. This requirement "applies regardless of an individual's employment
status. _ .. ..

The'details oflhis requirement are,posted on theOJP vveb site.at https://ojp.g0v/fund1ng/Explore/l
nteract-Minors.Htm (Award,condition: Determination of suitability required,: in advance,, for certain
individuals who may interact with participafirig niinOfs), and are incorporated byreference here.

20. Ceniflcation Regarding EEOP Required

Within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will-submit for approval, an acceptable
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28 CFR42.30I eiseq. or a.Certification
Form to the Office of Civil Rights, O'fTice of Justice Programs, US DOJ at ,810 7ih Street, NW,
Washington, DC-,20531. Failure to subrhil an:approved EEOP or Certification of exempt ion is-a
violation ofthe Program Guidelines and..ConditionS:and may result in suspension of tefmihatibn of
funding, until such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. The;:EEOP"reporting tool and
instructions can be found al': https://6jp.gov/about/Ocr/faq_eeop.htm

21. Requirements related to ''de minimis" indirect cost rate

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uhiform Requirements.and other applicable law'to use
the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. -200;41'4(I), and that elects to use the de
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EXHIBIT A

minimis" indirect cosi rale, must advise OJP in wriiJng of both its eligibility and its elect ion,.and
comply with all associated requirements in'the Part 200 Uniform.Requirements. The ''de.rriiriimis"
rate may be applied only to.modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined by the',Part 200 Uniform
Requirements:
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EXHIBIT B

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

.1. The S'ubrecipient s.hall receive.a grant frpm the New Harnpshire.DeT)arimehtIoT
Justice (DOJ) for:expenses incurre'd'ahd services provided.for direct yictim

services provided by the Victim/Witness Program to include expenses Tor
personnel, trayeI, training, and supplies.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on expenditures

described in Exhibit G. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reirnbursement on'the state approved expenditure "repdrting/orm as provided.
Expenditure.repofis-.shall be siibmitte'd dh.a quarterly basis, within fifteen:(T5)

;days following the end-of the current quarteHy activities. Expenditure reports-
submitted jaterthah thirty (30.) days following the ehd dfjheduart.er will be
considered late arid out ofcornplianc'e.-/v?r example, \\'ith an award that begins

on.January I, thefirst quarterly report isdue on-April IS'-' or 15 days after the

close of thefirst quarter ending on March 31.

3. Subrecipient is reqiiifed to maintain supporting documentation for-all grant

expenses both state funds and match if-provided and to produce those^

documents upon request of this office or ariy other state drfedefafaudii

authority. Grant project suppdrtihg documentation shalfbe maintained, fof-at
least.seven (7) years after the close of iheTederal Granl.

4. Subrecipient:shall be subject to periodic desk audits and"pYogramlfeviews by
DOJ. Such;desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled,with

Subrecipient and every attempt shall'be made by Subrecipient to accommodate

the schedule.

5. AH correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Just ice

Grants Management Unit
' 33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or Rhonda;J'.Beauchemin@doj.nh;,gov
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EXHIBIT C

- PAYMENT TERMS-

1. The Subrecipieht shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved
expenditure reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

2. The Siibreclpient shall be rcirnbiirsed within thirty (30,)-days followihg'the
D.OJ's approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be rnade'to the
Subrecipienl's account-receivables address per the Financial System of the State
ofNew Hampshire.

3. The State's.obligation.to compensate the Subreciplent uridefUhis, Agfeement

shall not exceed the price limitation set fortli in forni.G-1 :sectipn FS-

3a. The Subrecipient shall be-awarded an amount not to exceed $32,500.00 of the
total Grant Limitation from Govemdr andGduhcil appfpv'al or 07/01/2023,

whichever is later, to 06730/2024, with approved expenditure reports. This shall

be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason.and under limited circumstances; the Subrecipient

may apply for an extension of'the grant period for up tothe end of the federal

grant end date, not after. The Subrecipient must submit the request iri writing:

No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

4. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responsible for any expenses or-costs
incuired under"this.agreemeht prior to Governor and Gciuncihapproya|, or after
06/30/2024 or, unless a grant-extension is approved in writing by DOJ.
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EXHIBIT D

- DRUG-FREE W.ORKPLACE-

The Subrecipient identified in'Section 1.3 of the.Grant Agfeemeht.agrees to cbmply'with
the provisions of Sections 5151-5160 of the 'Drug-Free WorkplacjelAct.of l988:(Rub. L.
1,00-690,,Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 :et seq.), and further'agrees tp; have the
Subrecipierit's repfesehta'tive,-as identified in,Sections 1.1 1 of the Grant-Agreement
execute the following eertificatioh:

Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace

This certification is required by!the regulations implernenting Sections 5151-'5j 60 "of the
Drug-Free Workplace Act of f98.8 (Pub. L. 100-690; Title V, Subtitle D; '41 U.S.'C. 701 et
seq.).- TheJanuary 31, 1989, regulations were amended and publishedas Paftjl of the
May 25, 1990, Federal Register.(pages 21681-2l691),,and require certincatipn by
•Subrecipients (and by inference,'sub-Subrecipiehts arid sub^Subrecipierits), pfibr fo award,
that th'ey-will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 30l7.-630(c} of the.regulatibri
provides that a Siibrecipierit (arid by inference, sub-Slibrecipients and subrSubrecipients)
thai is a state may elect to make:one certjficatioriHp*the.Departmerit"!iri each" federal fiscal
year in lieu Of certificates for each.grant-during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set-out,belowls a material representation of facfupomwhich
reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or viplation-of.the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or.termination of
grants, or government.wide suspension or debarment. Subrecipierits usihg this form
should send it to:

Lisa Lamphere
Department of Justice

33 Capitol St
Concord,.'NH 03301

Lisa.J.Lamphe;re(§doj.nh.goy

(A) The Subrecipient certifies that it will or will Continue'to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a,statement riotifying.employees-thai the unlawful manufacture,-distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controjledsubstance'is prohibited in the Subfe^cipientls
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—
(1) The dangers.of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The Subrecipient's policy of maintaining,a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, arid emplbyee^assistahce
programs; and
(4) The" penalties that may be imposed upon eiriployeesTor drug abuse violalions
occurring in the workplace;
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(c) Making ii a requiremeh. lha. each employee lb be engaged .in the perfofmarice onhe gram
be gi\en a copy oTthe statemerii, required by paragraph (a);

(d) No'i''ying:iheemployeeinthe,statemenirequire:d:byparagraph (a) thai.-asacon^
employment under:the granu.the employee vvill^ '

(1) Abide by;ihe terms oTthe staiemerii; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her coriviciiotr for a violation pfa
criminal drug statute occurring ih Hie workplace no later than, flve'calendar days
after such conviction;

(e) Nolifying the ageiKy in wnmg, wllhin ten calendar days after receiving notice-under
subparagraph (d)(2) Irom an employee or otherwise receiving actuaT.nolice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees niust provide nbiice, iricliiding position
title, to every grant olTicer on whose grant activity the cohvicled employee was vvbrking
unless the-Federal agency has designated a central poini for the, rcceipi of such notices
Nonce shall include the identification number(s) ofeach affected grant: '

(0 Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with fespeci to any employee Vvho is: so convicted
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as
amended; or

employee to participate satisfactorily in'a drug.abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal,,state, or local health law
enforcement,, or other appropriaie.agchcy:

(g) Making a.good faith elTorl to coriiinue:to maintain a drug-Tree wo'rkplace throueh
implementation orparagraphs,(a), (b), (c), (d},:(e), andTO-

(B) 1 he Subrecipient may insert in the spate provided below the sitc(s)- for the performance of
work done, in connection with the specific grant 'Place of Peribrmance (street address, ciiy,.couhiy,:Statc: zip eode) (list each location)

Check □ if there-are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

July I, 2023. -June 30. 2024Subrecipient Nam^ T" Period Covered by this Ceitincatibri
Cc-rroU A-l'4orngj/'s e4T|-c€-

Name and Title of Authorized Subrecipient Representative

Subrecipieni'Representaiive Signaiu/^^
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EXHIBIT E

-LOBBYING-

The Subreciplent identified in Section 1.3 of the-.Grant Agreement ■agre.ejs-to^cp'mply'wjth.
the provisions of'Section 319 of Public Law lOl-lST, Government .widC: Guidance for,New-
Restric'tioris bri Lobbyihg, and 31 U.S.C. i'352,,arid fUftHer agrees to haVe;the;
Subrecipient's representative^ as identified in Sections I . I I and 1. 12.of the Grant
Agreement execute the following-Geftificatiori:. ;

CERJIFIGAtlQN regarding LGBBYING
Programs (indicate applicable program covered): American;Rescue Plan Act
Cpntfact Period; JUly T. 2023 - Xuhe,30,,2624
The undersigned ceiHifies, to the.best'ofhiis or Her knowledge and.belief,.that':

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or'oii,behalf oT.the.
undersigned, to any person for influencing;or attempting to influence an officer or
•employee of any agency, .a Member Of Congress, an officer or employeeof Congress, or aO
.employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding Of any Federal
contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, gran'tj,
lo'ah, Or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sxb-Subrecipient Or siib!^
S.ubrecipient).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employe.e.of any^agency.ja
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, of ah employee bfiaMembeb of
Congress inconnection with this Federal contract, grant, loan,-or cooperalive:.agreement
(and by specific mention sub-Subrecipient or sub-Subrecjpient), the undersigned shall:
complete and.submit.Stahdafd Form LLL, "Disclosure Form.to Report,Lbbb^ying, ih
accordance with^its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibil'E-l.

(3) The undefsigried shall requirbthat the language of this Certification be-included in the
award document fof.sub-awafds.at all tiers (including-subcohtracts, sub-jgfants, and
contracts under grants,.loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients-shall
certify and disclose accordingly.
This certificat ion is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was..p|ac.ed when
this transaction was.made or entered into. Submission of this ceftificatibh. is a prerequisite
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U'.S. Code.
Any personAvhp fails to file the required certification shall be,subject to a civil penalty of
not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

iO!ha.i rm/i-n
Subre.cipieht F(e'presentative Signature/ Subrecipient's Represehtative Title

~Tcirru MaCnrihci /3y z3
Subrecipient Name vj Date

Page 14 of 26 Subrecipieni ]nitial(s):
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EXHIBIT F

-DEBARMENT-

The S.iibrecipieht identified in Sectidhi3 of tH'e Grant:Agreement.agrees tb;comp^
the provisions of Executive Office of the President,, Executive Ordei; 12529 and 45 GFR:
Raii 76 regarding D.ebarmeht, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, arid further
agrees to.have the Subfecipieht's fepreserilative', ̂as identified in Seclidns, I. I I and, I,. i2'of
the Grant Agreement execute the following.Geftification:

GEkriEICATION REGARpiNG PEBARMENJi, SUSPENSION^ AN
RESPONSIBrLITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) Bysighirig and submitting this Grant Agreement, the Subfe,cipierit 'is-pi:oyiding the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide thecertificalion required below will not necessarily
result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary,^theSubfecipient
shall submit an explanation of why it cannqt provide the certificat ion. Thexeiiificat ion or
explanation will be corisidered in connection with the DOJ deterrhinatiori whetherto eriter
into this transaction. However, failure of the Subrecipient to furnish a certificaiion or an.
explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which feliarice;was
placed when DOJ determined to enter into'this transaction. If it is later'detemiined that the
Subrecipient knowingly fehdefed an e'rfdheo.us certification, i'n addilioh to other fefhedieS'
available to the Federal Government, D'O'J may terminate this transaction for cause or
default.

(4) The,Subrecipient shall provide immediate written notice to DOJ; to whoni this Gfarit is
submitted if at any time the Subrecipient learns that its certificat ion was erroneous when
•submitted or has become .erroneous by feasoh of changed cifcumstahces.

(5) The terms."covered transaction," "debarred," 'Suspended," "ineligible," '3pwer tier
covered transaction," "pa'fticipant," "person," "primary;covered.transaciioh,""'prihcipal," •'
"proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause,,have the meanings set!put-ihi
the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Grder 12'549:-.
45CFRPart76.

(6) The Subrecipient agrees by submitting this Grant that, shouldIhe'prpppsed covered
transaction be entered into, it shall not,knowingly enter into. any lower tier co.vefed
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended,'declared ineligible, or yoluntafjly
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless/authorized by DOJ.

(7) The Subrecipient further.agfees'by submitting this Gfaril.that it vvill include; the.xlause.
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspensioni Ineligibility and Voluntary
E.xclusion - Lower Tier'Covefed Tfahs'aclions,," provided by DOJ,"without modification, iri
all lower tier covered transactions and in all splicitations for lower tjer covered,
transactions.

(8) A Subre.cip.ieni in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of .Subreoipient ima
lo.wer tier-covered transaction'tha't it is not 'debarred, suspended, ineligible, or-involuntarily
exclude~d frOm the covered transactioh, unless it knows that the certiflcatioh is eYfoneous.

A Subrecipient may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the ejigibifity
of its principals. Each participant may, bUt is hotxequired to, check the Non-procufefheht
List (of excluded parties).

Page 15 of 26 Subrecipient [hitial(s):
Date:



exhjbixf

(9) Nothing contained in the, foregoing sHall be construed to require::estabhshment.of a;system.
of records in order to render In good faith the certification required by this,clause.. The
knowledge and information oTa-Subrecipierit.is riot required fo.exceed that jhich :is
normally possessed by a prudent person in. the ordinary:course-of business dealings,-

Except for transactions authorized, under paragraph 6 of tHesc:iristructibris, jfia,
Subrecipieht in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with-a .person who is suspended, .debarred, ineligible,'.or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transactjbn,. inraddition-to other remedies.available, to the Federal
government-, 0OJ may terminate'.this.trarisactiOn for.ca.use or default.

Ceriiftcaiion Regarding Debdrment, 5w>pc/iiS/o«,' and Other
Respmsihilityi Matters - Primary Covered Tmsdclidns

(I.) The Subrecipient cert'ifies to the best.of its knowledge and belief, that it and its-
principals: ' J \ A

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, propOse.d for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered-rrarisactipns by any Federal
department or agency; . .. .. .

(b) have not within a,three-year period preceding this Grarit,been convicted oior
had a civil judgment rendered against them for commissipn of fraud or a criidihal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting fo obtain, or perforrping a'
public (Federal, State.Or local) transaction or a contract under!apbhc
transaction; violation of.Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsificat ion dr .destruction of records,
making false statcriients, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity .(Federal, State of iocal) with cpmmissjon of any:of the
offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b)" ofthis certification; and

(d) have not, within a three-year .period preceding this Grant, had one;of more
public transactions (Federal, State of local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective prim.ary participant is unable.to certify to ariy of the
statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall,attach an.explanatipn to
this Grant.

Subrec^ienl ';^resentative sVia^ure y/ Subrecipienfs.Representative Title.

poA 31 r

Subrecipi'erit/Name U
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EXHIBIT G

<ERTIFICATiON REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE-

the Subrecipiem idemiHed in Section of the Grant Agreement,agreesby:si^^^^^^
the Subrecipient's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and I..12 of,the Grant
Agreement, to execute the following certification:-

By signing and submitting this.Grant Agreemerifthe Subrecipient agrees to make-
reasonable eftorls to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990.

Subrecipim .^presentative Signature ̂  Subrecipient's Representative T.tle

-JTrry ^
Subrecipient Name

Page 17 of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s):
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FXHIBIT H

-CERTIFIGATION

PUBLIC LAW 103-227,: PART C
ENVIRONMENTAL TQBAGGO 'SMOKE^

Public Law 103227, Part C Erivirohmental.To.bacco Smoke; also knbwn,as the^Pro
Children Act of 1994, requires that smoking not be permittedjn,any portion of anyjndoor
facility routinely owned or leased or.cOntracted for by an entity.and.used ''outinely P,r
regularly for provision of heajth, daycare, education, of library services tp children under
the age of 18, if the services-are funded by Federal prograrrts either directly or throug
■State or local'govcmmenls, by .Rederal grant, contract, loan, of loan guarantee.
The law does not apply to children's services provided in. private".re?idenc
■funded solely by Medicare-or Medicaid.flinds, and portions of facilities used for.inpa le
drug or alcohol treatment. . . . r
FaiKire to conipjy with the provisions of the law may resuitm the-imposit.on ofa ciyti
monetary penaltyof up to $.10.00 per day and/or the imposition ofan administrative
compliance order on the responsible entity. ,
By sighing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Subrecipient certifiesithat it will
comply with the requirements of the Act.

The Subrecipient further agrees that it will require the language.of thiicert.ifi^^^^^^^^^
included in any subawards which contain provisions for the children s.services and that al
Subrecipients shall certify accordingly.

"TV, (ilwrrrionSu'bmcST/prdrntative Sirna'iu''r(/" Subrecipient's Representative Title

HcCdrHiij
■XI l^ateSubrecipient.Name
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EXHIBIT 1

-Assurance Of Compliance Nbndiscriminatibn Ih Federally Assisted,Programs

O.MB Burden Disclosure.Statement-

Public reportiriig burden for this coliection of inforhialtibn is^estimated to average 15
minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions;:searching existing d.ata
sources, gathering.and maihtaining the data needed, and cdm'pletmg and reviewing^^^^^^
collecti6h-;ofmform'atibn.-;Send-commcnls regardirig this b.urden^stima^^^
aspect of this coliectionof informatlbn, includrngsuggestions for reducing
Ihe OfTice of Management and. Budget (,GMB), Paperwork Reduction Project (1.910.0400),
Washin'glbh, DC,20503.

The Subfecipient agrees to comply with "title V'
88-352V Tit le IX of the Education Amendments of U972,;as.amehded, (Pub.; L;
Pub. L. -b-568, and Pub. L; '94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act.of -1973tPu^
L. 93-1 12), the Age'Discriminatibn Ac.tof 1975 (Pub. L.. 94-3 35), Title VIII of the Civi
Rights Act of 1968,(Pub. L. 90-284). In accordance with.theiabbve,laws and regulations,
issued pursuant thereto, the'Subrecipient agrbes tp assure that no person in the Uoned
States shall, on the gfbund.of race, color,.national origin, sex, age, ordisabih.tyv be
excluded from participation in, be denied the beheflts.bf, or be othenv.ise;subjected tp,
discrimination under any program or activity in which the Subrecipiehf receives. Federal
assistance.

Applicability and Period of Obligation In the case of any service, financial aid, coverecl:
employment, equipment, property, or strucfure provided, leased, or improved^ryith Federal
assistance extended to the Siibrecipi.ent by DOJ with federal GARES Act fiirids, this
assurance obligates the Subrecipierit.for the 'perioiii during-whiph'Federal assistance is
extended. In the ease of any transifer bf such service, financial aid, equiiJirient- property, or
sirueture, this assurance obligates the .transferee for the.peribd during which Federal
assistance is extended. I f any persohal .prbpe.rty is so Rrbvided, this.assuranee bb.iigate.s t^e
Subrecipient for the peribd duririgwhich it retains owhefship.orpb.ssession of the,property.
Employment Practices Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance isrto provide,
■empldyment br where the Subrecipierit-'s emplbyment practices aiTect the delwer^ bfservices in prbgrams or activiliesTesulting.frbm Federal assistance ext.ended-by DOJ,
Subrecipient agrees not to discriminate on the ground .Of race,.cplor,.national origin .'sex,
age. or disability,'in its.employment. practic.es.. Such employment practices m.ay inclqde,
but are not limited to, re'cruilment, advertising, hiring, layoff or,terniination, promotion,,
demotion, transfer, rates of pay,, training and participation rn upward mobility programs, or
Other forms'of compensatidn and use of facilities.
Subrecipient Assurance The Subrecipient shall require any individual,■organization.'or
other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants: or-subieasesTor the purposerot
providing any service, .financial; aid, equiRrnent,. property, or sfructuretp comply with laws
and regulations cited above. To.this.end, the subrecipienl.shall be required to sign a written
assurance form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subfecipient .to.ensure
compliance is not relieved by the collection ofisubrhission,of written assuranceforms.
Data Golleetion and Access to Records The Subrecipient agrees to compile and rhaintairi
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F.XHIBITI

information pertainingtb programs or activities.develope.d as,a resplt of the Subrectptentsreceipt of Federarasslstance ffom DOJ..Such infohbation shall include, but is,not limit^^^^
to the following: (I) the manner in which-.services,are,or will be.provided.and. related .data
necessary for determinihg whether any persons are of will be denied such services on the.
basis of prohibited discrimination; ,(2) the populatton eligible to te served .by race; .color;
•natibnal origin, sex, age and disability; (3).aata regarding coyered^mployment inclu^
use of planned use of bilingual public contact;empioyees serving beneficiaries,.of the
program where necessary to permit effective participation by t^^nciaries u.irable fo^^^^^^^
or understand English; (4) the location of existing or propo.sed facilities connected w ith.thp
program and related information adequate for determining whether the will
have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the basis of prohibited,
discrimination; and (.5) the present or proposed '^^^"bership by race, color natipt^
sex, age and, disability in.any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of.the
program.

The Subrecipierit;agfees to submit requested data to DOJ. the U^. Department ̂ TrW
of OM,B regarding programs and activities developed by the Subreeipient frpm the usenf
CARES Act funds extended by DOJ upon request. Facilities of the Subreeipient (including
the physical,plants, buildings, or other structiires) and all records books, aceount,5,,and
Other sources of information pertinent to the Subrecipienfs,eomp,|iance with thecivifrights
laws shall be niadeavailable for inspection during normal business hours,onnequestpt an,
officer or employee of DOJ. the U.S. Department of Treasury or 0MB specifieally
authorized to make such.inspieclions. . . j „i|-

This assurance is given in consideration.of ahd for the purpose of obtam.ng a.ny andtall
Federal grants, loans, contracts (excluding procurement contra.cts), property,d^counts or
other Federal assistance extended after the date herebf, to the Subreeipient,by DOJ
including installment payments on accpunt.after such data of application for Federa
assistance which are approved before such date. The Subreeipient recognizes and.agre.es
that such Federal assislanee will be extended in rehanee upon.the.representatioos a
agreements made in this assurance, and that the Un''ed States,shad baye the^rj^ to
judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the Subreeipient; .the
successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the whose signatures ̂ pear
below and who are-,authorized to sign this assurance on behalfof the,Subreeipient.

Subreeipient Certification . , -c i. j .

The: Subreeipient certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90,da^s of the date.of the
grant, it will comply with all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040,5 (a copy will
be ftirnished to the Subreeipient upon written request.to DOJf

i rmm —
Subredptent^eprerentativeBig^ Subreeipient's Representative Title '

Mr Qi rjTlLl ' ^
ioient^ame > DateSubreeipient
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FXHIBIT J

-GERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING AGGOUNTABIUtV
AND TRANSPARENGY AGT (FFATA)'GGMPL1ANCE'-

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act-(FFATApqu $ubrecip^tS:
of individual Federal grants, equal to or greater than .$30^0,00 and,,awarded-on. or aft^^
-October I,. 201,0, to-report On-data related t°
tier -sub-grants of $30,000 or more. Ifthe initial award- is: ̂ low i$3Q,000 byt- subseque
grant modificatioriS result in a total-award equal to,:6f d.yer $30,000. the award-is,subject.to
the FFATA reporting requirements,,as Of the date of-the,award.

In accordance with 2 GFR Part 170 {Reporting Subgward and Executive Cdim
Informalionl DOJ must report the following information forany grant.award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity

2) Amount of award

3) Funding, agency

4) NAICS code for'contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5); Program source

6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the fUnding-.action

7) Location Of the entity

8) Principle place of performance

9) Unique identifier of the. entity (SAM #),

10) Total compensation;and names of the top five executives if.
a. More than 80% Of annual grOss revenues are ifroni.the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M 'annually and

b. Gompensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEG-.
Subfecipients must submit FFATA requ'ireddata by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section I-3 of the Grant Agr^^nt agrees^cO^y
the provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency -Act, PublK La
109 282 and Public Law 1 10-252, and 2 GFR Bart 170 (Repprtmg Subaward and
Execuiive Compensation Informal ion), and further agrees to have o n e o f the,Spiem's^epresentati^Cs),-as identified in-Sections 1:11 of the Grant Agreement
execute "the following Certification:

The below named Subrecipient: agreesto provide needed informaf lon.as outlined-atoye to
DOJ and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountabili y
and Transparency-Act.
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EXHIBITJ

Subrecipient Aepresentative-Sighatiij^ Subrecipient's Representative Title

priniftnt Name JSubrecipient Name
Date

As .he Subrecipient idenlir.ed in Seclibn 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, I certify that the responses to the
beloW listed questions are true and accurate.

I. The UEl number for your entity is: __KNWKMXMEC1.Q4—

2  In your business or organization's preceding completed hscal year, did your bMsiness;or organizationLeive ) So Tercent of mote of your annual gross, revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans ,
et^nts sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreemetits; and (2) $25,0ff0.000.or more ,n annual gross, revenues
Lm U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements.

_jZl_NO yes

If the answer to #2 above Is NO, slop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES,;please answer the following:

3 Does the public have access to information about the compehsatioh of the executives in your business ororganlauL'through periodic repoPs Hied under section 13(a),or '5(d) of tHe^ecur.t.s Exchange Act of
1934 (15 U.S'C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of . .

_N0 ^YES

Ifthe answer to #3 above is YES, stop

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer Ihe'follpwing:
4. The names and compensation of the.five most highly compensated officers tn your b.usiness or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: ^Amount:

Name: ^Amount:

Name: Amount:
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EXHIBIT K

-EEOP REPORTING, GIVIL RIGHTS GOMRLIaNCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES-

.  . [responsible-officiaf], certify that

Carroll County Attorney's Office has completed the EEO're'|».rting tool

certification within lhe' last two years "at:,ktfris://6ib.'gdvyabbuf/ocfyfaQ^ eeon.Hitfri oh

[date]

Ills understood that subrecipients which are exemptiffom filing the EEQP UtiliMtibn 'Repprt
including non-profits and subreCipierits with less than 50 employees must file.a;declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years vvith the Office for justice Progra_ms;;Ofnce^0f
Civil Rights at the above web address.

EEOPTraining Requirements for Subrecipients

[official that completecfjraining] has completed

•the EEOP training at https://oip'gov/about/ocr/ocr-training-videbs/video-6cf-tfairiihg.h"fm on:

[dote]. The EEQP train1hg,rhUst.be cbmpleted/al least every
two years.

DO.I Discrimination Compiaint Process

If individuals believe they may have been discriminated.against by the NH^Depaftmenipf Justice
or by an organization that receives federal funding frorh the.,NH Department ofJustice based on
their face, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation origender
identity shOuld'print and cornplete a cbfnplairit form that Can be found at: Civil-Rights I Grants
Management Unit I NH Department of Justice

Subrecinicnt Discrimination Complaiht Prbccss

I  further certify that: the Subrecipient will comply with applicable federal civil rights laws that;
prohibit discrimination in employmerit.'and in the delivery of services and has a policy or'written
procedure in place for accepting discrimination based complaints from employees and program
beheficiaries and that policy/procedure must be made publically available;to,program
beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries.
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EXHIBIT K

Certified Standard Assurances

On behalf.of the Subrecipieht, and in support of this application for a !gfaht of-c66pera^
agreerhent, ,1 certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice'("Departrnenit"),
that all of the following are true and correct:

(1)1 have'the authority toimake the follo'wihgjepresentations on'behalf of-myself and'the
Subrecipient. I understand that these representations will be relied upon as rrtateria'l ih ahy
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on jts.applicatjoni

(2) I certi5' that.the Subrecipient has the legal -authority to apply for the'fecleral assistanceJsoUght
by the applicatibri, arid'that'it has the institutional, managerial, and'flnancial capability (incjudihg
funds sufficient-to pay any required non-federal share of project co'sts)' tb. plan, manage, and
complete'the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made byUhe
Department based on the'applicatioh—

-a. the Subrecipieht will comply with all award requirements and all federal statutes and
regulaiions appljcable to the award;
'b. the Subrecipieht'will require all subrecipients to comply with,ail.applicable;avvard'
requirements and all applicable federal statutes and.regulations; and
c. ;the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address anb preveht.ahy organizational
conflict of ihtefest, and also to prohibit employees from using their .positions In any
manner that poses, or-appears to pose, a pefsonafof financial cori'flict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipieht understahds that.the federal statuies and regulations.applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on theiapplicat idn specifically include statutes'and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition-^

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining .to,cjyirrights-vvill
include section 601 oTthe Civil Rights Aci.of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.'C. § 794); section.901 df^the.Education
Amendments of 1972,(20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrim'ination Act
of l975 (42 U.S.G.,§6r02);
b. the Subrecipieht, understands that the applicable statutes pertaining 10
nondisCfiminatiori may include ,section.809(c) of Title 1 ofth'e:Omhibus Grime Control
,and Safe!StfeetSvAct of 1968 (34 U.S;G,. § T0228(c)); sectio'ri i.407(e}.of th'e'yictitris Of
Crirrie Act of 1-984 (34 U.S.C. § 201 10(e)); section 299A(b):ofthe Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 1 1 1,82(b))';:and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b)"( 13) of the Violence Against, Women Acl (34 U.S.C,. §
I229l(b)(l3)), which will apply to a|| awards mad.e by the Office on. Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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EXHIBIT K

c. the Subrecipicnt understands that it must require any'pass-through subreclpiehtTO;
comply with all such applicable st_aiutes;(and'a.ssociaied regulations); and
d. oh behalf of the Subrecjpient, I make the sp.ecjfic'a.ssurances'set out in:2l8;G;l:.i^/§^^^
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipienfalso understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations 'that pehaih io'civil rights and
no.ndiscrirninatiph)Ilhe federal.regulations applicable to the award (if any)'made .by the
Department based on the application may:include, but.are not Umited to, 2 G.F.R..Part:2800.(the
DO) "Part 200 Uniform Requife'm'ehts!') and '28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (cohfideritiality'-Teseafc^^^
statistical information),-23 (criminal intelligence systems),-38 (regardingfaith-based or.religious
orgahizationS'pafticipatihg in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (huifiah subjects
protection).

(6) I assure that the Siibrecipient will assist the Department a's riecessafy (arid, will require
subrecipients and contractors to-assisi as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 1,0.6 of the National Historic Pfeseh'atibh Act of 19.66 (54 U.S.C. § 306l,0.8),"the
Archcological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (S^-UyS-.C. .§§'3J'250I -312508);'and,the
'National-Environmental.Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335),.and 28 C!F.R. RartS:6J
(NEPA) and 6i3 (floodplairis and wetlands).

(7) I assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department.and the Goyemmeht Accountability
OfHce, through any authorized representative, access to,-and opportunity to exa.rnine,:,a|Lpaper or
electronic records related to the award (ifany) made by the Department baised oh the application..

(8) If this.application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau-of
Justice Statistics pursuanfto which award funds rriay be made available (whether-by the,a ward
directly or by any siibaward at any t ier) to" an institution of higher education.(as defined at 34
U.S.C. § r0251(a)(17)), I assure that, ifany award funds actually are made available to such.an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance^—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that are ifhpo'sed on" it .by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United _States;>nd ,
b. subject to par. a, each such institution comply with itsowri representations, ifariy,
coricerriing academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research ihd.ependence;
and researchlntegrity, at the institution, that are includedln promoiional materials,.•in
official statements; in formal policies, in applications for grant's (ihciiiding'this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants^
accreditation, or iicerisirig,<or that otherwise are made ordisserriihated to students, to
faculty, or to" the.general public.

(9) I assure thaj, if the Subrecipient is a goverrimehtal entity, with respept.to'thera.ward (ifariy)
made by the Department based on-the application—
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a. it will comply with4he:requirements,ofthe Uniform Relocation",Assistancc;a Real
Property Acquisit'i'ons Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 460:I-4655)i which govern the" treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted pfogTams; and
b. it willcomplywith requirements of 5 U.S.C. §'§: i501-1508 and 7324,-7328,■ which,
limit certain'poliiical activities of State^pr local government employees^whose principal
employment is in connection with:an activity financed in wHo'Ie or Jh-part .by federal
assistance.

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives ah award from, the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office), 1 assure that as required'by 34 U'.S'Gr §■ r0382(c)'(.l'.l.),
it will, fo-the extent practicable and:consistent'with applicable Iaw--incTudinjg, but hot.lirhited to,
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act-seek, tecruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to.further effecti ve
law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § |6382(c)(I I).

(1 1) If the Subrecipient applies for-and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence
Act program, l assure as required by 34 U.S.'C. § 10552(a)(3), that it wjll maintain arid report,
such data, records,-and inf6fmati6ri,(prograrfim"atic and fi riaricial) as DOJ mayTeasoriably
require.

I acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or .fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission.of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it.^upports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (iticluding under 18 U.S.C. §§ lOO.I and/or .1621, arid/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also maysubject me and the Subrecipient to Civil.penalties.and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. §§ 372'9-3.73.0
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department's awards, including certifications
provided in connectionwith such awards, are subject to review bythe Departmeht, iiriclu'dihg by
its Office of the I nspector General.

Name of Author
TcrrU A/C C-ClV Un fj ( ^
vuthoriidd Signor J Title of Authorized Signor

Signature / / Date
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Certificale of Authorify # I //i - • „ .
(Ui^amzaiim. i\'qn-ProJii Corporuiion)

Certificnlprif A..tl,f,rjtV

^^hrUMcGadlh^. hereby certify ihai j ama duly elected;
h f ■ I hereby certify the following is a true copy of.'a vote taketi at

3 of'or9ani7niinn) ' --- -(h'ame oforganization)

a meeting of ihedmfVlilS^l'r^e'r C. duly called and hcldron MtXu. ̂7 an' P3
f^rpOKVUsv/nTiiKSverc present:and voting.

VOTED: Thai^rt-^/^cr^rfl^f rnfnv list morc^thantone,person) is
(Naine and Title) ̂

duly amhorized to enler-into contracts or agrcemcnts on bchalfof

Carp?!! Qounhi with the state of New Hampshire and any of
(Name of Organization) ^

its agencies or depanmerits and further is authprized to execute any. dpcunVchls

whicii may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary, to effect the purpose of

this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and reriiaihs in full force

and effect as of the date of the contract to which this certificate is.attached. This-authbrity

remains valid for thirty (30) days from the dale of this Gcrtificale of Authority. I further certify

lhat It IS understood that the Stale of New Hampshire will rely on this certjneate as evidence that

the pcrson(s) listed above cunently occupy the posjtion(s) indicated and that they have full

authority to bind the organization. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any

listed tndividual to bind the organization in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,, all such

limitations are expressly statp^^t^ctj)).''^^'..,^
DATED: ESt\^^

\^\ ̂2^2025 S
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NH Public ftttV Monogcmsnt Lichongc CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire'Public Risk Managemer^t'Exchange (Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire,Revised'Slatutes Annojated. Chapter-5-B,
Pooled Risk Management Programs; In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws. Primex' is authorized to'provlde pooled risk,
management programs established for (he benefit'of political subdivisions in the State'of New'Hampsfure.

Each member of Primex^ is entitle toThe categories of coverage set forth below. In'addition. Prirnex* may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage-extended td'a nbh-merfiber Is subject'to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions', 'amendments; rules, policies.and procedures
that are. applicable.to'the membere of Primex?. including but riot limited to the final and biriding resolution of aii daims and coverage dlsputes before lhe
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered'Party'S per occurrence llmit.'shall be deemed iriclu'ded in lhe Member's per'occurrerice llmlt. and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limit of liability as,set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The jimit shovm may have been reduced
by clairiis paid on behalf'of the. member.. General Liability coverage ,1s limited to Coverage .A {Personal Injury. Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C, (Public Officials Errors and Omissions). D (LJrifaJr Ernplbymen\ PractlcM). .E (Ernployee Bene.nt^Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are excluded from this provision of coverage..

The below named entity is "a member In goob-standing of the. New Hampshire Public Risk Management ExchatSge. Tlw, cby'eVage provided may,
however, be revised at arty time by the actions of Primexl As of the date this certificate is-issued. the information set ouiibeloyv accurately reflects the
categories of coverage-established for the current coverage^year.

This .Certificate is issued as a matter of information-only and confers no. rights upon the certificate holder.' fhisrcertiricat'e does nbi amend, extend, or
alter the coverage.affo'rded by the coverage categories listed below.

Participating Mambar

Carroli County
95 Water Village Road
Ossipee, NH 03864

Membar Numbar.

600

Company Affdniing Covsra^;

'NH Public Risk.Mariagerrient Exchartge - Prirriex^
Bow Brook Piace"
46 Donovan Street

Type of Covaraga
EffacVva Data '

'  rm/n/ddiVvwI.
Expiration Data
' (mm/dd/ww) Llmitt ■ NH Statutory Limits May Apply, If Npt:<

X General Liability (O'ccurrence'Fdnrri)
Professional Liability (describe)

1/1/2023 1/1/2024 Each Occurrence $ 5.000.000

General Aggregate '% 5.000.000

□  □ O'^currence
Fire Damage" (Any one
fire)

M^ £xp''(Ahy orie'person)

Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp.and Coil: $1,000

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(Each AccHJaht)

Aggregate

X Workers' Compensation & Employers* Liability 1/1/2023 1/1/2024 X  Statutory

Ea'ch Accident S2.000.00p

Disease - Ekh EmpfoyM si^bobioM

Disease - poitcy umit

Property (Special Risk Includes'Fire and Theft) Siankat Limit. ReplaMmarit
Cost (unlais otherwise, stated)

r

Description; Proof of Primex Member'coverage only.

'CERTIFICATE HOLDER: AddltJona! Covered Party Loss Payee Primox' - NH Public.Risk Management Exchange

By: "tXayi.

Date; 5/30/2023 niburcell@rihDrirTiex:draNew Hampshire Deparlrnent of Justice
33 Capitol Street
Concord. NH 03301

Ptease'directjnqulres.to;
Primex* Claims/Coverage Services

603:225-2841 phone.
603:228-3633 fax


